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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMFNTS

Certain statements contained in this Form 10-K of Phillips EdisonARC Shopping Center REIT Inc Phillips EdisonARC Shopping Center REIT we the Company

our or us other than historical facts may be considered forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the

Securities Act and Section IE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act We intend for all such forward-looking statements to be covered

by the
applicable

safe harbor
provisions

for forward-looking statements contained in those acts Such statements include in particular statements about our plans strategies and

prospects
and are subject

to certain risks and uncertainties including
known and unknown risks which could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected or

anticipated Therefore such statements are not intended to be guarantee of our performance in future periods Such
forward-looking statements can generally

be identified by

our use of forward-looking terminology such as may will expect intend anticipate estimate believe continue or other similar words Readers are

cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date this report is filed with the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC We make no represenlations or warranties express or implied about the accuracy of any such forward-looking statement contained in this Form 10-K and we do not

intend to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise See Item 1A herein for discussion of

some of the risks and uncertainties although not all risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those presented in our forward-looking

Statements



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Overview

Phillips EdisonARC Shopping Center REIT Inc was formed as Maryland corporation on October 13 2009 and has elected to be taxed ax real estate investment trust

REIT commencing with the taxable
year

ended December 2010 Substantially all of our business is expected to be conducted through Phillips EdisonARC Shopping

Center Operating Partnership L.P the Operating Psrtnership Delaware limited partnership formed on December 2009 We are the sole limited partner of the Operating

Partnership and our wholly owned subsidiary Phillips
Edison Shopping Center OP GP LLC is the sole general partner

of the Operating Partnership

We are offering tothe publiepursuant to registration stateinent $1785 billion in shares of common stock inour initial public offering on test efforts basis Our offering

consists of primstyofferingof $1.5 billion in shares offered to investors at price of$l0.00 per share withdiscounts available for certain categories of purchasers and $285

million in shares offered to stockholders pursuant to dividend reinvestment plan the DRP at price of $930 per share We have the right to reallocate the shares of common

stock offered between the primary offering and the DRP

As of December 312012 we bad issued 13gOl251 shares of common stuck since
inception including 155940 shares issued through the DRP generating gross

cash

proceeds of $136.1 million

Our advisor is American Realty Capital II Advisors LLC the Advisor limited liability company that was organized in the State of Delaware on December 28 2009 and that

is indireetiy wholly owned by AR Capital LLC formerly American Realty Capital II LLC the AR Capital sponsor Under the terms of the advisory agreement between the

Advisor and us the Advisor is responsible for the management of Osirday-to-day activities and the implementation of our investment strategy The Advisor has delegated most of

its duties under the advisory agreement including the management of our day-to-dayoperatiOns and our portfolio of teal estate assets to Phillips Edison NTR LLC the Sub
advisor whicb is indirectly wholly owned by Phillips Edison Limited Partnership th 6Pbillips Edison sponsor Notwithstanding such delegation to the Sub-advisor the

Advisor retains ultimate
responsibility

for the performance of all the matters entrusted to it under the advisory agreement

We invest primarily in well-occupied grocery-anchored neighborhood and cnmmunity shopping centers having mix of creditworthy national and regional retailers selling necessity-

based goods and servicea in
strong demographic markets throughout the United States in addition we may invest in other retail properties including power and lifestyle shopping

centers multi-tenant shopping centers free-simding single-tenant retail properties and other real estate and real estate-related loans and securities depending on real estate market

conditions and investment opportunities that we determine are in the best interests of our stockholders We expect
that retail properties primarily

would underlie or secure the real

estate-related loans and securities in which we may invest As of December 31 2012 we owned fee simple
interests in 26 real estate properties

20 of which we owned
through

the Joint Venture acquired from third parties unaffiliated with us the Advisor or the Sub-advisor

On September 20 2011 we entered into joint venture with group of institutional intemational investors advised by CBRE investors Global Multi Manager each CBRE
Investor The joint venture is in the form of PECO.ARC institutional Joint Venture L.P Delswareiimited partnership theJoint Venture We through an indirectly

stbolly owned subsidiary hold an approxisnate 54% interest in the Joint Venture We serve as the general partnerand massage the operations of the Joint Venture The CBRE

investors bold the remaining approximate 46% interest We contributed approximately $58.7million in theform of equity interests in six wholly owned real estate properties

and cash to the Joint Venture defined below and the CBRE investors contributed $50 million in cash

Segment Data

We esirrently viewour real estate assets as one reportable segment Accordingly we did not report any other segment disclosures iii 2012

TaxStatsis

We elected to be taxed as REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the internal Revenue Cods of 1986 as amended the intemal Revenue Code beginning with the tax

yearended December31 2010 Because we quality for taxation as sREIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on taxable income that is dietributedto

stockholders If we fail to quality as sPElT in any taxable year without the benefit of certain relief provisions we will be
subject to federal including any applicable altemative

minisnusss tax and state income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates Even if we quality for taxation as REIT we may be subject to



certain state and local taxes on oujr income property or net worth respectively and to federal income and excise taxes on our undistributed income

Competition

We are subject to significant competition in seeking real estate investments and tenants We compete with many third
parties engaged in real estate investment activities including

other REITs specialty finance companies savings and loan associations banks mortgage bankers insurance companies mutual funds institutional investors investment

banking firms lenders hedge funds governmental bodies and other entities Some of these competitors including larger REITs have substantially greater financial resources

than we do and generally enjoy significant competitive advantages that result from among other things lower cost of capital and enhanced operating efficiencies

Economic Dependency

We are dependent on the Advisor the Sub-advisor Realty Capital Securities LLC the Dealer Manage Phillips Edison Company Ltd the Property Manage and

their
respective

affiliates for certain services that are essential to us including the sale of our shares of common stock asset acquisition and disposition decisions and other general

and administrative
responsibilities In the event that any of the above-mentioned affiliates are unable to provide such services we would be required to find alternative service

providers

Employees

We do not have any employees In addition all of our executive officers are officers of Phillips Edison Company or one or more of its affiliates and will be compensated by those

entitiesin part for their service rendered to us We do not separately compensate our executive officers for their service as officers

The employees of Phillips Edison. or AR Capital-affiliated entities perform substantially all of the services related to our company The
expenses related to providing these services

are charged to us based on time
spent by these employees while

providing services tons excluding those acquisition disposition property management asaet management

financing and other services that are covered under
separate

fees charged tons The employee-related expenaea related to organization and offering costs charged to us for the

years
ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 were $0 and $0.6 millionrespectively Also $6.9 million of organization and offering costsincurred by the Sub-

advisor on our behalf has not beers charged to us or recorded in our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2012 Whether these costs will be billed to

us in the future is at the discretion of the Sub-advisor and will likely depend upon the success of our offering

Insurance

We believe that our properties are adequately
insured

Environmental Matters

As an owner of real estate we arc subject to various environmental laws of federal state and local governments Compliance with federal state and local environmental laws has

not material adverse effect on our business assets or results of
operations

financial condition and ability to pay distributions and we do not believe that our existing

portfolio will require us to incur material expenditures to comply with these laws and regulations

Access to Company Information

We electronically file our Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those
reports

with the United

States Securities and Exchange Commission SEC The
public may read and copy any of the

reports that are filed with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100

Street NE Washington D.C 20549 The public may obtain information on the
operation

of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 800-SEC-0330 The SEC

maintains an Internet site at www.sec.gov that contains reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically

We make available free of charge by responding to requests addressed to our investor relations group the Annual Report on Form l0K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q
Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports on our website www.phillipsedison-arc.com These

reports are available as soon as reasonably practicable

after such material is electronically filed or furnished to the SEC



ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

The factors described below represent our principal risks Other factors may exist that we do not consider to be significant based on information that is currently available or that

we are not currently able to anticipate The occurrence of any of the risks discussed below could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition results of

operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders Potential investora and our stockholders maybe referred to as you or your in this Item 1A Risk Factors

section

Risks Related to an Investment in Us

Because no public trading market for our shares currently exists it is difficult for our stockholders to sell their shares and if Łur stockholders are able to

sell their shares it will likely be at substantial discount to the public offering price

Our charter does not require our directors to seek stockholder approval to liquidate our assets by specified date nor does our charter require our directors to list our shares

for tradmg on national securities exchange by specified date There is no public market for our shares and we currently have no plans to list our shares on national securities

exchange Until our shares are listed if ever stockholders may not sell their shares unlesi the buyer meets the applicable suitability and minimum purchase standards In

addition our charter
prohibits

the ownership of more than 9.8% in value of our aggregate outstanding stock or more than 9.8% in value or number of shares whichever is

more restrictive of our aggregate outstanding conimon stock unless exempted by our board of directors which may inhibit large investors from purchasing your shares In its

sole discretion our board of directors could amend suspend or tenninate our share repurchase program upon 30 days notice Further the share
repurchase program includes

numerous restrictions that would limit stockholders ability to sell his or her shares Thereforeit is difficult for our stockholders to sell their shares promptly or at all If

stockholder is able to sell his or her shares it would likely be at substantial discount to the public offering price Itis also likely that our shares would not be accepted as the

primasy collateral for loan Because of the illiquid nature of our shares investors should purchase our shares only as long-term investment and be prepared to hold them for

an indefinite period of time

We have limited operating histoiy and neither the Advisor nor the Sub advisor has any prior operating history or anyprevious experience operating

public company which makes our future performance difficult to predict

We have limited operating history and as of December 31 2012 we owned interests in 26 real estate investments Our stockholders should not assume that our performance

will be similar to the past performance of other real estate investment programs sponsored by affiliates of the Advisor or affiliates of the Sub-advisor

The Advisor and the Sub advisor have limited operations as of the date of this report Because previous Phillips Edison sponsored programs were conducted through pnvately

held entities they were not subject to the up-front commissions fees and expenses associated with public offering nor all of the laws and regulations that will apply to us Our

executive officers and directors have limited experience managing public companies For all of these reasons our stockholders should be especially cautious when drawing

conclusions about our future performance and you should not assume that it will be similar to the
prior perfomiance of other Phillips Edison or AR Capital sponsored

programs Our lack of an operating history the Advisor and the Sub advisor lack of
experience operating public company the differences between us and the

private Phillips

Edison sponsored programs and our AR Capital sponsor
limited

experience in connection with investments of the
type

to be made by us significantly mcrease the risk and

uncertamty our stockholders face in msking an investment our shares

Our ability to implement our investment strategy is dependent in part upon the ability of our Dealer Manager to successfully conduct our offering which

makes an investment in us more speculative

We have retained
Realty Capital Securities LLC an affiliate of the Advisor to conduct our offering

The success of our offering and our ability to implement our business

strategy is dependent upon the ability of Realty Capital Securities LLC to build and maintain network of broker-dealers to sell our shares to their clients These broker-dealers

may also be engaged by other REITs and they may choose to emphasize the sale of those REIT5 shares over the sale of our shares If Realty Capital Securities LLC is not

successful in establishing operating and managing this network of broker dealers our ability to raise proceeds through our offering will be limited and we may not have

adequate capital to implement our investment strategy If we are unsuccessful in implementing our investment strategy our stockholders could lose all or part of their

investment

If our Dealer Manager terminates its dealer manager relationshzp with us our ability to successfully complete our offering and implement our investment

strategy would be significantly impaireiL

Our Dealer Manager has the right to terminate its relationship with us if among other things any of the following occur our voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy we

materially change our business we become subject to material action suit



proceeding or investigation we materially reduce the rate of any distribution we may pay in the future without its
prior

written consent we suspend or terminate our

share repurchase program without its prior written consent the value of our common shares materially adversely changes material breach of the dealer manager

agreement by us which breach has not been cured within the requiredtimeframe our willful misconduct or willful or grossly negligent breach of our obligations under the

dealer manager agreement the issuance of stop order suspending the effectiveness of our registration statement bythe SEC and not rescinded within 10 business days of its

issuance or 10 the occurrence of any event materially adverse to us and our prospects or our ability to perform our obligations under the dealer manager agreement flour

Dealer Manager elects to terminate its relationship with us our ability to complete our offering and implement our investment strategy would be significantly impaired and would

increase the likelihood that our stockholders could lose all or part
of their investment

Our joint venture arrangement with the CBRE Investors reduces our control over our assets and could give rise to disputes with our joint venture partners

which could adversely affect the value ofyour investment in us

Our joint venture with the CBRE investors involves risks not otherwise
present

when we own properties through wholly owned entities For example

Certain major decisions with
respect to the Joint Venture require the approval of majority of the executive committee of the Jomt Venture The committee includes

two members appointed by the CBRE Investors and two members appomted by us Our inability to obtain majority approval may prevent us from
executing

transactions that would be in our best interest

dispute
with

respect to certain major decisions may give either party the right to trigger buy/sell rights Should we initiate the buy/sell procedures we would at

the election of the CBRE Investors have to sell our interests in the Joint Venture or buy the CBRE Investors interest in the Joint Venture Should the CBRE
Investors initiate the buy/sell procedures we wouldhave to choose between buying and selling our interest in the Joint Venture If we are seller under the buy/sell

procedures the tertos of the asic may be less attractive than if we had held onto our investment and if we are buyer we maybe unable to finance such buy-out

or may have to incur indebtedness on unattractive terms or at levels that might not be in our best interest

Our agreement with the CBRE investors limits certain direct and indirect transfers of our interest in the Joint Venture As result we may be unable to sell our

interest the Jomt Venture when we would otherwise like and we may be unable to sell large equity
mterests in us or certam subsidiaries to large investor that

would as result of the sale directly or indirectly own 20.0% or more of the subsidiary through which we own our interest in the Joint Venture

Our investments made through the Joint Venture are held in subsidiary REIT If such subsidiary REIT were to fail to qualil as REIT our own REIT qualification could be

threatened

If we pay distributions from sources other than our cash flows from operations we may not be able to sustain our distribution rate and we may have fewer

finds available for investmeat in properties and other assets and our stockholders overall returns may be reduced

Our organizational documents pt rmit us to pay distributions from any source without limit If we fund distributions from financmgs or the net proceeds from this offering we

will have fewer funds available fr investment in real estate properties and other real estate related assets and our stockholders overall returns maybe reduced At times we may
be forced to borrow funds to pay distributions during unfavorable market conditions or during periods when funds from oerations are needed to make capital expenditures and

other expenses which could increase our operating costs We may also fund such distributions from advances or contributions from our sponsors or from any deferral or

waiver of fees by our advisor and sub-advisor Furthermore if we cannot cover our distributions with cash flows from operations we may be unable to sustain our distribution

rate For the year ended December 31 2012 we paid distributions of approximately $3 673 000 including distnbutions reinvested through our dividend reinvestment plan

and our cash flows from operations under accounting principles geierally accepted in the United States GAAP were approximately $4033000 For the
year ended

December 31 2011 we paid distributions of approximately $873000 including distributions reinvested through our dividend reinvestment plan and our GAAP cash flows

from operations were approximately $593000

If we are unable to find suitable investments we may not be able to achieve our investment objectives or pay distributions

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives and to pay distributions depends primarily upon the performance of the Sub-advisor acting on behalf of the Advisor with

respect to the acquisition of our investments including the ability to source loan origination opportunities for us Competition from competing entities may reduce the number of

suitable investment opportunities offered to iii or increase the bargaining power of
property owners seeking to sell Additionally disruptions and dislocations in the credit markets

have materially impacted the cost and availability of debt to finance real estate
acquisitions

which is key component of our acquisition



strategy This Jack of available debt could result in further reduction of suitable inveitisient opportunities and create competitive advantage to other entities that have greater

financial resources than we do We are also subject to competition in seeking to acquire real estate-related investments The more shares we sell in our offering the greater our

challenge will be to invest all of the net offering proceeds on attractive terms We can give no assurance that the Sub-advisor acting on behalf ofthe Advisor will be successful in

obtaining suitable investments financially attractive terms or that our objectives will be achieved If we are unable to find suitable investments promptly we will hold the

proceeds
from our offering

in an interest-bearing account or invest the proceeds in short-term assets If we.would continue to be unsuccessful in locating
suitable investments we

may ultimately
decide to liquidate

In the event we are unable to timely locate suitable investments we may be unable or limited in our ability to pay distributions and we may not

be able to meet our investment objectives

Disruptions in the financial markets and challenging economic conditions could adversely impact the commeecial mortgage market as well as the market

for real estate-related debt investments generally which could hinder our ability to implement our business.strategy and generate returns to our

stockholders

We intend to allocate small
percentage

of our portfolio to real estate-related investments such as mortgage mezzanine bridge and other loans debt and derivative securities

related to real estate assets including mortgage-backed securities and the equity securities of other REITs and -real estate compames The returns available to investors in these

investments are determined by the supply and demand for such investments the performance of the assets underlying the investments and the existence of market

for such investments which includes the ability to sell or finance such investments..-

During periods of
volatility

the number of buyers participating in the market may change at an accelerated pace As liquidity or demand increaset the returns available to

investors on new investments will decrease Conversely lack of liquidity will cause the returns -available to investors on new investments to increase

Disruptions in the financial markets and challenging economic conditions could adversely affect our ability to secure debt financing on attractive tisrms

our ability to service any future indebtedness that we may incur and the values of our investments

Despite improved access to capital for some companies the capital and credit markets continue-to be affected by extrerne.volatilityand ditruption during
the

past
four years The

health of the globalcapital markets remains concern The banking industry has been experiencing improved earnings but the relatively low growth economic environment baa

ause.d the markets to question whether financial institutions are truly appropriatgly capitalized The downgrade of the U.S..governinenlelebt has increased these concerns

especially for the larger money center banks Smaller financial institutions have continued to work witji borrowers to amend and extend existing loans however as these loans

reach maturity.there is the
poJential

for future credit losses The FDICs list of troubled financial institutions is still quite large and the threat of more bank closings will weigh

heavily on the financial markets

Looking forward it is wi4ely.assumed that mortgage delinquencies have npt yet peaked Liquidity in the global credit market has been severely contracted by market-disruptions

and new leqding is expected to remain subdued in the near term We have relied on debt financing to fmance most-of our grocery-anchored shopping centers As result of the

uncertainties in the credit market we may npt be ableto refinance our existing indebtedness or to obtain additional debt financing on attractive terms If we are not able to

refinance existing indebtedness on attractive terms at its maturity we maybe forced to dispose of some of our assets

Further disruptions in the Ilnancial.markets and uncertain economic conditions could adversely affect the values of our investments Turmoil in the capital markets has constrained

equity and debt capital available for investment in commercial real estate resulting in fewer buyers seeking to acquire commercial properties and possible increases in capitalization

rates and lower property values Furthermore declining economic conditions could negatively impact-commercial real estate fundamentals and result in lower occupancy lower

rental rates and declining values in our real estate portfolio and in the collateral securing our loan investments which could have the following negative effects onus

the valuesof our investments in grdcery-anchortd shopping centbr could decrease below the amounts we paid for such investments

the value of collateral securing any loan investment that we may make could decrease below the outstanding principal amounts of such loans

revenues from properties we acquire could decrease due to fewer tenants or lower rental rates making it more difficult for us to pay distributions or meet our debt

service obligations on future debt financings and

revenues on the properties and other assets underlying any loan investments we may make could decrease making it more difficult for the borrower to meet its

payment obligations to us

All of these factors could impair our ability to make distributions to our investors and decrease the value of an investment in us



We may suffer from delays in locating suitable investments which could limit our ability to make distributions and lower the overall return on your
investment

We rely upon our
sponsors

and the real estate professionals affiliatedwith our sponsors to identify
suitable investments The

private Phillips Edison-sponsored programs

especially those for which the
ofibring proceeds have not been fully invested rely on our Phillips Edison sponsors for investment opportunities Similarly the AR Capital-

sponsored programs rely on our AR
Capital sponsor for investment

opportunities To the extentthat our sponsors and the other real estate professionals employed by the

Advisor and Sub-advisor face competing demands upon their time at times when we have capital ready for investment we may face
delays

in
locating suitable investments

Further the more money we raise in our offering the more difficult it will be to invest the net offering proceeds promptly and on attractive terms Therefore the large size of

our offering and the continuing high demand for the types of pibperties and other investments we desire to purchase increase the risk of
delays in investing our net offering

proceeds Delays we encounter in the selection and acquisition Or origination of income-producingassets would likely limit our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders and

lower their overall returns Further if we acquire properties prior to the start of construction or during the early stages of construction it will typically take seend months to

complete construction and rent available space Therefore we could
experience delays in the payment of cash distributions attributable to those particular properties

We may change our targeted investments without stockholder consent

We
expect to allocate at least 90.0% of our portfolio to investments in well-occupied roceiy-snchored neighborhood and community shopping centers leased to mix of national

creditworthy retailers selling necessity-based goods and services in strong demographic markets throughout the United States We intend to no more than 10.0% of our

portfolio to other real estate properties and real estate-related loana and securities such as mortgage mezzaninC bridge and other loans debt and derivative securities related to

real estate assets including mortgage-backed securities and the equity securities ofotherREITs and real estate companies We do not expect our noncontrolling equity

investments in other
public companies to exceed 5.0% of the proceeds of this offering assuming we sell the maximum offering amount Though this is our current target

portfolio we may make adjustments to our target portfolio based on real estate market conditions and investment opportunities and we may change our targetedinvestments

and investment guidelines at any time without the consent of our stockholders which could result in our makinginvestments that are different from and possibly riskier than

our current targeted investments change in our targeted investments or investment
guidelines may increase our exposure to interest rate risk default risk and real estate

market fluctuations all of which could
adversely affect the value of our common stock and our abilityto make distributions to our stockholders

If we-raise substantially less than the maximum offering amount under our offering we will not be able to invest in as diverse portfolio ofproperties as

we otherwise would which may cause the value- of your investment to vary more widely with the performance of specific assets and cause our general and

administrative expenses to constitute greater percentage of our revenue Raising fewer proceeds in our offering therefore could increase the risk that

you will lose money in your investmenL

Our offering is being made on a- best efforts basis whereby the brokers participating in the offering have no firm commitment or obligation to purchase any Of the shares As of

December 31 2012 we had raised aggregate gross offering proceeds of approximately $136.1 million from the sale of approximately 13.8 million shares in our-offering-

including shares sold under our dividend reinvestment plan At this time itis unknown whether or not we will raise the maximum offermg amount

We are not limited in thenumber or size of our investments or the
percentage

of net proceeds we may dedicate to single investment If we are unable to raise the msximum

offering amount we will make fewer investments than
originally intended resulting in less diversification in terms of the utimber of investments owned the

geographic regions in

which our investments are locatel and the
length

of lease terms with our tenants In- that case adverse developments with
respect to single property geographic region

small number of tenants or rental rates when we renew lease or re-lease
property

would have
greater

adverse impact on our operations than they otherwise would

Because we are dependent upon the Advisor the Sub-advisor and their
affiliates to conduct our operations any adverse changes in the financial health of

the Advisor the Sub-advisor or their affiliates or our relationship with them could hinder our operating performance and the return on our stockholders

investments

We are dependent on the Sub-advisor which is responsible for our day-to-day operations and is primarily responsible for the selection of our investments on behalf of the

Advisor and on the Advisor which consults with the Sub-advisor with
respect to acquisitions to be recommended to our board of directors We are also dependent on the

Property Manager to manageour portfolio of real estate assets Neither the Advisor nor the Sub-advisor has any previous operating histoiy and they depetid upon the fees and

other compensation that they receive from us in connection with the purchase management and sale of assets to conduct their operations Any adverse changes in the financial

condition of the Advisor the Sub-advisor the
Property Manager or certain of their affiliates or in our relationship with them could hinder their

ability to successfully manage our

operations
and our portfolio of investments



The loss of or the inability to obtain key real estate professionals at the Advisor the Sub advisor or the Dealer Manager could delay or hinder

implementation of our investment strategies which could limit our ability to make distributions and decrease the value ofyour investmenL

Our success depends to significant degree upon the contributions of Nicholas Schorsch and William Kahane at the Advisor and Dealer Manager and Jeffley Edison and Michael

Philhps
the Co Chairs of our Board of Directors John Bessey our President Mark Addy our Chief Operating Officer and Richard Smith our Chief Financial

Officer at the Sub-advisor We do not have employment agreements with these individuals and they may not remain associated with us If any of these persons were to cease

their association with us our operating
results could suffer We do not intend to maintain key person life insurance on any person We believe that our future success depends

large part upon the Advisor the Sub advisor and their
respective

affiliates ability to hire and retain highly slulled managerial operational and marketing professionals

Competition for such
professionals is intense and the Advisor the Sub advisor and their

respective
affihates may be unsuccessful in attracting and retaining such skilled

individuals Further we mtend to establish strategic relationships
with firms as needed that have special expertise in certain services or detailed knowledge regarding real

properties in certain geographic regions Maintaining such relationships
will be important

for us to effectively compete with other investors for properties and tenants in such

regions We may be unsuccessful in establishing and retaining such relationships If we lose or are unable to obtain the services of highly skilled professionals or do not estabhsh or

maintain
appropriate strategic relationships our ability to implement our investment strategies

could be
delayed or hindered and the value of our stockholders investments may

decline

Our
rights

and the
rights of our stockholders to recover claims against our independent directors are limited which could reduce our stockholders and

our recovery against them if they negligently cause us to incur losses

Maryland law provides that director has no liabihty inthat capacity if he performs his duties in good faith in manner he reasonably believes to be in our best interests and with

the care that an ordinarily prudent person ma like position would use under smular circumstances Our charter
generally provides that no independent director shall be hable to us

or our stockholders for monetary damages and that we will mdemm them for losses unless they are grossly negligent or engage willful misconduct As result we and our

stockholders may have more limited rights against our independent directors than might otherwise exist under common law which could reduce our stockholders and our

recovery
from these

persons
if they act in negligent manner In addition we maybe obligated to fund the defense costs meurred by our independent

directors as well as by our

other directors officers employees if we ever have employees and agents in some cases which would decrease the cash otherwise available for distribution to our stockholders

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest

Our sponsors and their respective affiliates including all of our executive officers some of our directors and other key real estate professionals face

conflicts of interest caused by their compensation arrangements with us which could result in actions that are not in the long term best interests of our

stockholders

The Advisor and Sub advisor and their
respective

affiliates receive substantial fees from us These fees could influence the Advisor and Sub advisor advice to us as well as

their judgment with
respect

to

the continuation renewal or enforcement of our agreements with affiliates of our AR Capital sponsor including the advisory agreement and the dealer-manager

agreement
--

the continuation renewal or enforcement of our agreements with Phillips Edison and its affiliates including the property management agreement

thecontinuation renewal or enforcement of the Advisors agreements with the Sub-advisor and their respective affiliatesincluding the sub-advisory agreement

public offerings of equity by us which will likely entitle the Advisor and the Sub advisor to increased
acquisition

and asset management fees

sales of
properties

and other investments to third
parties

which entitle the Advisor and the Sub-advisor to disposition
fees and possible

subordinated incentive fees

acquisitions of properties
and other investments from other Phillips Edison or AR Capital sponsored programs which might entitle affiliates of AR Capital or

Phillips Edison to disposition
fees and possible subordinated incentive fees in connection with its services for the seller

acquisitions of properties and other investments from third
parties

which entitle the Advisor and the Sub-advisor to acquisition and asset-management compensation

and loan originations to third parties



borrowings to acqure Rroperties
and other inyestments and to originate loans which borrowings increase the acquisiPon and asset-management feet payable to the

Advisor and the Sub-advisor

whether and when we seek to list our common stock on national securities exchange which
listing could entitle the Advisor and the Sub-advisor to subordinated

incentive fee and

whether and when we seek to sell the company or its assets which sale could entitle the Advisor and the Sub-advisor toa subordinated share of cash flows

The fees the Advisor and the Sub-advisor receive in connection with transactions
involving the abquisition of assets are based initially on th cost of the investment including costs

related to loan originations and are not based on the quality of the investment or the quality of the services rendered to us This may influence the Advisor and the Sub-advisor

to recommend riskier transactions to us In addition because the fees are based on the cost of the investment it may create an incentive for the Advisor and the Sub advisor to

recommend that we purchase assets with more debt and at higher prices

Because other real estate programs sponsored by our sponsors and offered through our Dealer Aianager may conduct offerings concurrently with our
offering our sponsors and cur Dealer Manager will face potential conflicts of interest ariafng from competition amoni us and these other programs for
investors and investment capital and such conflicts may not be resolved in our favor

An affiliate of the Advisor is alio the advisor of several other AR
Capital-sponsored non-traded REITs that are raising capital in ongoing jublic offerings Our Deafer Man5ager is

also the dealer manager or is named in the registration statement as the dealer manager in
multiple offerings including sonic AR Capital sole-sponsored offeringsthat are either

effective or in registration In addition our sponsors may decide to
sponsor

future programs that would seek to raise
capital through public offerings conducted

concuriently
with our offering As result our sponinrs and our Dealer Manager may face conflicts of interest arising from

potential competition with these
otherprograms far investors and

Investment capital Our sponsors generally seek to avoid simultaneous public offermgs by programs that have
substantially similar mix of investment attributes mcludmg

targeted investment types Nevertheless there may be periods during which one or more programs sponsored by our sponsors will be raising
capital

and might cqmpete with us
for investment capital Such conflicts may not be resolved in our favor and you will not have the

opportunity to evaluate the manner in which these conflicts of interest are
resolved before or after making your investment

The management of multiple REITs especially REITs in the development stage by the officers of the Advisor may significantly reduce the amount of time
the officers of the Advisor are able to spend on activities related to us and may cause other conflicts of interest which may cause our operating results to

suffer

The officers of the Advisor are part of the senior management or are key perstinnel of several other AR
Capital-sponsored REITi and their advisors Some of theAR

Capital-
sponsored RE1Ts have

registration statements that are not yet effective and are in the development phase while others have registration statements that became effective in the past
two years As result such REIT5 will have concurrent and/or overlappinfundraising acquisition operational and disposition and

liquidation phases as us which may cause
conflicts of interest to arise thrcughotit the life of our company with respect to among other thirigs finding investors locating and acquiring properties entering mto leases and

disposing of properties Additionally based on our AR Capital sponsors experience significantly greater time commitment is required of senior management during the

development stage when the REIT is
being organized funds are initially being raised and funds are initially being invested and less time is-required as additional funds are raised

and the offering matures The conflicts of interest each of the officers of the Advisor will face may delay our fund raising and investment of our proceeds due to the competing
time demands and

generally cause our operating results to suffer

We compete for investors with other programs of our AR Capital sponsor which could adversely affect the amount of capital we have to invesL

Our AR Capital sponsor
is

currently the
sponsor

of several other
public offerings of non-traded REIT shares which offerings will be ongoing during significant portion of our

offering period These
progianis all have filed registration statements for the offering of common stock and intend to elect to be taxed as REITs The offerings are

occurring

concurrently
with our offerig and our AR

Capital sponsor is likely to
spqnsoi

other
offerings during our offering period Our Dealer Manager is the deaer manager for these

other
offerings We will compete for investors with these other programs and the

overlap of these
offerings with our offering could adversely affect our ability to raise all the

capital we seek in our offering the
timing of sales of our shares and the amount of proceeds we have to spend on real estate investments
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Our sponsors face conflicts of interest relating to the acquisition of assets and leasing of properties and such conflicts may not be resolved in ourfavor

meaning that we could invest in less attractive assets and obtain less creditworthy tenants which could limit our ability to make distributions and reduce

our stockholders overall investment return

We rely on our sponsors and the executive officers and other key real estate professionals at the Advisor and Sub-advisor to identify suitable investment opportunities for us

with the Sub-advisor having priinaiy responsibility for identifying suitable investments for us on behalf ofthe Advisor Our individual AR Capital and Phillips Edison sponsors and

several of the other key real estate professionals of the Advisor and Sub-advisor are also the key real estate professionalS at our entity sponsors
and their other public and private

programs Many investment opportunities that are suitable for us may also be suitable for other Phillips Edison- or AR Capital-sponsored programs Generally the Advisor and

Sub-advisor will not pursue any opportunity to acquire any real estate properties or real estate-related loans and securities that are directly competitive with our investment

strategies unless and until the opportunity is first presented to us subject to certain exceptions FOr so long aswe are externally advised our charter provides that it shall not be

proper purpose of the corporation for us to purchase real estate or any significant asset related to real estate unless the Advisor or Sub-advisor has recommended the

investment to us Thus the executive officers and real estate professionals of the Advisor and Sub-advisor could direct attractive investment opportunities to other entities or

investors Such events could result in us investing in properties that provide less attractive returns which may reduce our ability to make distributions

We and other Phillips Edison- and AR Capital-sponsored programs also rely on these real estate professionals to supervise the property management and leasing of properties If

the Advisor or Sub-advisor directs creditworthy prospective tenants to properties owned by another Phillips Edison- or AR Capital-sponsored program when they could direct

such tenants to our properties our tenant base may have more inherent risk than might otherwise be the case Further our executive officers and key real estate professionals

are not prohibited from engaging directly Or indirectly in any business or from possessing interests in any other business venture or ventures including businesses and ventures

involved in the acquisition development ownership leasing or sale of real estate investments

The Advisor and Sub-advisor face conflicts of interest relating to the incentive fee Structure under our advisory agreement which could result in actions

that are not necessarily in the long-term best interests of our stockholders

Under our advisory agreement the Advisor and Sub-advisor or their affiliates will be entitled to fees that are structured in manner intended to provide incentives to the Advisor

and Sub-advisor to perform in our best interests and in the best interests of our stockholders However because neither Advisor the Sub-advisor nor any of their affiliates

maintain significant equityinterest in us and are entitled to receive certain minimum compensation regardless of performance the interests of the Advisorand Sub-advisor are

not wholly aligned with those our stockholders In that regsrdthe Advisor and Sub-advisor could be motivated to recommend riskier or more speculative investments in

order for us to
generate

the specified levels of performance or sales proceeds that would entitle the Advisor and Sub-advisor to fees In addition the Advisors andSub-advisors

entitlement to fees upon the sale of our assets and to participate in sale proceeds could result in the Advisor and Sub-advisor recommending sales of our investments at the earliest

possible tune at which sales of mvestments would produce the level of retum that would entitle the Advisor and Sub-advisor to compensation relating to such sales even if

continued ownership of those investments might be in our best long-term interest Our advisory agreement will require us to pay performance-based termination fee to the

Advisor and Sub-advisor or their affiliates if we terminate the advisory agreement prior to the listing of our shares for trading on an exchange or absent such termination in

respect of their participation in net sales proceeds To avoid paying this fee our independent directors may decide against terminating the advisory agreementprior to our listing of

our shares or disposition of our investments even if but for the termination fee termination of the advisory agreement would be inour best interest In sddition the

requirement to pay the fee to the Advisor and Sub-advisor or their affiliates at termination could cause us to make different investment or disposition decisions than we would

otherwise make in order to satisfy our obligation to pay the fee to the terminated Advisor and Sub-advisor For more detailed discussion of the fees payable to the Advisor

Sub-advisor and their affiliates iii connection with our ongoing public offering and in connection with the management of our company see Note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements

The Advisor and Sub-advisor will face conflicts of interest relating to joint ventures that we may form with affiliates of our sponsors which conflicts could

result in disproportionate benefit to the other venture partners at our expense

If approved by majority of our board of directors including majority
of our independent directors not otherwise interested in the transaction we may enter into

joint

venture agreements with other sponsor-affiliated programs or entities for the acquisition development or improvement of
properties or other investments All of our executive

officers some of our directors and the key real estate professionals assembled by the Advisor and Sub-advisor are also executive officers directors managers key professionals

or holders of direct or indirect controlling interest in the Advisor the Sub-advisor the Dealer Manager or other sponsor-affiliated entities These persons will face conflicts of

interest in determining which sponsor-affiliated program should enter into any particular joint venture agreement These persons may also face conflict in structuring the terms

of the
relationship

between our interests and the interests of the
sponsor-affiliated co-venturer and in managing the joint venture Any joint venture agreement or transaction

between us and
sponsor-affiliated co-venturer will not have the benefit of arms-length negotiation of the

type nonnally conducted
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between unrelated co-venturers-The sponsor-affiliated co-venturer may have economic or business interests or goals that are or may become inconsistent with our business

interests or goals These co-verturers may thus benefit to our and your detriment

Our sponsors our officers the Advisor the Sub-advisor and the real estate and other profrssionals assembled by the Advisor and Sub-advisor face

competing demands relating to their time and this may cause our operations and our stockholders investment to suffer.

We rely on the Sub-advisor acting on behalf of the Advisor for the day-to-day operation of our business In addition the Sub-advisor ha the primary responsibility for the

selection of our investments on behalf of the Advisor The Advisor consults with the Sub-advisor with respect to proposed acquisitions and the Advisor and the Sub-advisor

jointly
recommend investment opportunities to our board of directors but in the event of disagreement the determination of the Sub-advisor will prevail The Advisor and

Sub-advisor also work
jointly

to make major decisions
affecting us all under the direction of our board of directors The Advisor and Sub-advisor

rely on our sponsors
and

their respective affiliates to conduct our business Messrs Phillips and Edison are principals of Phillips Edison and the affiliates that manage the assets of the other Phillips Edison-

sponsored programs Similarly our individual AR Capital sponsors are key executives in other AR Capital-sponsored programs As result of their interests in other Phillips

Edison- or AR Capital-sponsored programs their obligations to other investors and the fact that they engage in and they will continue toengsge in other business activities these

individuals will continue to face conflicts of interest in allocating their time among us and other Phillips Edison- or AR Capital-sponsored programs and other business activities in

which they are involved Should the Advisor or Sub-advisor breach its
fiduciary duties to us by inappropriately devoting insufflcjent time or resources to our business the

returns on our investments and the value of our stockholders investments may decline

All of our executive officers some of our directors and the key real estate and other professionals assembled by the Advisor Sub-advisor and Dealer

Manager face conflicts of interest related to their positions or interests in affiliates of our sponsors which could hinder our ability toimplement our

business strategy and to generate returns to our stockholders

All of our executive officers some of our directors and the key real estate and other professionals assembled by the Advisor Sub-advisor and Dealer Manager are also executive

officers directors managers key professionals or holders of direct or indirect controlling interests in the Advisor the Sub-advisor our Dealer Manager or other
sponsor-

affiliated entities Through our AR Capital sponsors affiliates some of these
persons

work on behalf of AR Capital-sponsored programs that are currently raising capital publicly

or are in registration to raise capital publicly Through our Phillips Edison sponsors affiliates some of these
persons

work on behalf of other
Phillips Edison-sponsored private

programs As result they have loyalties to each of these entities which loyalties could conflict with the fiduciary duties they owe to us and could result in action or inaction

detrimental to our business Conflicts with our business and interests are most likely- to arise from allocation of new investments and management time and services between us

and the other entities our purchase of
properties- from or sale of

properties to affiliated entities development of our properties by affiliates investments with affiliates

of the Advisor or Sub-advisor compensation to the Advisor or Sub-advisor and our relationship with the Advisor Sub-advisor Dealer Manager and Property Manager

If we do not successfully implement our business strategy we may be unable to generate the cash needed to make distributions to our stockholders and to maintaid or increase

the value of our assets

Although our sponsors and their affiliates have previously paid forgiven or deferred certain fees and expenses related to us there is no-obligation by our

sponsors or their affiliates to do so in the future

The Advisor and Sub-advisor have waived or reimbursed payment of cash asset management fees to the extent that as of the date of payment our operating-performance

during theprior quarter was not commensurate with our distributions during such period Cash asset management fees were $1243000 for the
year

ended December31

2012 but $546000 of these fees were waived by the Advisor and Sub-advisor pursuant to the advisory agreement In addition our sponsors
have provided $228000 towards

certain of our general and administrative
expenses

as capital contributions since inception Our
sponsors

have not received and will not receive additional
equity securities or any

reimbursement for these contributions Our sponsors
do not intend to continue to contribute monies to fund future distributions Also approximately $6.9 million of

organization and
offering costs have beeo incurred on our behalf by the Sub-advisor -that have not been charged to us because of the uncertainty as to thesmount Of proceeds we

will raise in our initial public offitring Organization and offering coat reimbursements may not exceed 1.5% of the gross proceeds raised through our offering Whether these

costs incurred by the Sub-advisor will bebilled is dependent upon the success of this offering and the discretion of theSub-advisor
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Risks Related to Our Offering and Our Corporate Structure

The offering price of our shares was not established in reliance on valuation of our assets and liabilities the actual value of your investment may be

substantially less than what you pay We may use the most recent price paid to acquire share in our initial public or afollow-on public offering us the

estimated value of our shares until we have completed our offering stage Even when the Advisor begins to use other valuation methods to estimate the

value of our shares the value of our shares will be based upon number of assumptions that may not be accurate or complete

We established the offering price of our shares on an arbitrary basis The selling price of our shares bears no relationship to our book or asset values or to any other established

criteria for valuing shares Because the offering price isnot based upon any valuation independent or otherwise the offering price is likely to be higher than the proceeds that

you would receive upon liquidation or resale of your shares if they were to be listed on an exchange or actively traded by broker-dealers especially in light of the upfront fees

that we pay in connection with the issuance of our shares

To assist FINRA members and their associated
persons

that participate in this offering pursuant to FINRA Rule 2310 we disclose in each annual report distributed to

stockholders
per

share estimated value of our shares the method by which it was developed and the date ofthedata used to develop the estimated value For this purpose the

Advisor estimated the value of our common shares as $1000 per share as of December 31 20l2S The basis for this valuation is the fact that the offering price of our shares of

common stock in our initial public offering is $10.00 per share ignoring purchase price
discounts for certain categories of purchasers The Advisor has indicated that it intends

to use the most recent price paid to acquire share in our initial public offering ignoring purchase price discounts for certaincategories of purchasers or follow-on public

offering as its estimated per share value of our shares until we have completed our offering stage We will consider our offering stage complete when we are no longer publicly

offering equity securities whether through our initial public offering or follow-on public offerings and have not done so for 18 months If our board of directors determines

that it is in our best interest we may conduct follow on offerings upon the termination of Our initialpublic offering Our charter does not restrict our ability to conduct offerings

in the future For purposes
of this definition we do not consider public equity offering to include offerings on behalf of selling stockholders or offerings related to dividend

reinvestment plan employee benefit plan or the redemption of interests in the Operating Partnership

Although this initial estimated value
represents

the most recent price at which most investors are willing to purchase shares in our initial public offering this reported value is

likely to differ from the
price

that stockholder would receive in the near term upon resale of his or her shares or upon liquidation of the our assets because there is no

public trading market for the shares at this time ii the $10.00 primary offering price involves the payment of underwriting compensation and other directed selling efforts which

payments and efforts are likely to produce higher sale price
than could otherwise be obtained iii estimated value does not reflect and is not derived from the fair market value

of our assets because the amount of proceeds available for investment from our primary public offering
is net of selling commissions dealer manager fees other organization and

offering costs and acquisition fees and expenses iv the estimated value does not take into account how market fluctuations affect the value of our investments including how the

current disruptions in the financial and real estate markets may affect the values of our investments and the estimated value does not take into account how developments

related to individual assets may have increased or decreased the value of our portfolio

When determining the estimated value of our shares by methods other than the last price paid to acquire share in an offering the Advisor or another firm we choose for that

purpose will estimate the value of our shares based upon number of assumptions that may notbe accurate or complete Accordingly these estimates may or may not be an

accurate reflection of the fair market value of our investments and will not likely represent
the aWount of net proceeds that would result from an immediate sale of our assets

The actual value of shares that we repurchase under our share repurchase program may be substantially less than what we pay

Under our share repurchase program shares maybe repurchased at varying prices depending on the number of
years

the shares have been held the purchase price paid

for the shares and whether the redemptions are sought upon stockholders death qualiring disability or determination of incompetence The maximum
price

that may be

paid under the program is $10 00
per

share which is the offering pnce of our shares of common stock in the primary portion
of our initial

public offering ignoring purchase

price discounts for certain categories of purchasers and as described above the initial estimated value of our common shares disclosed to assist FINP.A members and their

associated
persons

that participate in this offering pursuant to FINRA Rule 2310 Although this initial estimated value represents the most recent price at which most investors

are willing to purchase shares in our primary offering this reported value is likely to differ from the price at which stockholder could resell his or her shares for the reasons

discussed in the risk fhctor above Thus when we repurchase
shares of our common stock at $10.00

per share the actual value of the shares that we repurchase is likely to be

less and the repurchase is likely to be dilutive to our remaining stockholders Even at lower repurchase prices the actual value of the shares may be substantially less than what

we pay and the repurchase maybe dilutive to our remaining stockholders
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Our charter limits the number of shares person may own which may discourage takeover that could otherwise result in premium price to our

stockholders

Our charter with certain exceptioss authorizes our directors to take such actions as are necessary
and desirable to

preserve
our qualification as REIT To help us comply with

the REIT ownership requirements
of the Internal Revenue Code among other purposes our charter prohibits person from directly or constructively owning more than 98%

in value of our aggregate outstanding stock or more than 9.8% in value or number of shares whichever is more restrictive of our aggregate outstanding common stock unless

exempted by our board of directoi Tius restriction may have the effect of delaying deferring or preventmg change in control of us including an extraordinary
transaction

such ass merger tender offer or sgle of all or substantially all of our assets that might provide premium price for holders of our common stock

Our charter permits our board of directors to issue stock with terms that may subordinate the rights of our common stockholders or discourage third

party from acquiring us in manner that could result in premium price to our stockholders

Our board of directors may classib or reclassity any unissued common stock or preferred stoclc and establish the preferences conversion or other rights voting powers

restrictions limitations as to distributions
qualifications

and terms or conditions of redemption of any such stock Thus our board of directors could authonze the issuance of

preferred stock with priority as to distributions and amounts payable upon liquidation over the sights of the holders of our common stock Such preferred stock could also have

the effect of delaying deferring or preventing change in control of us including an extraordinary transaction such as.a merger tender offer or sale of all or substantially all of

our assets that mightprovide premium price to holders of our common stock

Because Maryland lawpermits our boartUo adopt certain anti-takeover measures without stockholder approval investors may be less likely to receive

control premiumfor their shares

In 1999 the State of Maryland enicted legislation that enhances the power of Maryland corporations to protect themselves from unsolicited takeovers Among other things the

legislation.permits our board without stockholder approval.to amend our chsrter to

stagger our board 01 directOrs into three classes

require two-thirds stockholder vote for removal of directors

provide that only th board can fix the size of the board

provide that all vacancies on the board however created may be filled only by the affirmative vote of majority of the remaining directors in office and

require that special stockholder meetings may only be called by holders of majority
of the

voting
shares entitled to be cast at the meeting

Under Maryland law corporation can opt
to be governed by some or all of these provisions if ithas class of equity securities registered under the Exchange Act and has at

least three independent directors Our charter does not prohibit our board of directors frOm opting into any of the above provisions permitted under Marylandlaw Becoming

governed by any of these provisicns could discourage an extraordinary
tratisaction such as merger tender offer or sale of all or substantially all of our assets that might

provide premium price for holders of our securities

Our stockholders have limited control over changes jet our policies and operations which increases the uncertainty and risks our stockholders face

Our board of direótors determines our major policies includingotir policies regarding financing growth debt capitalization REIT qualification and distributions Our board of

directors may amend Or revise these add other policiesWithouta vote of the stockholders Under the Maryland General Corporation Law and our charter our stockholders have

right to vote only on limited matters Our boards broad discretion in setting policies
and our stockhOlders inability to exert control over those policies increases the uncertainty

and risks our stockholders face

Our stockholders may not be able to sell their shares under our share repurchase program and if they are able to sell their shares under the program they

may not be able to recover the amount of their investment in our shares

Our share repurchase program includes numerous restrictions that limit our stockholders ability to sell their shares During any calendar year we may purchase no more than

5.0% of the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the prior calendar year Our stockholders must hold their shares for at least one year
in order to participate in

the share repurchase program except
for
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repurcbases soughtupon stockholders death or qualitying disability The cash available for redemption on any particular date is generally limited to the proceeds from the

DRP during the periodconsisting of the preceding four fiscal quarters for which financial statementa are available less any cash alreadyused for redemptions during the same

period however subject to the limitations described above we may use other sources ofcash at the discretion of our board of directors These limitations do not however

appty
to repurchase sought upon stockholders death or qualitying disability Only those stockholders who purchased their shares from us or received their shares from us

directly or indirectly through one or more non-cash transactions may be able to participate in theshare repurchase progrsm In other words once our shares are transferred for

value by stockholder the trsnsferee and all
subsequent holders the shares are not eligible to participate in the share

repurchase program These limits may prevent us from

sccommothting all
repurchase requests

made in any year These restrictions would severely limit your ability to sell your shares should you require liquidity and would limit your

ability to recover the valise you invested Our board is free to amend suspend or terminate the share repurchase program upon 30 days notice

Our stockholders interests in us will be diluted
if we issue additional shares which could reduce the overall value of our stockholders investment

Our common stockholders do not have preemptive rights to any shares we issue in the future Our charter authorizes us to issue 1010000000 shares of capital stock of

which 1000000000 shares are designated as common stock and 10000000 shares are designated as preferred stock Our board of directors may amend our charter to

increase or decrease the number of authorized shares of capital stock or the number of shares of stock of any class or series that we have authority to issue without stockholder

approval After our investors purchase shares in our offering our board may elect to sell additional shares in this or future public offerings issue
equity

interests in

private offerings issueshare-based awards to our independent directors or to our officers or employees or to the officers or employees of the Advisor or Sub-advisor or any

of their affiliates issue shares to the Advisor or Sub-advisor or its successors or assigns in payment of an outstanding fee obligation or issue shares of our common

stock to sellers of properties or assets we acquire in conneetion with an exchange of limited partnership interests of the Operating Partnership To the extent we issue additional

equity interests after our investors purchase shares in our offering their percentage ownership interest in us will be diluted In addition depending upon the terms and pricing of

any additional offerings and the value of our real estate investments our investors may also expenence dilution in the book value and fair value of their shares

Payment offees to the Advisor the Sub-advisor and their respective affiliates reduce cash available for investment and distribution and increases the risk

that our stockholders will not be able to recover the amount of their investments in our shares

The Advisor the Sub-advisor and their respective affiliates perform services for us in connection with the sale of shares in our offering the seleeion and acquisition of our

investments the management and leasing of our properties and the administration of our other investments We pay them substantial fees for these services which results in

immediate dilution to the value of our stockholders investments and reduces the amount of cash available for investment or distribution to stockholders Depending primarily

upon the number of shares we tell in our offering and assuming $10.00 purchase price for shares sold in the primary offering and $9.50 purchase price for shares sold under

the dividend reinvestment plan we estimate that approximately 87.2% of the
gross proceeds will be available to make investments in real estate propertiesâsid other real estate-

related loans and securities We will use the remainder of the offering proceeds to pay the costs of our offering including selling commissions and the dealer manager fee and to

pay fee to the Advisor and the Sub-advisor for their services in connection with the selection acquisition and financing of properties and to repurchase shares of our common

stock under our share repurchase program

These fees and other payments also increase the risk that our stockholders will not be able to resell their shares at ptofit even if our shares are listed on national securities

exchange

If are unable to obtain funding for future capital needs cash distributions to our stockholdets and the value of our investments could decline

When tenants do not renew their leases or otherwise vacate their apace we will often need to expend substantial funds for improvements to the vacated
space

in order to attract

replacement tenants Even when tenants do renewtheir leases we may agree to snake improvements to their
space as part

of ournegotiation If we need additional
capital in the

filiure to improve or maintain our properties or for any other reason we may have to obtain financing from sources beyond oui funds from operations such asborrowinga or

future eqinty offerings These sources of funding may not be available on attractive terms or at all If we cannot procure additional funding for capital improvements our

investments may generate lower cash flows or decline in value or both which would limit our ability to make distributions to Our stockholders and could reduce the value of

your investment
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Although we are not currently afforded the protection of the Maryland General Corporatthn Law relating to deterring or defending hostile takeovers our

board of directors could opt into these provisions of Maryland law in the future which may disirourage others from trying to acquire control of us and

may prevent our stockhoi1lers from receiving premium price for their stock in connection with business combination

Under Maryland law business combinations betweuna Maryland corporation and certain interested stockholders or affiliates of interested stockholders are prohibited for five

years
after the most recent date on which the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder These business combinations include merger consolidation share

exchange or in cireuinstances
specified

in the statute an asset transfer or issuance or reclassification of
equity

securities Also under Maryland law control shares of Maryland

corporation acquired in control share acquisition have no voting rights except to the extent approved by stockholders by vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast on

the matter Shares owned by the acquirer an officer of the corporation or an employee of the corporation who is also director of the
corporation are excluded from the vote on

whether to accord voting rights to the control shares Shouldour board opt into these provisions of Maryland law it may discourage others from trying to acquire control of us

and increase the difficulty of ronsummating any offer Similarly provisions of Title Subtitle of the Maryland General Corporation Law could provide similar anti-takeover

protection

General Risks Related to Insestments in Real Estate

Economic and regulatory changes that impact the real estate market generally may decrease the value of out investments and weaken our operating

resull

Our properties and their performance are subject to the risks typically associated with real estate including

downturns in national regional and local economic conditions

increased competition for real estate assets targeted by our investment strategy

adverse local corditions such aa oversupply or reduction in demand for similar
properties

in an area and changes in real estate zoning laws that may reduce the

desirability of rest estate in so area

vacancies changirs in market rental rates and the need to periodically repair renovate and re-let space

changes in mtere rates and the availability of permanent mortgage financmg which may render the sale of
property or loan difficult or unattractive

changes in tax rial estate environmental and zoning laws

periods of high interest rates and tight money supply and

the illiquidity of real estate investments generally

Any of the above factors or combination thereof could result in decrease in the vlue of our investments which would have an adverse effect on our operations on our

ability to pay distributions to our stockholders and on the value of our stockholders investments

We depend on our tenants for revenue and accordingly our revenue and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders is dependent upon the

success and economic viability of our tenants

We depend upon tenants for rei enue Rising vacancies across commercial real estate have resulted in increased pressure on real estate investors and their property managers to

find new tenants and keep existing tenants property may incur vacancies esther by the expiration of tenant lease the continued default of tenant under its lease or the early

termination of lease by tenant If vacancies continue for long period of time we may suffer reduced revenues resulting in less cash available to distribute to stockholders In

order to mamtain tenants we may have to offer inducements such as free rent and tenant improvements to compete for attractive tenants In addition if we are unable to attract

additional or replacement tenants the resale value of the
property

could be diminished even below our cost to
acquire

the
property

because the market value of particular

property depends principally upon the value of the cash flow generated by the leases associated with that property Such reduction on the resale value of
property could also

reduce the value of our stockholders investments

Retail conditions may advesely affect our base rent and subsequently our income

Some of our leases may provide for base rent plus contractual base rent increases number of our retail leases may also include percentage rent clause for additional rent

above the base amount based upon specified percentage
of the sales our tenants generate Under those leases that contain percentage rent clauses our revenue from tenants may

increase as the sales of our tenat.ts increase
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Generally retailers face declining revenues during downturns in the economy As result the portion of our revenue which we may derive from percentage rent leases could

decline upon general economic downturn

Our revenue will be affected by the success and economic viability of our anchor retail tenants Our reliance on single or significant tenants in certain

buildings may decrease our ability to lease vacated space and adversely affect
the returns on our stockholders investments

In the retail
sector tenant occupying all or large portion of the gross leasable area ofa retail center commolily referred to as-an anchor tenant may become msolvenç may

suffer downturn in business or may decide not to renewits lease Any of these events would result in reduction or cessation in rental payments to us and would
adversely

affect our financial condition Alease termination by an anchor tenant couldresult in leaseterminations orredtictions in rent by othertenants whose-leases maypermit cancellation

or rent reduction if another tenants lease is terminated In such event we may be unable to re-lease the vacated space Similarly
the leases of some anchor tenants may permit the

anchor tenant to transfer its lease to another retailer The transfer to new anchor tenant could cause customer traffic in the retail center to decrease and
thereby reduce the

income generated by that retail center lease transfer to new anchor tenant could also allow other tenants to make reduced rental payments or to terminate their leases In the

event that we are unable to re-lease the vacated
space

to new anchor tenant we may incur additional
expenses

in order to re-model the
space to be able to re-lease the space to

morethan ônetenant -- -- ---
--

The recent economic downturn and weak recovery in the United States has had an adverse impact on the retail industry generalIy Slow or negative

growth in the retail industry could result in defaults by retail tenants which could have an adverse impact on our financial operations

The recent economic downturn and weak recovery in the United States has had an adverse impact on the retail industry generally continuation of adverse economic conditions

would result in an increase in distressed or bankrtipt retail companies which in turn would result in an increase in defaults by tenants at our commercial properties Additionally

slow economic growth would likely binder new entrants-into -the retail market which would make it difficult for us Id fullylease the real properties thatwe plan to acquire Tenant

defaults and decreased demand for retail space would have an adverse impact on the value of the retail properties that we plan to acquire and our results of operations

We anticipate that our properties will consist primarily of retail properties Our performance therefore Is linked to the market for retail space generally

The market for retail
space has been and could be adversely affected by weaknesses in the national regional and local economies theadverse financial condition of some large

retailing companies the ongoing consolidation in the retail sector excess amounts of retail space in number of markets and competition for tenants with other shopping centers

in our markets Customer traffic to these shopping areas maybe adversely affected by the closing of stores in the sarneshopping center orby eaduction intraffic-tosuch stores

resulting from regional economic downturn general downturn in the local area where our store is located or adeŁline in the desirability of-the shopping envirotitnent of

particular shopping center Such reduction in customer traffic eould have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

high concentration of our properties in aparticular geographic area or with tenants in similarindustry would magnify the effects of downturns in

that geographic area or industry
--

We expect that our pEoperties will be diverse
according to geographic area and industry of our tenants HOwever in the event that-we have concentration of properties in any

particular geographic area any adverse situation that
disproportionately

affects that
geographic area would have magnified adverse effect on our portfoho Similarly if tenants of

our properties are concentrated ma certain industry or retail category any adverse effect on that industry generally would have disproportionately adverse effect on our

portfolio

Our retail tenants face competition from numerous retail channels which may reduce our profitability and ability to pay distributions

Retailers at our properties
thee continued

competition
from discount or value retailers

factory
outlet centers wholesale clubs mail order

catalogues
and

operators television

shopping networks and Internet shopping Such competition could adversely affect our tenants and consequently our revenues and funds available for distribution

If we enter into long-term leases with retail tenants those leases may not result in fair value over time

Long-term leases do not allow for significant changes in rental payments and do not expire in the near term If we do not-accurately judge the potential for increases inmarket

rental rates when negotiating these long-term leases significant increases in future property
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operating costs could result in receiving less than fair value from these leases Such circumstances would adversely sffect-our rçvenues and funds available for distribution

The bankruptcy or insolvency of major tenant may adversely impact our operations and our ability to pay distributions to stockholders

The bankruptcy or insolvency of significant tenant or number of smaller tenants may have an adverse impact.on financial con4ition and our ability to pay distributions-to our

stockholders Generally under bankruptcy law debtor tenant has 120 days to exercise the option of assuming or rejecting the obligations under any unexpired lease for

nonresidential real property which period may be extended once by the bankruptcy court If the tenant assumes its lease the tellant must cure all defaults under the lease and

may be required to provide adequate assurance of its future performance undei3 the tease If the tenant rejects the lease we will have claim
against

-the tenants bapknsptcy

estate Although rent owing for the
period between filing for bankruptcy and rejection

of the lease may be afforded administrative expense ptionty
and

paid full pre bankruptcy

arrears and amounts owing under the remaining tern of the lease will be afforded general unsecured claim status absent collateral securing the claim Moreover amounts owing

under tjse remaining term of the lease will be capped Other than equity and subordinated-claims general unsecured claims are the last claims paid ins bankruptcy and therefore

ftindsmaynotbeavailabletopayauchclaimsinfisll

Competition with third parties in acquiring properties and other investments may reduce our profitability and the return on our stockholders investments

We face competition from vanous entitiesfor investment opportunities in retail properties including other REITs pension funds insurance companies investment funds and

companies partnerships and developers Many of these entities have substantially greater
financial resources than we do and-may be able to.ct more-risk than we can

prudently manage including risks with
respect to the creditworthiness of tenant or the geographic location of its investments Competition from these entities may reduce the

number-of suitable investment
opportunities offered to us or increase the bargaining power of property owners seeking to

--

Properties that have sigs4/i cant vacanciescould be difficult to sell which could diminish the return on these properties

property may incur vacancies either by the expiration of tenant lease the continued default of tenant under its lease or the early termination of lease by tenant If

vacancies contmue for along period of time we may suffer reduced revenues resulting less cash available to distribute to stockholders In addition the resale value of the

property
could be diminished because the market value of

particular property depends principally upon the value of the cash flow generated by the leases associated with that

property Such reduction on the-resale value of
property could also reduce the value of our stockholders investtnents

Changes in supply of or demand for similar real properties in particular area may increase the price of real properties we seek-to purchase and decrease

the price of real properties when we seek to sell them

The real estate industry
is

subject to market forces We are unable to predict ôertain market changes including changes in
supply of or demand for similar real properties in

particulararea Any potential purchase of an overpriced asset could decrease our-rate of return on these investments and resultin lower operating results and overall returns to

our stockholders

We may be unable to adjusi our portfolio in response to changes-in economic or other conditions or eil property or when we decide to do so limiting

our ability to pay cash distributions to our stockholders

Many factors that are beyond our control affect the real estate market and could affect our ability tosell properties for the price on the terms or within the time frame that we

desire These factors include general economic conditions the availability of financing interest rates and other factors including supply and demand Because real estate

investments are relatively illiquid we have limited ability to vary our-portfolio in response to changes in economic or other conditions Further before we can sell property on

the terms we want it may be necessary to expend funds to correct defects or to make improvements However we can give no assurance that we will have the funds available to

correct such defects or to make such improvements We may be unable to sell our properties at profit Our inability to sell properties at the time and on the termt we want

could reduce our cash flow and limit our ability to make-distributions to our stockholders and could reduce the value of our stockholders invslinents Moreover in
acquiring

property we may agree
to restrictions that

prohibit
the sale of that

property
for

period
of time or impose other reatrictions such as limitation on the amount of debt that can

be placed or repaid on that
property

We cannot predict
the

length of time needed to find swilling purchaser and to close the sale of property Our ipability to sell property

when we desire to do so may cause us to reduce our selling price for the property Any delay in our receipt of proceeds or diminishment of proceeds from the sale of

property could adversely impact our ability to pay distributions to our stocitholders
--

18



We may.acquire orfinancepropees with lock-out.provisions which may prohibit usfrom selling aprope or may equire us to maintain speced
debt levels for period of years on some properties

lock-Out provision isa provision that prohibits the prepayment of loan during specitledperiod of timeLock-dut provisions may include terms that provide strongfinancial

disincentiesfir borrowers toprepay their.outstanding loan balanceand exist inerder to protect the yield expectations of lendefs..We expect thatmany of ourpropertieswifl be

subject to lockoutprovlsions Lock-out provisions couldmateriaily restrict.us from selling orotherwise disposing of or refinan
ingpropetties when we may desiretdo so

Lock-out provisions may prohibit us from
reducing

the
outstanding indebtednesswith respect to any properties refinancing such indebtedness on nonrecourse basis at

unaturity or increasing the amount of indebtedness with respect to such properties Lock-out provisions could impair our abilitytb take otheractionsduring the lockOut period

that could be in the best interests oour stockholders and therefore may have an adverse impact on the value of ourshares relative to the value that would result ifthelock-out

provisions did not exist In particular lock-out provisions .couldpreclude us from participating in majortransactions that could result in disposition of ourasseta or change in

control even though that dispositionorchange incontrol might be in the best interests of our stockholders..

If we sell aproperty by providing financing to the purchaser we will bear the risk of defau1tbyth1epurchaser
which could delay or reduce the

distributions available to our stockholders

If we decide to sell any of our properties we intend to use ourbestefforts to sell them for cash however in some instances welBay sell our properties by providing fmancing

to purchasers When we provide financing to purchaser we will bear the risk that the purchaser may default which could reduce our cash distributions to stockholders Even

in eabsenceofa purchaser default the distribution of the.proceeds of the sale to our stockholders pr the reinvestment of the procçeds in other assets will be delayed until the

promissory notes or other property we may accept upon sale are actually paid sold refinanced or otherwise disposed In some cases we may receive initial down payments

cash and other property in the
year

of sale in an amount less than the selling price and subsequent payments will be spread over number of years If any purchaser defaults

under financing arrangement wsti us it could nqgatively impact our ability to pa cash distributions to our stockholders

Potential devcloprnentand contruttion dlays and resultant increased .cost and risks may hinder our Dperating results and decrease our net incone

We may from time to tune acquire ummprovedieal property orproperties
that are under development or construction Investments such

properties are subject to the

uncertainties associated with the development and construction of real property including those related tore zoning land for development environmental concerns of

governmental entities or community groups and our builders ability to build in conformity with plans specifications budgeted costs and timetables If builder fails to perform

we may resort to legal action to rescind the purchase or the riusistriietion contract orto compel perfOmiance.Abili1ders pŁsfoiin snce inay also bŁafTected or delayed by

conditions beyond the builder control Delays in cnmpletmg construction could also
give tenants the qght to terminate preconstruction leases We may mcur additional nsks

when we make
periodic progress payments or other advances to builders before they complete construction These and other factors can result in incprased costs of project or

loss of our investment

In addition we will be subject to normal lease-up risks relating to.newly constructed projects We also must rely on rental income and expense projections and estimates of the fair

market value of property upon completion of construction when agreeing upon purchase price at the time we acquire the property If our projections are inaccurate we may

paytoomtichforaproperty ôtiburinvestinŁntcouIdstiffer

.19



If we contract with development company for newly developed property our earnest money deposit made to the development company may not be fully

refundeS

We may enter into one or more contracts either directly or indirectly through joint ventures with affiliates or others toacquire real
property

from development company that

is engaged in congtruction-and development of commercial real properties Properties acquired from adevelopment company may be either existing income-producing properties

properties to be developed or pioperties under development We anticipate thatwewill be obligated to pay substantial earnest money-deposit at the time-of contracting to acquire

such properties In the
case.olproperties to be developed by a-development company we anticipate that we will be requiredto close the purchase-of the propertyupon completion

of the development of the propert At the time of contracting and the paymentof the earnest money deposit by us the development-company typically will not have-acquired
title

to any real property Typically the development-company-will only have contract to acquire land development agreement to develop building on the land and an agreement

with oneor-more tenants to lease all or part of the property upon its completion We may enter into such-a contract-with-the development company even jfatthe time weenter

into the contract we have not yet raised sufficient proceeds in our offering to enable us to close the purchase of such-property However we may not be required to close

purchase
from the development company and may be entitled to refund of our eaxnest money in the following circumstances

the development company fails to develop the property

all or specified portion of the pre-leased tenants fail to take possession under their leases for any reason or

we are unable to ruse sufficient proceeds from our offering to pay the purchase price
at

closing

The obligation of the development company to refund our earnest money will be unsecured and we may not be able to obtain refund of such earnest mdneydeposit from it

under these circumstances since the development company may bean entity without substantial assets or operations

Our joint venture partners could take actions that decrease the value of an investment to us and lower our stockholders overall return

We have entered into the Joint Venture and
thay enter into additional jOint venfures with thirdparties inclnding entities that ar iiaiºdwiththØAdviorOr Stib-ailvisor to

acquire properties and other assets We may also purchase and develop properties in joint ventures or in
partnerships

co-tenancies or other co-ownership arrangements with the

sellers of the properties afflliatt of the sellers developers or other persons Such investments may mvolve risics not otherwise
present

with other methods of investment

including for example the following risks

that our co venturcr co tenant or partner in an investment could become insolvent or bankrupt

that such co4enturer co-tenant or partner may atady time have economic or business-interests or goals thatare or that become inconsistent with our business

interests or goals
---

that such co-venturer co-tenant or partner may be in position to take action contrary to our instructions or requests or contras to our policies or objectives

the possibility
that we may incur liabilities ass result of an action taken by such co-venturer co-tetiant or partner

--- --

that disputes betwe onus and Co venturer co tenant or partner may result in htigation or arbitration that would increase our expenseand prevent our officers and

directors from focusing their time and effort on our business

the possibility that if we have right offing refusal or buy/sell right to buy out co-venturer co-owner or partner we maybe unable to finance such buy-out if

it becomes exercisable or we may be required to purchase such-interest at time when it would not otherwise be in our best interest to do so or

the possibility that we may not be able to sell our interest in the joint venture ifwe desire to exit the joint venture

Under certain Joint venture arrangements neither venture partner may have the power to control the venture and an impasse could be reached which might have negative

influence on the joint venture and decrease potential returns to our stockholders hi addition to the extent that our venture partner or co-tenant is an affiliate of the Advisor or

Sub-advisor certain conflicts of interest will exist Any of the above might subject property to liabilities in excess of those contemplated and thus reduce our returns on that

investment and the value of our tockholders investments
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We may obtain only limited warranties when we purchase property and would have only limited recourse in the event our due diligence did not identify

any issues that lower the value of our property

The seller ofa property often sells such property in its axis condition on where is basis and with all faults without any wanant es of
merchantability or fitness for

particular use or purpose In addition purchase agreements may contain only limited warranties representations and indemnifications that will
only survive fora limited period

after the closing The purchase of properties with limited warranties increases the risk that we may lose some or all of our invested capital in the property as well as the loss of

rental income from that property

CCRs may restrict our ability to operate aproperty

We expect that some of our properties will be contiguous to other parcels of real property comprising part
of the same retail center in connection with such

properties we will

be subject to significant covenants conditions and restrictions known as CCRs restricting the operation of such properties and any improvements on such properties and

related to granting easements on such properties Moreover he.operation and management of the contiguous properties may impact suqh properties Compliance with CCRs
may adversely affect our operating costs and reduce the amount of funds that we have available to pay distributions to our stockholders

If we set aside insufficient capital reserves we may required to defer necessary capiwiimproveinents

If we dp not have enough reserves for capital to supply needed funds for capital improvements throughout the life of the investment ins property and there is insufficient cash

available from our operations we may be required to defer
necessary improvements to property which may cause that property

to suffer from
greater

risk of obsolescence

or decline in value or greater
risk of decreased cash flow as result of fewer potential tenants being attracted to the property If this happens we may not be able to maintain

projected rental rates for affected properties and our results of
operations may be

negatively impacted

Our operating expenses may increase in the future and to the extent such increases cannot be passed on to tenants our cash flow and our operating

results would decrease

Operating expenses such as expenses for fuel utilities labor and insurance are not fixed and may increase in the future There is no guarantee that we will be able to
pass

such

increases on to our tenants Tn the extent such igcreases cannot be passed on to tenants any such increase would cause our cash flow and our operating results to decrease

Our real properties are subject to property taxes that may increase in the future which could adversely affrct our cash flow

Our real
properties are sulect to real

property taxes that may ncrease as tax rates chaqge and as the real properties are asesse4 or reassesse4 by taxing authorities We anticipate

that certain of our leases wlll
generally provide

that the
property tazes or increases therein are charged to the lessees as an expense related to the real properties that they occupy

while other leases will
generally provide that we are responsible for such taxes In any case as the owner of the properties we are ultimately responsible for payment of the taxes

to the
applicable government authorities If real property taxes increase our tenants may be unable to make the required tax payments ultimately requiring us to pay the taxes

even if otherwiae stated under the terms of the lease If we fail to pay any such taxes the applicable taxing authority may place lien on thp real property and the real property

may be subject to tax sale in addition we are generally responsible formal property taxes related to any vacant space

Uninsured losses relating to real property or excessively expensive premiums for insurance coverage could reduce our cash flows and the return on our

stockholders investments

We will attempt to adequately insure all of our real properties against casualty losses There are types of losses gcnerally catastrophic in nature such as losses due to wars acts

of terrorism earthquakes..floods hurricanes polltion or environmental matters that are uninsurable or not economically insurable or may be insured subject to limitations

such as large deductibles or co-payments insurance risks associated with potential acts of terrorism could sharply increase the premiums we pay.for coverage against property

and casualty claims Additionally mortgage lenders in some cases have begun to insist that commercial
property owners purchase coverage against terrorism as condition for

providing mortgage loans Such insurance policies may not be available at reasonable costs if at all which could inhibit our ability to finance or refinance our properties In such

instances we may be required to provide other financial support either through financial assurances or stlf.insurance to cover potential losse We may not have adequate or

any coverage for such losses Changes in the cost or availability of insurance could expose us to uninsured casualty losses If any of our properties incurs casualty loss that is

not
fully insured the value of our assets will be reduced by any such urshisured loss which may reduce the value of our stockholders investments In addition other than any

working capital reserve or other reserves we may establish we have nosource of funding to repair or reconstruct any uninsured property Also to the extent we must pay

unexpectedly large amounts for insurance we couldsuffer reduced earnings
that would result in lower distributions to stockholders The Terrorisni
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Risk Insurance Act of 2002 is designed for sharing of terrorismiosses between insurance companies and the federal government We cannot be certain how this act will impact

us or what additional cost to us if any could result

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the markets in which sac plan to operate which could delay or hinder our ability to meet our

investment objectives and reduce our stuckholders overall return

Terrorist attacks or armed conflicts may directly impact the value of our properties through damage destruction loss or increased security costs We
expect

that we will invest in

major metropolitan areas We may not be able to obtain insurance against the risk of terrorism because it may not be available or may not be available on terms that are

economically feasible The terrorism insurance that we obtain may not be sufficient to cover loss for damages to our properties as result of terrorist attacks The inability to

obtain sufficient terrorism insuraiice or any terrorism insurance at all could limit our investment options as some mortgage lenders have begun to insist that specific coverage

against
terrorism be purchased by commercial owners as condition of providingloans

Costs of complying with governmental laws and regulations related to en virØnmental protection alid human health and safety may reduce our net income

and the cash available for distributions to our stockholders

Real property and the operations conducted on real
property are subject to federal State and local laws arid regulations relating to proteion of the environment and hutnan

health We could be subject to liability in the form of fines penalties or damages for noncompliance with these laws and regulations These laws and regulations generally govern

wastewater discharges air emissions they
operation

and removal of underground and
above-grourid storage tanks the use storage treatment transportation and disposal of

solid and hazardous materials the remediation of contamination associated with the release or disposal of solid and hazardous materials thepresence of toxic building materials

and other health and safety-related concems

Some of these laws and regulations may impose joint and several liability on the tenants owners or
operators

of real
property

for the coats to investigate or remediate

contaminated properties regardless of fault whether the contamination occurred prior to purchase or whether the acts causing thecontamination were legal Our tenants

operations the condition of
properties at the time we buy them operations

in the vicinity of our properties such as the presence of underground storage tanks or activities of

unrelated third pasties may affect our properties

The presence
of hazardous substances or the failure to properly manage or remediatethese tubstances may hinder our abilityto sell rent or pledge such property as collateral

for future borrowings Environmental laws also may impose liens on property or restrictions on the manner in which property may be used or businesses may be operated and

these restrictions may require substantial Cxpenditures or pinvent us from entering into leases withprospective tenants that inay be impacted by such laws Some of theta laws

and regulations have been amended so as to require compliance with new or more stringent standards as of future dates Compliance with new or more stringent laws or

regulations or stricter interpretation of existing laws may require us to incur material expenditures Future laws ordinances or regulations may impose msterialerivironmental

liability Any material etpenditures fines penalties or damages we must pay will reduce our ability
to make distributions and

utay
reduce the value of our stockholders

investments

The costs of defending againet claims of environmental liability or ofpayingpersonal injury claims could reduce the amoiinis available for distribution

to our stockholders

Environmental laws
provide

for sanctions for noncompliance and maybe enforced by governmental agencies or in certain circumstattces by private parties Certaitt environmental

laws and common law
principles

could be used to impose liability for the release of and
exposure to hazardous substances including asbestos-contamlStg

materials and lead-based

paint Third parties may seek reccveiy from real property owners or operators for personal injusy or property damage associated with exposure to released hazardous

substances The costs of defundicq against claims of environmental liability or of paying personal injusy claims could reduce the amOuntsavailable for distribution to our

stockholders Generally we expect that the real estate properties that we acquire will have been subject toPhaae environmental assessments at the time they were acquired

Phase environmental assessment or site assessment is an initial environmental investigation to identify potential environmental liabilities associated witlithe current and past uses of

given property

Costs associated with complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act may decreaae cash available for distributions

Our properties may be subject to the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended Under the Disabilities Act all places of public accommodation are required to comply

with federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons The Disabilities Act has separate compliance requirements for public accommodations and commercial

facilities that generally require that buildings and services be made accessible and available to people with disabilities The Disabilities Acts requirements could require removal of

access barriers and could result in the
imposition

of injunctive relief monetary penalties or in some cases an award of damages We will
attempt

to acquire properties
that

comply with the ADA or place the burden on the seller or other third party such as tenant to ensure compliance with the ADA We cannot assure our stockholders that we

will be able to acquire
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properties or allocate-responsibilities
in this manner Any of our funds used for Disabilities Act cosispliance will reduce our net income and the amount of cash available for

distributions to our stockholders

The failure of any bank in which we deposit ousfunds could reduce the amount Of tashwe haveavailable to pay distributions and make additional

investments

We intend to diversify our cash and cash equivalents among veral banking institutions in an attempt
to minimize

exposure
to any one of these entities However the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation or FDIC only insures amounts up to $250000 per depositor per
insured bank We expect to have cash and cash

equivalents
and restricted

cash deposited in certain financial institutions in excess of federally insured levels If any of the banking institutions in which we have
deposited

funds
ultimately fails we may lose

our deposits over $250000 The loss of Our deposits could reduce the amount of caslrwe have available to distribute or invest and could result in decline in the value of our

stockholders inveatnimits

Risks Related to Real Estate-Related Jiivestntents

Our investments in mortgage mezzanine bridge and ether loans as well as our investments in mortgage-backed securities collateralized debt obligations

and other debt may be affected by unfavoritbie-real estate market conditions which could decrease the value of those assets and the return on your

investmenL

If we make or invest in mortgage mezzanine or other real estate-related loans we will be at risk of defaults by the borrowers on those loans These defaults may be caused by

many conditions beyond our control including interest rate levels and local and other economic conditions affecting real estate values We will not know whether the values of the

properties ultimately securing our loans will remain at the levels existing on the dates of origination of those loans If the values of the underlying properties drop our risk will

increase because of the lower value of the security associatedwith-such losna Our investments in mortgage-backed securities collateralized debt obligations and other real estate-

related debt will be similarly affected by-real estate snarket conditions

If we make or invest in mortgage mezzanine bridge or other real estate-related loans our loans will be subject to interest ratefiuctuations that will
affect

our returns as compared to market interest rates accordingly the value of your Investment would be subject to fluctuations in interest rates

If we make or invest in flxed-rate long-term loans and interest rates rise the loans could yield return that is lower than then-currentmarket rates If interest rates deerease we

will be adversely affected to the extent that loans are prepaid because we may not be able to make new loans at the higher interest rate If we invest in variable-rate-loans and

interest rates decrease our revenues will also deerease For these reasons if we invest in mortgage mezzanine bridge or other real estate-related loans our retains on those

loans and the value of your investment will be subject to fluctuations in interest rates

We have not established-investment criteria limiting geographical concentration of our mortgage investments orrequiring minimum credit quality of
borrowers

We have not established any limit upon the geographic concentration of
properties securing mortgage loans

acquired or originated by us or the credit
quality of borrowers of

uninsured mortgage assets acquired or originated by us As result properties securing our mortgage loans may be overly concentrated in certain geographic areas and the

underlying borrowers of our uninsured mortgage assets may have low credit quality We may-bxperience losses due to geographic concentration or low credit quality

Mortgage investments that are not United States government insured and non-investment-grade mortgage assets invftlve risk of loss

We may originate and acquire uninsured and non-investment-grade mortgage loans and mortgage assets including mezzanine loans as
part

of our investment
strategy

While

holding these interests we will be subject to risks of borrower defaults bankruptcies fraud and losses and special hazard losses that are not covered by standard hazard

insurance Also the costs of financing the mortgage loans could exceed the return on the mortgage loans In the event of any default under mortgage loans held by us we will

bear the risk of loss of principal and non-payment of interest and fees to the extent of any deficiency between the vsluIof the mortgage collateral and the
principal amount of the

mortgage loan To the extent we suffer such losses with
respect

to our investments in mortgage loans the value of our stockholders investments maybe adversely affected

We may invest in non-recourse loans which will limit our recovery to the value of the mortgaged property

Our mortgage loan assets may be non-recourse loans With respect to our non-recourse mortgage loan assets in the event of borrower default the specific mortgaged

property and other assets if any pledged to secure the relevant mortgage loan may be less than the amount owed under the mortgage loan As to those mortgage loan assets

that provide for recourse against the borrower and its
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assets generally we cannot assure our stockholders that the recourse will provide recovery
in respect of defaulted mortgage loan greater than the liquidation value of the

mortgaged property securing that mortgage loan

Interest rate fluctuations will affect tire value of our mortgage asseta net income and common stocL

Interest rates are highly sensitive 10 many factors including governmental monetary and tax policies domestic and international economic and political
considerations and other

factors beyond our control Interest rate fluctuations can adversely affect our income in many ways and present variety of risks including the risk of variances in the yield curve

mismatch between asset yields and borrowing rates and changing prepayment rates

Variances in the
yield curve may reduce our net income The

relationship
between short-term and longer-term interest rates is often referred to as the yield curve Short-term

interest rates are ordinarily lower than longer-term interest rates If short-tern interest rates rise disproportionately relative to longer-term interest rates flattening of the yield

curve our borrowing costs may increase more rapidly than the interest income earned on our assets Because our assets may bear interest based on longer-term rates than our

borrowings flattening of the yield curve would tend to decrease our net income and the market value of our mortgage loan assets

Additionally to the extent cash flows from investments that return scheduled and unscheduled
principal arc reinvested in mortgage loans the spread between the yields of the new

investments and available borrowaig rates may decline which would likely decrease our net income It is also possible that short tern interest rates may exceed longer term

interest rates yield curve inversion in which event our borrowing costs may exceed our interest income and we could incur operating losses

Prepayment rates on our mortgage loans may adversely affect ouryields

The value of our mortgage loan assets may be affected by prepayment rates on investments Prepayment rates are influenced by changes in current interest rates and variety of

economic geographic and other fsctors beyond our control and consequently such prepayment rates cannot be predicted with certainty To the extent we originate mortgage

loans we expect that such mortgage loans will have measure of protection from prepayment in the form of prepayment lock-out periods or prepayment penalties 1-lowever this

protection may not be available with respect to investments that we acquire but do not originate In periods of declining mortgage interest rates prepayments on mortgages

generally increase If general interest rates decline as well the proceeds of such prepayments received during such periods are likelr to be reinvested by us in assets yielding less

than the yields on theinvestments that were prepald In addition the market value of mortgage investments may because of the risk of prepayment benefit less from declining

interest rates than from other fixed-income securities Conversely in
periods

of
rising

interest rates prepayments on mortgages generally decrease in which case we would not

have the prepayment proceeds available to invest in assets with higher yields Under certain interest rate and prepayment scenarios we may fail to fully recoup our cost of

acqwsition of certain investments

Before making any investment we will consider the expected yield of the investment and the factors that may influence the yield actually obtained on such investment These

considerations will affect our decision whether to originate or purchase such an investment and the price offered for such an investment No assurances can be given that we can

make an accurate assessment of the yield to be produced by an investment Many factors beyond our control are likely to influence the yield on the investments including but

not limited to competitive
conditions in the local real estate market local and general

economic conditions and the
quality

of management of the underlying property Our inability

to accurately assess investment ylds may result in our purchasing assets that do not perform as well as expected which may adversely affect the value of our stockholders

investments

Volatility of values of mortgaged properties may adversely affect our mortgage loans

Real estate property values and net operating income derived from real estate properties are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by number of factors including

the risk factors described in this report relating to general economic conditions and owning real estate investments In the event its net operating income decreases borrower may

have difficulty paying our mortgage loan which could result in losses to us Inadditiosi decreases in property values reduce the value of the collateral and the potential proceeds

available to borrower to repay our mortgage loans which could also causeus to suffer losses

Mezzanine loans involve greater risks of loss than senior loans secured by income producing properties

We may make and acquire mezzanine loans These types of mortgage loans are considered to involve higher degree of risk than long-term senior mortgage lending secured by

income-producing real property due to variety of factors including the loan being entirely unsecured or if secured becoming unsecured as result of foreclosure by the

senior lender We may not recover some or all of our investment in these loans In addition mezzanine loans may have higher loan-to-value ratios than conventional mortgage

loans resulting in less eqwty infhe property and increasing the risk of loss of principal
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Our investments in subordinated loans and subordinated mortgage-backed securities may be subject to losses

We may acquire or originate subordinated loans and invest in subordinated mortgage-backed securities in the event borrower defaults on subordinated loan and lacks

sufficient assets to satisiour loan we may-suffra loss of principal ormterest In the event bOrrower declares bankruptcy we may not have full recourse to the assetsof the

bojrower or the assets of the borrower may not be sufficient to satis the loan If.a borrower defaults on our loan or on debt senior to our loan or in the event of borrower

bankruptcy our loan will be satisfied only after the seniordebt is paid-in full Where debt senor to our loan exists the presence of intercreditor arrangements may limit our

ability to amend our loan documents assign our loans accept prepayments elercise our remedies through standstill penods and control decisions made in bankruptcy

proceedings relating to borrowers

The CMBS in which we may invest are subject to all of the risks of the underlying mortgage loans and the risks of the securitization process

CMBS or commercial mortgage-backed securities are securities that evidence interests in or are secured by single commercial mortgage loan or pool of commercial-

mortgage loans Accordingly these securities are subject to all of the risks of the underlying mortgage loans

Ins rising interest rate environment the value of CMBS maybe adversely affected when payments on underlying mortgages do not occur as anticipated resulting in the

extension of the securitys effective maturity and the related increase in interest rate sensitivity of longer-term instrument The value of CMBS may also-change due to shifts in

the markets perception of issuers and regulatory or tax changes adversely affecting.the mortgage securities market as whole In addition CMBS are subject to the credit risk

associated with the performance of the
underlying mortgage properties

In certain instances third-party guarantees or other forms of credit
support can reduce the credit risk

CMBS are also
subject to several risks created through the securitization process Subordinate CMBS are paid interest only to the extent that there are funds available to make

payments To the extent the collateral pool includes delinquent loans there isa risk that the interest payment on subordinate CMBS will not be fully paid Subordinate CMBS

are also.subject to greater credit risk than those CMBS that are more highly rated.-

Our investments in real estate-related common equity securities will be subject to specific risks relating to the particular issuer of the securities and may be

subject to the general risks of investing in subordinated real -estate securities which may result in losses to us

We may make equity investments in other REITs and other real estate companies If we make such investments we will target public company that owns commercial real estate

or real estate-related assets when we believe its stock is trading at discount to that companys nCt asset value.We may eventually seek to acquire or gain controlling
interest in

the companies that we target
We do not

expect our noncontrouing equity investments in other public companies to exceed5.0% oflhe proceeds of our offering assuming we sell

the maximum offering amount or to represent
substantial

portion
of our assets at any one time Our investments in real estate-related common equity

securities will involve

special risks relating to the
particular

issuer of the
equity securities including the financial condition and business outlook of the issuer Issuers of real estate-related common

equity securities generally invest in real estate or real estate-related assets and are subject to the inherent risks associated with real estate-related investments discussed in this

repol

Real estate-related common equity securities are generally unsecured and may also be subordinated to other
obligations

of the issuer As result investments in real estate-related

common equity securities are subject to risks of limited liquidity.in the secondary trading market substantial inarketprice volatility resulting from changes in prevailing

interest rates subordination to the prior claims of banks and other senior lenders to the issuer the operation of mandatory sinking fund or call/redemption-provisions

during periods of declining interest sates that could cause the issuer to reinvest redemptionproceeds in lower yielding assets the posbibility that earnings of the issuer may be

insufficient to meet its debt service and distribution obligations and 6.the declining creditworthiness and potential for insolvency of theassuer during periods of rising interest rates

and economic downturn These risks may adversely affect the value of outstanding real estate-relatedcommon equity securities and the ability of the issuers thereoffo-make

distribution payments

Risks Associated with Debt Financing

We have incurred mortgage indebtedness and we may incur other indebtedness which increases our risk of loss due toforecloswe

We have obtained and are likely to continue to obtain lines of credit and other long-term financing that are secured by our properties and other assets Under our charter we

have limitation on borrowing which precludes us from borrowing in excess of 300% of the
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value of our net assets without conflicts committee approval Net assets for purposes of this calculation are defiled to be our total assets other than
intangibles

valued at cost

prior to deducting depreciation or other non-cash reserves less total liabilities Generally speaking the preceding calculation is expected to limit our total liabilities to 75.0% of the

aggregate
cost of our investments before non-cash reserves and depreciation We may borrow in excess of these amounts.if such excess is approved by majority

of the

independent
directors and is disclosed to stockholders in our next quarterly report along with justification for such excess In some instances we may acquire real properties by

financing portion of the price of the properties and mortgaging or pledging someor all of the
properties purchased as secusity for that debt We may also incur mortgage debt

on properties that we already ownin order to obtain flmds to acquire
additional

properties
In addition we may borrow alnecessasy oradviaablto ensurethat weinaintain our

qualification as aRELT for U.S federal income tax purposes including borrowings to satisfy
the REIT reqisirement

that we distribute at least 90.0% of our annual REIT taxable

income to our stockholders computed without regard to the dividends-paid deduction and excluding net capital gain We however can give our stockholders no assurance that

we will be able to obtain such borrowings on satisfactory terms

High debt levels will cause us to incur
higher

interest charges which would result in
higher

debt service payments and could be accompanied by restrictive covenants If we do

mortgage property
and there isa shortfall between the cash flow from that

property
and the cash flow needed to service mortgage debt on that property then the amount of

cash available for distributions to stockholders may be reduced In additionincurriilg mortgage debt increases theriak of loss of
property

since defaults on indebtedness secured

by property may result in lenders
initiating foreclosure actions In that case we could lose the

property securing
the loan that is in default reducing

the value of our

stockholders investments For tax purposes foreclosure of any of ourproperties would be treated nsa sale of the property for apurchase price equal to the outstanding

balance of the debt secured by the mortgage If the outstanding balance of the debt secured by the mortgage exceeds our taxhasisin the property we would
recognize

taxable

income on foreclosure even though we would not necessarily receive any cash proceeds We may give full orpartial guaranties tolenders of mortgage debt on behalf of theentities

that own our properties
When we give guaranty on behalf of an entity

that owns one of our properties we will be
responsible to the lender for satisfactionof the debt if it is not

paid by such entity If any mortgages contain cross-collateralization or cross-default provisions default on single property could affect multiple properties

We may also obtain recourse debt to finance our acquisitions and meet our REIT distribution requirements if we haveinsutficient income to service our recourse debt

obligations our lenders could instilote proceedings against us to foreclose upon our assets If lender successfully forecloses upon any of our assets our ability to pay cash

distributions to our stockholders will be limited and our stockholders could lose all or part of their investment

High mortgage rates may make it difficult for us to finance or refinance properties which could reduce the number ofproperties we tan acquire our

cash flows from operations and the amount of cash distributions we can make

if mortgage debt is unavailable at reasonable rates we may not be able to finance the purchase of properties If we place mortgage debt on properties we run the risk of being

unable to refinance the properties whenthe debt becomes due or of being unable to refinance on favorable terms If interest rates are higher when we refinance theproperties our

income could be reduced We may beunable to refinance properties If any of these events occurs our cash flow would be reduced This in turn would tedtice cash available

for distribution to our stockholders and may binder our ability to raise capitalbyissuing more stock or borrowing more money

We expect to use leverage in connection with our investments in real estate-related assets which increases the risk of loss associated with this type of

investmenL

We may finance the acquisition and origination of certain real estate-related investments with warehouse lines of credit and repurchase agreements In addition wemay engage in

various typesof securitizations in order to finance our loan
originations

The use of such
leverage may substantially increase the risk of loss There can be no assurance that

leveraged financing will be available to us on favorable terms or that among other factors the terms of such financing will parallel the maturities of the underlying assets acquired

If alternative financing is not available we may have toliquidate assets at unfavorable prices topay offsuch financing Our return on ourinvestmenta and cash available for

distribution to our stockholders may be reduced to the extent that changes inmarket conditions cause the coat of our financing to increase relative to the income that we can

derive from the assets we acquire

Our debt service payments will reduce our cash flow available for distributions We may not be able to meet our debt service
obligations and to the extent that we cannot we risk

the loss of some or all of our assets to foreclosure or sale to satisfy our debt
obligations We may utilize

repurchase agreements as component of our financing strategy

Repurchase agreements economicslLy resemble short-term variable-rate financing and usually requirethe maintenance of specific loan..to-collateral value ratios If the market value

of the assets subject to repurchase agreement declines we maybe required to provide additional collateral or make cash payments to maintain the loan-to-collateral value ratio If

we are unable to provide such collateral or cash repayments we may lose our economic interest in the underlyingasseta Further credit facility providers andwarehouse facility

providers may require us
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to maintain certain amount of cash reserves or to set aside
unleveraged assets sufficient to maintain

specified liquidity position that would allow us to satislj our collateral

obligations As result we may not be able to leverage our assets as fully as we would choose which could reduce our return on assets In the event that we are unable to meet

these collateral obligations our financial condition could deteriorate rapidly

We may not be able to access financing sources on attrac tire terms which could adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan

We may finance our assets over the longertn through variety of means including repurchase agreements credit facilities issuance of commercial mortgage-backed securities

collateralized debt obligations and other structured financings Our ability to execute this
strategy

will depend on various conditions in the markets for
financing in this manner that

are beyond our control including lack of liquidity and greater credit spreads We cannot be certain that these markets will remain an efficient source of
long-term financing for our

assets If our strategy is not viable we will have to find alternative forms of long-tenn financing for our assets as secured revolving credit facilities and
repurchase facilities may

not accommodate long-term financing This could subject us to more recourse indebtedness and the risk that debt service on less efficient forms of financing would
require

larger portion of our cash flows thereby reducing cash available for distribution to our stockholders andfunds available for
operations as well as for future business

opportunities

Lenders may require us to enter into restri dive covenants relating to our operations which could limit our ability to make distributions to our

stockholders

When providing financing slender may impose restrictions onus that affect our distribution and operating policies and our ability to incur additional debt Loan agreements we

enter may contain covenants that limit our ability to further mortgage property discontinue insurance coverage or replace
the Advisor In addition loan documents may limit

our ability to replace propertys property manager or terminate certain operating or lease agreements related to property These or other limitations would decrease our

operating flexibility and our ability to achieve our operating objectives

Increases in interest rates could increase the amount of our debt paymests and limit our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders

As ofDecember 312012 we have $113.1 million of variable rate debt obligations Because we have such variable rate debt
obligations

increases in interest rates would increase

our iliterestcosts and would reduce our cash flows and our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders In addition if we need to repay existing debt
during periods

of
rising

interest rates we could be required to
liquidate one or more of our.investments at times that may not permit realization of the maximum return on such investments

Our den relive financial instruments that we may use to hedge against interest rate fluctuations may not be successful in mitigating our nicks associated

with interest rates and could reduce the overall returns on our stockholders investment

We may use derivative financial instnmments to hedge exposures changes in intereitmtes on loans secured by our assets but no hedging strategy can protect us completely

We cannot assure our stockholders that our hedging strategy and the derivativet that we use will adequately offset the risk of interest rate volatility or that our hedging

tratisactions-will not result in losses In addition the use.of such instruments may reduce the overall return on our investments These instruments may alsO generate income that

may not be treated as quali1ing REIT income for purposes of the 75.0% or 95.0% REIT inºome test

Interest-only indebtedA ass may increase our risk of default and ultimately may reduce our funds available for distribution to our stockholders

We may finance our property acquisitions using interest-only mortgage indebtedness During the interest-only period the amount of each scheduled paymentwillbe less than that

of traditional amortizing mortgage loan The principal balance of the mortgage loan will tiotbe reduted except in the case of prepaymenta because there are no scheduled

monthly payments of principal during this period After the interest-only penodwe will be tequired either to make scheduled payments of amortized principal and interest or to

makea lump-sum or balloon payment at maturity These required principal or balloon payments will increase the amctont of our scheduled payments and may increase our risk

of default under the related mortgage loan If the mortgage loan has an adjustable interest rate the amount of our scheduled payments also may increase at time of
rising

interest rates Increased payments and substantial
principal orballoon maturity payments will reduce the funds available for distribution to our stockholders became cash

otherwise available for distribution will be required to pay.principal and interest associated with these mortgage loans
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If we enter into financing arrangements involving balloon payment obligations it may adversely affect our ability to make distributions to our

stockkolder

Some of our financing arrangements may require us to make lump-sum or balloon payment at maturity Our ability to make balloon payment at maturity is uncertain and

may depend upon our ability to obtain additional fihancing or our ability to sell the property At thetime.theballoon payment is due we may ornsay not be able to refinance the

balloon payment on tenns as favorable as the original loan or sell the property at price
sufficient to make the balloon payment The effect of refinancing or sale could affect the

rate of return to stockholders and tile projectedtime of disposition of outssaets In addition payments of
principaland

interestmadeto service our debts may leave us with

insufficient cash topsy the distributions thatwe are-required to pay to maintaiir our qualification as REIT Any ofthesd results wonidhave significant negative impact on our

stockholdera investments

We have broad authority to incur debt and high debt levels could hinder our ability to-make distributions and decrease the value of your investment

Our policies do not limit ua from incurring debt until our borrowings would cause our total liabilities to exceed 75.0% of the cost before deducting depreciation or other non-

cash reserves of our tangible assets and we may exceed this hunt with the approval of the conthets committee of our board of directors During the early stages
of our offering

our conflicts committee may approve debt in excess of this limit High debt levels would cause us to incur higher interest charges and higher debt service payments and could also

be accompanied by restrictive covenants These factors could limit the amount of cash we have available to distribute and could result in decline in the value of your investment

U.S.JtederallacosneTaxRlsks ----

Failure to qualify as REIT would reduce our net earnings available for investment or distrihutiot --

Our qualification as REIT.depends upon our ability to meetrequireusenis rógarding ourorganizationandownerslsip distributions of our income thenattire and diversification

of our income and assets and other teats imposed by the Internal Revenue Code If we fail to qualify as REJT for any taxable
year

after electing REIT status we will be
subject

to federal income tax on our taxable income at corporate rates In addition we would generally
be

disqualified from treatment as REIT for the four taxable
years following

the
year

of
losing our REIT tatus Losing our REIT status would reduce our net earnings available for investment or dsstnbutson to stockholders because of the additional tax

liability In addition dsstnbuuons to stockholders would no longer qualify for the dividends paid deduction and we would no longer be required to make distributions If this

occurs we might be required to borrow funds or liquidate some investments in order to pay the applicable tax

Our stockholders may haie current tar liability on distributions they elect to reinvest inour common stock --

If our st icklsoldess
participate

in the DRP they willbeaieemed-to have received and for U.S federal income tax purposes will be taxed on theamount reinvested in shares of

our common stock to the extent the amount reinvested was riots tax free return ofeapitaL In addition our stockholders will be treated for tax purposes as having received an

additional distribution to the xtent the shares are purchased at discount to fair snailcet value As result unless our stockholders are tax-exempt entity4 they may have to use

funds from other sources to pay their tax liability on the value of the-shares of common stock received

Failure to qualify as Œ-REIT wouldsubject us to U.S federal income tax which would reduce the cash available for distribution tO our stocltholdea

We
operate in manner thatis intended to cause us to qualify as aREIT foaUS. federal income tax purposes commencing-with-our taxable

year ended December 312010

However the fedea1 income tax laws governing REITs are extremely complex and interpretations of the US federal income tax laws governing qualification as REIT are

Innitçd Qualifying as REIT requires us to meet various tests regarding the nature of our assets and our income the ownership of our outstanding stock and the amount of

our distributions on sit ongomt basis While we intend to operate so that we qualsfyas REIT given the highly complex nature of the rules governing REITn the ongoing

importance
of factual deternusaitions including the tax treatment of certain investments we may make4 and the possibility of future changes in our circumstances no assurance

can be
given

that we will so quiify for any particular year If we fail to qualify as aREIT in any calendar year
and we do not qualify for certain statutory relief

provisions we

would be
required to pay lederal income tax on our taxable income We nuglit need to borrow money or sell assets to pay that tax Our payment of US federal income tax

would decrease the amount of our income available for distribution to our stockholders Furthermore if we fail to maintain our qualification as REIT and we do not qualify
for

certain statutory relief provisions we no longer would be required to distribute substantially all of our REIT taxable income to our stockholders Unless our failure to qualify as

MElT were excused under federal tax laws we would be disqualified from taxation as REIT for the four taxable years folLowing the year during which qualification was lost
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Even we qualify as REITfor US federal income tax purposes we may be subject to other tax liabilities that reduce our cash flow and our ability to

make distributions to our stockholders

Even if we qualify as REIT for U.S federal income tax purposes we may be subject to some federal state and local taxes on our income or property For example

In order to qualify as REIT we must distribute annually at least 90.0% of our REIT taxable income to our stockholders which is determined without regard to

the dsvidends
paid deduction or net capital gain To the etent that we satisfy the distribution

requirement
but distribute less than l00/ of our REIT taxable

income we will be subject to federal corporate income tax on the undsstrsbuted income

We will be subject to 4.0% nondeductible excise tax on the amount if any by which distributions we pay in any calendar
year are less than the sum of 85.0% of

our ordmary income 950% of our capital gain net income and 100% of our undistnbuted mcome from
prior years

If we have net income from the sale of foreclosure property that we hold primarily for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of business or other non-qualifying

income from foreclosure property we must pay tax on that income at the highest U.S federal
corporate

income tax rate

If we sell an asset other than foreclosure
property

that we bold primarily for sale to customers in the ordinasy course of business our gain would be subject to

the 100% prohibited transaction tax unless such sale were made by one of our taxable REIT subsidiaries or the sale met certain safe harbor
requirements under

the Internal Revenue Code

Our investments in debt instruments may cause us to recognize phantom incomefrr US federal income tax purposes even though no cash payments
have been received on the debt instruments

We may acquire debt mstruments in the secondary market for less than their face amount The amount of such discount will generally be treated as market discount for

federal income tax purposes Moreover
pursuant to our mvolvement in pubhc pnvate Joint ventures other similar programs recently announced by the federal government or

otherwise we may acquire distressed debt mveatments that are subsequently modified by agreement with the borrower lithe amendments to the outstanding debt are significant

modifications under the applicable regulations promulgated by the Treasury Department the Treasury Regulations the modified debt may be considered to have been

reissued to us in debt-for-debt exchange with the borrower This deemed reissuance may prevent
the modified debt firm qualifyingas good REIT assetif the

underlying

security has declined in value

In general we will be required to accrue onginal issue discount on debt instrument as taxable income in accordance with apphcable US federal income tax rules even though no

cash payments may be received on such debt Instrument

In the event borrower with
respect to particular debt Instrument encounters financial difficulty rendering it unable to pay stated interest as due we may nonetheless be

required to continue to recognize the unpaid interest as taxable income Similarly we may be required to accrue interest income with respect to subordmate mortgage backed

securities at the stated rate regardless of when their corresponding cash payments are received

As result of these factors there is significant risk that we may recognize substantial taxable income in excess of cash available for distribution In that event we may need to

borrow funds or take other action to satisfy the REIT distribution requirements for the taxable year which this phantom meome is recognized

REJT distribution requirements could adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan

We generally must distribute annually at least 900 of our REIT taxable income subject to certain adjustments and excluding any net capital gain in order for federal

corporate income tax not to apply to earnings that we distribute To the extent that we satisfy this distribution requirement but distribute less than 100% of our REIT taxable

income we will be subject to federal corporate income tax on our undistributed REIT taxable income In addition we will be
subject to 40/ nondeductible excise tax if

the actual amount that we payout to our stockholders in calendar
year is less than minimum amount specified under federal tax laws We intend to make distributions to our

stockholders to comply with the REFF requirements of the Internal Revenue Code

From time to time we may generate taxable income
greater

than our taxable income for financial
reporting purposes or our taxable income may be

greater
than our cash flow

available for distribution to stockholders for example where borrower defers the payment of interest in cash
pursuant

to contractual right or otherwise If we do not have

other funds available in these situations we could be required to borrow funds sell investments at disadvantageous prices or find another alternative source of funds to make

distributions sufficient to enable us topay out enough of our taxable income to satisfy the REIT distribution
requirement

and to avoid
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U.S federal
corporate income tax and the 4.0% excise tax in particular year These alternatives could increase our costs or re4uce our equity Thus compliance with the REIT

requirementa may hinder our ability to operate solely on the basis of maximizing profits

To maintain our R.EIT status we may be forced to forego otherwise attractive opportunities which may delay or hinder our ability to meet our investment

objectives and reduce our stockholders oserall return

To qualify as REIT we must satisfy certam tests on an ongoing basis concerning among other things the sources of our mcome nature of our assets and the amounts we

distribute to our stockholders Ve may be required to make distributions to stockholders at times when it would be more advantageous to reinvest cash in our busmess or when

we do not have fundi readily available for distribution Compliance with the REIT requirements nay hinder durability to
operate solely on the basis of maximizing profits and the

value of our stockholders investments

The taxable mortgage pool rules may increase rise taxes that we or our stockholders incur and may limit the manner in which we conduct

securitizations

We may be deemed to be ourselves or we may make investments in entities that awn or are themselves deemed to be taxable mortgage pools Similarly certain of our

securitizations or other borrowwgs couldbe considered to result in the creation df taxable mortgage pool for U.S federal ipcome tax purposes As REIT provided that we

own 100% of the equity interests In taxable mortgage pool we generally would not be adversely affected by the characterization of the -securitizàtion asa taxable mortgage pool

Certain categories of stockholders however such as foreign stockholders eligible for
treaty or other benefits stockholders with net operating losses and certain tax-exempt

stockholders that are subject to unrelated business income taç couldbe subjeettoincreased taxes on portion of their dividend Incomefromus that is sttributableto the taxable

mortgage pool In addition to tho extent that our stock is owned by tax-exempt disqualified organizations such as certain government-related entities thatare not subject to tax

on unrelated business income we will incur
corporate-level tax on portion

of our income from the taxable mortgage pool In that case we are authorized to reduce and intend

to reduce the amount of our distributions to any disqualified organization whose stock ownership gave rise to the tax by the amount of such tax paid by us that is attributable to

such stockholders ownership Moreover.we would generally be precluded fromsellingiqulty interests in these securitizations to outside investors or selling any debt securities

issued in connection with these securitizations that might be considered to be equity interests for U.S federal income tax purposes

These limitations may prevent us from
using

certain
techniques to maximize our returns from seeuritization transactions or other financing arrangements

Potential characterization of distributions or gain on sale may be treated as unrelated business taxable income to tax-exempt investors

If all or portion of our asses are subject to the rules relating to taxable mortgage pools we are pension-held REIT tax-exempt stockholder has -incurred debt to

purchase or hold our common stock or the residual interests in any real estate mortgage investment conduits REM1Cs we acquire if any generate
excess inclusion

income then portion of the distributions to and in the case of stockholder described in clause3-.gains realized on the sale of common stockby such tax-exemptstockholder

may be subject to U.S federal income tax as unrelated business taxable income under the Internal Revenue Code

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to liquidate
otherwise attractive investments

To qualify as REIT we-inust ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter at least 75.0% of the value of our assets consists of cash cash items government securities and

qualified REIT real estate assets including certain mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities The remainder of our investment in securities other than government

securities and qualified real estate assets generally cannot include more than 10.0%ofthe outstanding votingsecurities of iny one-issuer or-more than 10.0% of-the total value of

the outstanding securities of any one issuer In addition in general no more than 5.0% of the value of our assets other than government securities and
qualified

real estate

assets can consist of the securities of any orteissuer and no more than 25.0% of the value of out total assets can be represented by securities of one or more taxable- REIT

subsidiaries If we fall toconiply withthese requirements at the end of anycalendar quarter we must correct thefailure withiu30 days after the end of the calendar quarter or

qualify for certain statutosy relsef provisions tp avoid losing our REIT qualification and suffering adverse tax consequences As result we may be required to liquidate from

our portfolio otherwise-attractive investments These actions could-have the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution to our stockholders

Liquidation of assets may jeopardize our REIT qua1cation

To
qualify as REIT we must comply with

requirements regarding our assets and our sources of income If we are compelled to -liquidate our investments to repay obligations

to-our lenders we may be unable to complywith these requirements ultimately jeopardizing qur qualification as REJT or we njay be subject to 100% tax on any resultant

gain if we sell assets that are treated -as dealer property or inventory
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Characterization of any repurchase agreements we enter info to finance our investments as salesfor tax purposes rather than as secured lending

transactions would adversely affect our ability to qualify as REIT

We may enter into
repurchase agreements with

variety
of counterparties to achieve our desired amount of leverage fQr the assets in which we invest When we enter into

repurchase agreement we generally sell assets to our counterpartytothe agreement and receive cash from the counterparty The counterparty is obligated to resell the assets

back to us at the end of the term of the transaction Wellieve that for U.S federal inconie tax purposes we will be treated as the own of the assets that are the subject of

repurchasegreements and that the repurchase agreements will be treated as secured lendingtzansactions notwithstanding that such agreement may transfer record ownership of

the assetsto the counterparty during the termof the agreement It is possible however that the Internal Revenue Service the IRS could successfully assert that we did not

own these assets during the term of the repurchase agreements in which case we could fail to quality as REIT if tax ownership of these assets was necessary for us to meet the

income and/or asset tests

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code may limit our ability to hedge our assets and operations Under these provisions any income that we generate
from

transactions intended to hedge our interest rate inflation or currency risks will be excluded from gross income for purposes of the REIT 75.0% and 95.0% gross income tests if

the instrument hedges interest rate risk on liabilities incurred to
carry

or acquire real estate rispf currency fluctuationswith respect to any item of income or gain that

would be qualifying income under the REIT 75.0% or 95.0% gross income tests and such instrument is properly identified under applicable Treasury Regulations Income from

hedging transactionsthat do not meet these requirements will generally constitute nonqualifying income forpurposes of both the REIT 75.0% and 95.0% gross income tests As

result of these rules we may have to limit our use çif hedging techniques that might otherwise be advantageous whichcould result in greater risks associatedwith interest rate

or other changes than we would otherwise incur

Our ownership of and relationship with our taxable REIT subsidiaries will be limited and afailure to comply with the limits would jeopardize our REIT

status and may result in the application of 100% excie tax

REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries taxable REIT subsidiary may earn income that would not be qualifying income if earned

directly by the parent REIT Both the subsidiary
and the REIF must jointly

elect to treat the subsidiary as taxable REIT subsidiary corporation
of which taxable REIT

subsidiary directly or indirectly owns more than 35.0% of the voting power or value of th stock will automatically be trpated asataxable REIT subsidiary Qverall no more than

250% of the value faREITs assets may consist of stock or securities of one or more taxable REIT subsidiariesA domestic txable REIT subsidiary will pay U.S federal

state and local income tax at regular corporate rates on any income that it earns In addition the taxable BElT subsidiary rules limit the deductibility of interest paid or accrued by

taxable REIT subsidiary to its parent REIT to assure that the ta able REIT subsidiary is ssbjectto an appropriate lçvel
of

corporate
taxation The rules also

rplpose 00%
excise tax on certain transactions between taxable REIT subsidiary and its parent REIT that are uot conducted on an anns-length basis We cannot assure our stockholders that

we will be able to comply with the 25.0% value limitation on ownership of taxable RE1T subsidiary stock and securities on an ongoing basis so as to maintain REIT status or to

avoid application
of the 100% excise tax imposed on certain non-arms length transactions

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulatory tax changes

At any time the U.S federal income tax laws or regulations governing REITs or the administrative interpretations of those laws or regulations may be amended We cannot

predict when or if any new U.S federal income tax law regulation or administrative interpretation or any amendment to any existing U.S federal income tax law regulation or

administrative interpretation
will be adopted promulgated or become effective and any such law regulation or inteiprptation may take effect retroactively We and our

stockholders could be adversely affected by any such change in or any new U.S federal income tax law regulation or administrative interpretation

.0 ividends payable by REITs do not qualify for tle reduced tax rates

Legislation enacted in 2003 and modified in 20052010 and 2013 generally reduces the maximum tax rate for dividends payable to certain stockholders who are domestic

individuals trusts and estates to 20.0% Dividends payable by REITs however are generally not eligible
for the reduced rates Although this legislation does not adversely affect

the taxation of REITs or dividends paid by REITs the more favorable rates applicable to regular corporate
dividends could cause investors who are individuals trusts and estates

to perceive investments in RE1T5 to be relatively less attractive than investments in stock of non-REIT corporations that pay dividends which could adversely affect the value of

the stock of REITs including our common stock
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If the Operating Partnersl ip fails to maintain its status as partnership its income may be subject to taxation

We intend to maintain the stalus of the Operating Partnership as disregarded entity or partnership
for U.S federal income tax purposes However if the IRS were to

successfully challenge the status of the Operating Partnership as disregarded entityor partnership
it wouldtlte taxable

asacorptiration
In such event this would reduce the

amount of distributions that the Operating Partnership could make to us This would also result in our losing ItEIT stntds and becoming subject to corporate level tax on our

own income This would substantially reduce our cash available to pay distributiOUs and the yield on your investmabt In addition if any of the partnerships or limited liability

companies through whichthe Operating Partnership owns iti properties inwliole ôrin partloses its chatacterisations partnership for U.S federal income taxpurposes it

would be
subject to taxation corporation thereby reducing disttibutions to the Operating Partnership Suclia recharacterization of an underlying property owner could also

threaten our ability
to maintain REIT status

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions including certain methods of securitizing mortgage loans that would be

treated as sales for federal income tax purposes

REITs net income from
prohibited transactions is

subject to 100% tax In general prohibited
iraiisactions are sales or other dispositions of assets other than foreclosure

property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary courseof business Therefore in order to avoid the
prohibited traniactions tax we may choose not to engage in

certain sales at the REIT level and rnaylimit the structures we utilize fof our ecuritization transactions even though the sales or structures might othesse be beneficial to us

There is prohibited transaction safe harbor available under the Internal Revenue code when property has been held for at least two
years

and certain other requirements are

met It cannot be assured however that any property
sales would qualifr for the safe harbOr it may also be possible to reduce the impact of the

prohibited transaction tax by

conducting certain activities thiough taxable REIT subsidiaries However to the extent that we engage in such activities through taxable REIT subsidiaries the income associated

with such activities may be
subject to full

corporate
income tax

The taxation of distributions to our stockholders can be complex however distributions that we make to our slockhoiders generally will be taxable as

ordinaiy income

Distributions that we make to cur taxable stockholders Out of current and accumulated eamitigs and profits and not designated as capital gain dividends or for tax years

beginning
before January 12013 qOalified

dividend income generally are taxable as ordinary
income However portion

of our distributions may be designatedby us as

capital gain dividends ghnerally taxable as long-term capital gain to the extent that they are attributable tonet capital gain recognized by us2 be designatedbyus for taxable

years beginnixig before January 12013 as qualified dividend income generally to the extent they are attributable to dividends we receive from our taxable REIT subsidiaries or

constitte return of capital generally to the exteOt that they exceed our accumulated earnings and profits aS determined for U.S federal income tax iurposes return of

Ôapiial is not taxable but has the effect of reducing the basis of stockholders investment in our conimon stock

If we were considered to actually or constructively pay preferential dividend to certain of our stockholdErs our status as REIT could be adiiersely

affectei

In order to qualiI as REIT we must distribute annually to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIf taxable income which does not equal net income as calculated in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP deterniined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding net capital gain In order for

distributions to be counted as sutisfying the annual distribution requirements fórRElTs and to provide us with aREIT-level tax deduction the distributions must not be

preferential dividends dividend is not preferential dividend if thedistiibution is
pro rata among all outsiatiding shares of stock within aparticOlar class and in aecoMsnce

with the preferences among difidrent classes of stock as set forth in our organizational
documents Currently there is uncertainty as to the position of the IRS regarding whether

certain arrangements that REIT have with their stockholders could give rise to the inadvertent payment of preferential dividend e.g the pricing methodology for stock

purchased under dividend reinvestment plan inadvertently causing greater than 5% discount on the price of such stock purchased There is node minimis exceptiOn with

respect to preferential dividends therefore if the IRS were to take the position that we inadvertently paid preferential dividends we may be deemed to have failed the 90%

distritiution test and our status as REIT could be terminated for the year in which such determinatioti is irtade if we were unable to cure such failure While webelieve that our

operations have been structured in such manner that we will not be treated as inadvertently paying preferential dividends we can provide no assurance to this effect

The ability of our board of directors to revoke our REIT qualification without stoCkholder approval may subject us to U.S federal income tax and reduce

distributions to our stockholders
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Our charter provides that our board of directors may revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT election without the approval of our stockholders if it determines that it is no

longer in our best interest to continue to quality as REIT While we intend to elect and qualify to be taxed as RUT we may not elect to betreat san BElT or may terminate

our REIT election if we determine that qualifying as BElT is no longer in the best interests of our stockholders If we cease to be RUT we would become subject to U.S

federal income tax on our taxable income and would no longer
be dto distribute moat of our taxable income to our stockholders which may have adverse consequences

on our total retum to our stockholders and on the market
price

of our common stock

The share ownership restrictions of the Internal Revenue Code for REITs and the 9.8% share ownership limit in our charter may inhibit market activity in

our shares of stock and restrict our business combination opportunities

In order to quslsfy as BElT for each taxable year ending on or after December31 2011 five or fewer mdsvsduala as defined in the jntemal Revenue Code may not own

actually or constructively more than 50% in value of our issued and outstanding shares of stock at any time 4pring the last hglf ofa taxable year Attrtbutioi% nslesin the Intemal

Revenue Cede determine if any individual or entity actually or constructively ownsour shares of stock under this requirement Additionally at least 100 persons must beneficially

own oursbares of stock during at least 335 dayt ofataxable.year or each ta able
yesrafter Decepiber 312011 To help insure thatwe meet these

tests among other

purposes our charter restricts the acquisition and ownership of our shares of stock

Our charter with certain exceptions authorizes our directors to take such actions as are necessary and desirable to preserve our qualification as BElT while we to qualify

Unless exempted by our board of directors for so long as we qualify as aREIT bur charter prohibits aihbng other limitations on onership and transfer of shares of our

stock any personfrom beneficially or constructively owning applying ceslain attribution rules under theIntemal Revenue Code more than 9.8% in value of the
aggregate

of

our outstanding shares of stock and not more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares whichever ismore restrictive of any class or series of our shares of stock Our board

of directors may not grant an exemption from these restrictions to an proposed transferee whose ownership excess of the 8% ownershsp hmst would result the tennmstion

of our qualification ass BElT These restrictions on transferability and ownership will not apply however if our board of directors determines that it is no longer in our best

interesttocontinuetoquslifyasaRElT

These ownership limits could delay or prevents transactioli or change in control that niiht involve spreniuris price for our common stock or otherwise be in the best interest

ofthestockholders

Potential characterization of distributions or gain on saie may be treated as unrelated business taxable income to tax-exempt investors

Ifs we are pension held RUT tax-exempt stockholder has mcurred debt to purchase or hold our common stock or holder of common stock is certam type of

tax exempt stockholder dividends on and gains recogmzed on the sale of common stock by such tax exempt stockholder maybe subject to federal mcome tax as unrelated

business taxable mcome under the Internal Revenue Code

Distributions to foreign investors may be treated us an ordinary income distribution to the extent that it is made out of current or accumulated earnings

and profits

In general foreign mvestors will be subject to regular federal mcnme tax with
respect

to their mvestment our stock if the mcome denved therefrom is effectively

connected with the foreign investors conduct of trade or business in the United States distribution to foreign investor that is not attributable to gain realized by us from

the sale or exchange of U.S real property interest within the meaning of the Foreign Investment inReal Property
Tax Act of 1980 as amended CFIRPTA and that we do

not designate ass capital gain distribution will be treated as an ordmary income distribution to the extent that it is made out of current or accumulated eammgs and profits

Generally any ordinary spcome dsithbution will be subject to fedçral mcome tax equal to 30/ of the
gross amount of the distribution unleas tIns tax ii reduced by the

provisions of an applicable treaty

Foreign investors may be subject to FIRPTA tax upon the sale of their shares of our stock

foreign mvestor disposmg of real
property interest including shares of stock of corporation whose assets consist principally

of real property interests is

generally subject to FIRPTA on the gain recognized on the disposition Such FIIRPTA tax does not apply however to the
disposition

of stock in BElT if the BElT is

domestically controlled REIT is domestically controlled if less than 50.0% of the BElTs stock by value has been owned directiy or indirectiy by persons who are not

qualifying U.S persons during continuous five-year period ending on the date of disposition or if shorter during the entire period of the BElTs existence While we intend to

qualify as domestically controlled BElT we cannot assure you that we will If we were to fall to so qualify gain realized by foreign inveitors on sale of shares of our stock

would be subject to FIRPTA tax unless the shares of our stock were traded on an established securities market and the foreign investor did not at any time during specified

tssting period directly or indirectly own more than 5.0% of the value of our outstanding common stock
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Foreign investors may be subject to FIRPTA tax upon the payment of capital gains dividend

capital gains dividend paid to foreign investors ifattributableto gain fromsales or exchanges of US realproperty interests wotild notbeexempt from FIRPTA and would

be
subject to FIRPTA tax

Retireflsent PlanRiska

lithe fiduciary of an emplopee pension benefit plan subject to ERISA such as profit-sharing Section 401k or pension plan or any other retirement

plan or account fails to med the fiduciary and other standards under ERISA or the Internal Revenue Code as result of an investment in our stock the

fiduciary could be subject to criminal and civil penaltie

There are special considerations that apply to employee benefit plans subject toERISA such as profit-Sharing Section 401k or pension plans and other retirement plans or

accounts subject to Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code such as an IRA that-are
investing

in otir Shares Fiduciaries investing thesssets of such a-plan or account in our

common stock should satis themselves that

the mvestment is consistent with their fiduciary blsgations under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code

the investment is made in accordance with the documents and instrumentsgoveming the plan or IRA including
the plans or accounts investment policy

the mvestment sati fies the prudence and diversification requirements of Sections 404alB and 404alC of ERISA and other apphcable provisions
of ERISA

and the Intemal Ri venue Code

the investment wiLL not impair the li4uidity of the plan or IRA

the investment wilL not produce an unacceptable amount of unrelated business taxable income for the plan or IRA

the value of the assets of the plan can be established annually in accordance with ERISA requirements and applicable provisions of the plan or IRA and

the investment wilL not constitute non-exempt prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERLISA or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code

With respect to the annual valuition requirements described above we expect to provide an estimated value for our shares annually From the commencement of our offering

until 18 months have passed without sale public equity offering of our common stock we expect to use the
gross offering price

of share of common stock our most

recent offering as the
per

share estimated value For purposes of this defimtson we will not consider public equity offerings to mclude
offerings on behalf of selling stockholders

or offerings related to any dividend reinvestment plan employee benefit plan or the redemption of interests in the
Operating Petinership

This estimated value is not likely to reflect the proceeds you would receive upon our liquidation or upofi the sale of your Shares Accordingly we can make no assurances that

such estimated value will satis the applicable annual valuation
requirements

under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code The Department of Labor or the IRS n1y determine

that plan fiduciaiy or an IRA custodian is
required to take further

steps to determine the value of our common shares In the absence of an appropriate
determination of value

plan fiduciary or an IRA custodian maybe subject tO damages penalties or other sanctions

Failure to satisfy
the

fiduciary standards of conduct and other applicable requirements of ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code may result the imposition of civil and cnmmal

penalties and could subject the fiduciary to equitable remedies In addition if an mvestxnent our shares constitutes non exeslipt prohibited transaction undeiERISA or the

Internal Revenue Code the fiduciary or IRA owner who authorized or directed the investment
ntay

be
subject to the imposition of excise taxes with

respect
to the ÆmouOt

invested In the case of non-exempt prohibited transaction involving an IRA owner the IRA maybe disqualified and all of the assets of the IRA may be deemed distributed and

subject to tax
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Ifyou invest in our shares through an IRA or other retirement plan you may be limited in your ability to withdraw required minimum distributionE

If you establish an IRA or other retirement plan through which you invest in our shares federal law may require you to withdraw
required

minimum distributions RMDs
from such plan in the future Our share repurchase program limits the amount of

repurchases other than those
repurchases as result of stockholders death or disability

that

can be made in given year Additionally you will not be eligiile to have your shares repurchased until you have held your shares for at least one year As result you may not

be able to have your shares repurchased at time in which you need liquidity to satis the RMD requirements under your IRA or other retirement plan Even ifyou are able to

have your shares repurchased such repurchase may be at price less than the price at which the shares were initially purchased depending on howlong you have held your

shares If you fail to withdraw RMDs from your IRA or other retirement plan you may be subject to certain tax penalties
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ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have no unresolved staff comments

ITEM PROPERTIES

Real Estate Investments

As of December 31 2012 we owned fee simple interests in 26 properties iii 15 states across the United States that collectively total 2490177 square
feet with combined

purchase price of $307.0 million Included in these totals are 20 properties owned through the Joint Venture that total 1878177 square
feet witha combined purchase price

of

$21 1.1 million Our portfolio was purchased at an 8.1% weighted average capitalization rate calculated by dividing
the annualized net operating

income of each property as of the

date of acquisition by the purchase price of such property As of December 31 2012 our portfolio was 95.0% leased with approximately 80.0% of rents coming from grocery

national and regional tenants including
11

market-leading grocers For additional portfolio information refer to Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation Schedule 111
herein

Contract Average

Purchase Rentable Remaining

Ownership Date Pricet11 Square Lease Term

Property Name Location interest Anchor Acquired in thousands 1ootage in Years Leased

Lakeside Plaza Salem VA 54% Kroger 12/10/2010 8750 82798 4.1 years 100.0%

Snow View Plaza ParmsOH 54% Giant Eagle 12/15/2010 12300 100460 6.5
years 97.0%

St.CharlesPlaza HainesCityFL 54% Publix 6/10/2011 10100 65000 9.4years 96.3%

Centerpoint Easley SC 54% Publix 10/14/2011 6850 72287 9.5
years 84.7%

Southampton Village Tyrone GA 54% Publix 10/14/2011 8350 77956 8.6 years 91.9%

BurwoodVillageCenter GlenBuniieMD 54% FoodLion 11/9/2011 16600 105834 S.6years 100.0%

CuretonTownCenter WaxhawNC 54% HarrisTeeter 12/29/2011 13950 84357 9.3 years 100.0%

TramwayCrossing SanfordNC 54% FoodLion 2/23/2012 5500 62382 3.4years 95.9%

WestinCentre FayettevilleNC 54% FoodLion 2/23/2012 6050 66890 3.Oyears 97.9%

The Village at Glynn Place Brunswick GA 54% Publix 4/27/2012 11350 111924 7.4
years 96.2%

Meadowthorpe Shopping Center Lexington KY 54%
Kroger 5/9/2012 8550 87384 3.6 years 97.4%

NewWindsorMarketplace WindsorCO 54% KingSoopers 5/9/2012 5550 95877 6.6years 90.3%

VineStreetSquare KissimmeeFL 54% WaimarP1 6/4/2012 13650 120699 6.Oyears 100.0%

NorthtowneSquare GibsoniaPA 54% GiantEagle 6/19/2012 10575 113372 7.9years 100.0%

BrentwoodCommons BensenvilleIL 54% Does cks 7/5/2012 14850 125550 6.5
years

98.1%

Sidney Towne Center Sidney OH 54% Kroger 8/2/2012 4300 118360 6.3 years 98.5%

Broadway Plaza Tucson AZ 54% Sprouts 8/13/2012 12675 83612 5.2 years 95.9%

Richmond Plaza Augusta GA 54% Kroger 8/30/2012 19500 178167 5.2
years

86.5%

PublixatNorthridge SarasotaFL 54% Publix 8/30/2012 11500 65320 9.4years 86.2%

BakerHillCenter GlenEllynIL 100% Dominicks141 9/6/2012 21600 135355 4.7years 96.7%

New Prague Commons New Prague MN 54% Coborns 10/12/2012 10150 59948 8.4 years 98.2%

BrookParkPlaza Brook Park 011 100% GiantEagle 10/23/2012 10140 157459 5.3 years 87.8%

HeronCreekTowneCenter NorthPortFL 100% Publix 12/17/2012 8650 64664 6.4years 90.4%

Quaslz Hill Towne Centre Lancaster CA 100% Vons14 12/26/2012 20970 110306 4.1 years 98.1%

HilfikerSquare SalemOR 100% TraderJoes 12/28/2012 8000 38558 9.2years 100.0%

Village One Plaza Modesto CA 100% Raleys 12/28/2012 26500 105658 13.8 years 91.6%

The contract purchase price excludes closing costs and acquisition costs

King Soopers isan affiliate of K.roger

The anchor tenant of Vine Street Square is Walmart Neighborhood Market

Dominick and Vons arc affiliates of Safeway Inc
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Lease Expirations and Significant Tenants

The following table lists on an aggregate basis all of the scheduled lease
expirations

after December 31 2012 over each of the
years ending December 312013 and thereafter for

our 26 shopping centers The table shows the approx mate rentable
square

feet and annualized effective rent represented by the applicable lease expirations dollars in thousands

Number of of Total Portfolio

Expiring Annualized Annualized Leased Rentable of Rentable

Leases Effective Rentt5 Effective Rent Square Feet Expiringm Square Feet Expiring

52 1721 6.5% 125300 5.3%

63 2803 10.5% 225152 9.6%

55 2589 9.7% 188111 8.0%

47 1945 7.3% 179262 7.7%

54 2393 9.0% 177840 7.6%

20 1772 6.7% 132484 5.7%

17 2563 9.6% 260441 11.1%

1062 4.0% 86076 3.7%

12 1482 5.6% 188512 8.0%

1876 7.0% 168694 7.2%

6433 24.1% 610493 26.1%

lWe calculate annualized effective rent as monthly contractual rent as of December 31 2012 multiplied by 12 months less any tenant concessions

2Does not include leases that had not begun to pay rent as the commencement dates for such leases had not been determined as of December 31

2012

The following
table sets forth information

regarding the tenants comprising ten percent or more of the
aggregate

annualized effective rent or occupying ten percent or more of the

aggregate rentable square footage at our 26 shopping centers as of December 31 2012 dollars in thpusands

%ofTotal

Number of Effective Effective

Tenant Name/Property Ten mt Industry Locations Rent1 Rent Square Feet Footage

Publix Super Marketst2 Retail Grocery Store 3183 11.9% 289501 11.65

Kroger2 Retail-GroceryStore 1352 5.l% 300737 12.15

We calculateannualized effective rent as monthly contractual rent as of December 31 2012 multiplied by 12 months less any tenant concessions

Includes non-grocely leases such as fuel stations and liquor stores

Portfolio Tenancy

Prior to the acquisition of property we assess the suitability of the grocery-anchor tenant and other tenants in light of our investment objectives namely preserving capital and

providing stable cash flows for distributions Generally we assess the strength of the tenant by consideration of company factors such as its financial strength and market share in

the geographic area of the shopping center as well as location-specific factors such as the stores sales local competition and demographics When assessing the tenancy of the

non-anchor space at the shopping center we consider the tenant mix at each shopping center in lighi of our portfolio the proportion of national and national franchise tenants and

the creditworthiness of specific tenants When evaluating non-national tenancy we attempt to obtain ctodit enhancements to leases which typically come in the form of deposits

and/or guarantees from one or more individuals

Year

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Thereafter 20

Annualized Annualized

Portfolio of Total

Portfolio

Leased Square
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The following table presents the composition of our portfolio by tenant type as of December 31 2012 dollars in thousands

Tenant Type

Groceiy anchor

National regional

Load

Leased

Square Feet

1329139

664974

370941

2365054

of Leased

Square Feet

56.2%

28.1%

15.7%

100.0%

Annualized

Effective

Rentt1

12265

9081

5294

26640

%of

Annualized

Effective Rent

46.0%

34.1%

19.9%

100.0%

We calculate annualized effective rent as monthly contractual rent as of December 31 2012 multiplied by 12 months less any tenant concessions

The following table presents the composition of our portfolio by tenant industey as of December 31 2012 dollars in thousands

The following table presents our grocery-anchor tenants by the amount of square footage leased by each tenant as of December 31

2012 dollars in thousands

Tenant

Industry

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail Grocery Store

Retail RestaurantServices

We calculate annualized effective rent as monthly contractual rent as of December 31 2012 multiplied by 12 months less any tenant

concessions

King Soopers is an affiliate of Kruger

Dominicks and Vona are affiiates of Safeway Inc

The Walmart store at Vine Street Square is WalmartNeighborhood Market

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we are party to legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of our business We are not currently involved in any legal proceedings of which the

outcome is reasonably likely to have material impact on our results of operations or financial condition nor are we aware of any such legal proceedings contemplated by

governmental authorities

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Tenant Industry

Grocery

Retail Stores

Services

Restaurant

Govermnent

Annualized of

Leased of Leased Effective Annualized

Square Feet Square Feet Rentt1 Effective Rent

1329139 56.2% 12265 46.0%

434656 18.5% 5064 19.1%

398230 16.8% 5791 21.7%

197169 8.3% 3434 12.9%

5860 0.2% 86 0.3%

2365054 100.0% 26640 100.0%

We calculate annualized effictive rent as monthly contractual rent as of December31 2012 multiplied by 12 months less any tenant concessions

of

Tenant

Kroger2

Publix

Giant Eagle

Safeway3

Food Lion

Rales

Harris Teeter

Coboms

Wahnart14

Sprouts Farmers Market

Trader Joes

All other tenants

Leased Leased Annualized of

Square Square Effective Annualized

Feet Feet RentW
Effective Rent

299537 12.6% 1318 4.9%

286401 12.1% 3110 11.7%

226648 9.6% 1972 7.4%

187019 7.9% 2127 8.0%

95665 4.0% 881 3.3%

65703 2.8% 1165 4.4%

48756 2.1% 400 1.5%

45 708 19% 593 22

31979 1.4% 225 0.8%

28217 1.2% 272 1.0%

13506 0.6% 203 0.8%

1035915 43.8% 14374 54.0%

2365054 100.0% 26640 100.0%

38



Not applicable

39

.1



FART II

ITEMS MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Stockholder Information

As of February 282013 we had 5153 stockholders of record

Market Information

We are currently offering shares of our common stock pursuant to an effective registration statement at an offering price of $10.00 per
share in our best efforts offering As of

February 28 2013 we had approximately 18.5 million shares of conunon stock outstanding held by total of 5153 stockholders of record The number of stockholders is

based on the records of DST Systems Inc who serves as our registrar and transfer agent

There is no established trading market for our common stock Therefore there is risk that stockholder may not be able to sell our stock at time or price acceptable to the

stockholder or at all Pursuant to our offering we are selling shares of our common stock to the public at price of $10.00 per share and at price of $9.50
per

share

pursuant
to the DRP

Additionally we provide discounts in our offering for certain categories of purchasers including volume discounts Pursuant to the tenns of our charter

certain restrictions are imposed on the ownership and transfer of shares

Until the later of 18 months after the termination of our offering or the termination of any subsequent offering
of our shares we intend to use the offering price of shares in our

most recent offering as the
per

share net asset value The estimated value of share of our common stock is $10.00 per
share as of December31 2012 This estimated value

may be higher than the
price

at which you could resell your shares because our offering involves the payment of underwriting compensation and other directed selling efforts

which payments and efforts are likely to produce higher sales price than could otherwise be obtained and there is no public market for our shares Moreover this estimated

value may be higher than the amount you would receive per share if we were to liquidate at this time because of the up-front fees that we pay in connection with the issuance of

our shares Beginning 18 months after the last offering of shares the value of the properties and other assets will be based on valuations of either our properties or our company

as whole whichever valuation method our board of directors determines to be appropriate which may include independent valuations of our properties or of our enterprise as

whole

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

We have adopted the DRP through which stockholders may elect to reinvest an amount equal to the dividends declared on their shares of common stock into shares of our

common stock in lieu of receiving cash dividends Shares may be purchased under the DRP for price equal to $9.50 per share during our primary offering period Until we

establish an estimated value
per

share that is not based on the price to acquire share in the primary offering or follow-on public offering shares issued pursuant to the DRP

will be priced at the estimated value per share of our common stock as detennined by the Advisor or another finn chosen for that purpose We expect to establish an estimated

value
per

share not based on the price to
acquire

share in the primary offering or follow-on public offering upon the completion of our offering stage
We will consider our

offering stage complete when we are no longer offering equity securitieswhether through our current offering or follow-on public offeringsand have not done so for 18

months Participants in the DRP may purchase fractional shares so that 100% of the dividends maybe used to acquire additional shares of our common stock For the year ended

December 31 2012 approximately 139293 shares or $1324000 were reinvested through the DRP For the year ended December 31 2011 approximately 16647 shares or

$158000 were reinvested through the DRP

Distribution Information

We pay distributions based on daily record dates payable monthly in arrears The common distributions that we paid during
the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2012 were

equal to daily amount of $0.00 78082 per share of common stock which ifpaid each day for 365-day period would equal 6.5% annualized rate based on purchase price

of $10.00 per share During the year ended December31 2011 we paid monthly distributions to stockholders that totaled $873000 During the year ended December 31

2012 we paid monthly distributions to stockholders that totaled $3673000 On January 22013 we paid distributions to stockholders for the period from December 12012

to December 31 2012 in the amount of $717000 On February 12013 we paid distributions to stockholders for the period from January 12013 to January 312013 in the

amount of $817000 On March 12013 we paid distributions to stockholders for the period from February 12013 to February 282013 in the amount of $882000

Distributions paid to stockholders of record from February 2013 to February 28 2013 were equal to daily amount of $0001 83562 share of common stock which ifpaid

each day for 365-day period would equal an approximate 6.7% annualized rate based on purchase price of$ 10.00 per share All distributions paid to date have been flmded

by combination of cash generated through operations advances from our sub-advisor and borrowings
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The tax composition of our distributions declared for the years ended December31 2012 and 2011 was as follows

2012 2011

Ordinary Income 00/ 00/

Retum of Cspital
100% 100%

Total
100% 100%

Use of Initial Public Offering Proceeds

On August 12 2010 oUr registration statement on Form S-li File No 333-164313 covering public offering
of up to 180000000 shares of common stock was declared

effective under the Securities Act of 1933 We commenced our initial public offering on September 17 2010 upon retaining
the Dealer Managerof our offering We are offering

150000000 shares of common stock in our primary offering at an aggregate offering price of up to $1.5 billion or $10.00 per
ilsare with discounts available to certain

categories of purcbasers The 300000O0sbares offered under the DRP are initially being offered at an aggregate offering price
of $285milllon or $9.50 per share We are

selling the shares registered in our primary offering over three-year period which ends August 122013 Underrules promulgated by the SEC in some instancet we may

extend the primary offering beyond that date We may sell shares under the DRP beyond the tenninstion of the primary offering until we bave sold all the shares under the plan

As of December 31 2012 we have issued 13801251 shares of common stock including 155940 shares sold through the DRP generatinggross cash proceeds of $136.1

million As of December 31 2012 we had incurred $8.9 million in selling commissions all of which was resilowed to participating broker-dealest $2.9 million in dealer manager

fees $0 million of which was reallowed to partscipatmg
bmker dealers and $7 million of orgamzation and offering costs

From the commencement of our public offering through December 31 2012 the Oct offering proceeds to us alter deductingthetotal etpenCeaincurrcd as described above

were approximately $117.1 million As of December 31 2012 we have used the net proceeds from our offering combined with debt financing to ptirchsse $307.0 million in

real estate and to pay $6.2 million of acquisition and origination fees and expenses

Unregistered
Sales of Equity Securities

During 2012 did not issue any securities thatwere not registered under the Securities Act

Share Repurchase Program

Our share repurchase program may provide limited opportunity
for stockholders to have sharei of common stock repurchased subject to certain restrictions and limitations at

price equal to or at discount from the purchase price paid
for the shares being repurØhased

Only those stockholders who purchased their shares from us or received their shares from us directly or indirectly through one or more non-cash transactions may be able to

participate
in the share

repurchase program in other words once our shares are transferred for value by stockholder the transferee and all subsequent holders of the shares

arc not eligible to participate
in the share repurchase program

The repurchase price varies basedupon the length
of time that the shares of our common stock aubjedt to repurchase

have been held Unless the shares are being repurchased in

connection with stockholders death 4etcrmination of incompetence or qualiling disability the prices at which we will repurchase shares areas follows

the lower of $925 and 92.5% of the price paid to acquire the shares fdr stockholders whohave held their shares for at least oneyear

the lower of $9.50 and 95.0% of the price paid to acquire the shares for stockholders who have held their shares for at least two years

the lower of $9.75 and 97.5% of the price paid to acquire
the shares for stockholders who have held their shares for at least three years and

the lower of $10.00 and 100% of the price pald to acquire
the shares for stockholders who have held theft shares for at least four years

The cash available for redemption on any particular date will generally be limited to the proceeds from the DRP during the period consisting of the preceding
four fiscal

quarters

for which financial statements are available less any cash already used for redemptions
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during the same period however subject to the limitations described above we may use other sources of cash at the discretion of the board of directors The limitations

described above do not apply to shares
repurchased

due toa stockholders death qualifying disability or determination of incompetence

Notwithstanding the above once we establiah an estim5ted fair value per share of our common stock that is not based on the
price to acquire

share in the primary offering or

follow-on
public or private ofibring the repurchase price per share for all stockholders would be equal to the estimated fair value

per share as determined by the Advisor or

another firm chosen for that purpose

In some respects we would treat repurchases sought-upon stockholders death qualifying disability or determination of incompetence differently from other repurchases

there is no one-year holding requirement and

until we establish an estimated value per share which we expect to be upon the completion of our offering stage described abovq the repurchase price is the

amount paid to acquire the shares -fromus

Repurchases of shares of common stock will be made monthly upon written notice received by us at least five days prior to the end of the applicable month Stockholders may
withdraw their repurchase request

at any time up to fjve business days prior to the repurchase date

The board of directors may in its sole discretion amend suspend or terminate the share repurchase program at any time If the board of directors decides to amend suspend or

terminate the share repurchase programstockholdera will be.provided with no less -than 30 days written notice

For the year ended December 31 2011 we repurchased 5630 shares under the share repurchase program for total of $56244 or $9.99 per share For -the year ended

December 31 2012 we repurchased 3749 shares under the share repurchase program for total of $35089 or $9.36 per
share Forthe years ended December 31 2012 and

2011 there were no additional shares- eligible for repurchase that were tendered for repurchase All of tile shares that we repurchased pursuant to our share repurchase program

duringthequarterendedDecember3l2Ol2areproyidedbelow

Approximate Dollar

Total Number of Shares Value of Shares Available

PurchasedasPartofa ThatMay-YetBe

Total Number of Average Price Paid
Publicly Announced Redeemed Under the

Period Shares Redeemed51 per Share Plan or Programt2 Pgram
October 2012 1249 8.38 1249

November 2012

December 2012

All purchases of our equity securities by us in the three months ended December31 2012 were made pursuant to the share repurchase- program

We announced the commencement of the share repurchase program on August 12 2010 and it was subsequently amended on September 29

2011

We currently limit the dollar value and number of shares that may yet
be repurchased under the share

repurchase progrsmas described above
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under liquity Compensation Plans

The followmg table provides mformation regarding our 2010 Long Term Incentive Plan and our Amended and Restated 2010 Independent Director Stock Plan as of December

31 2012 in thousands

Number of securities Weighted-average Number of securities

to be issued upon exercise price of remaining available

exercise of outstanding for future issuance

outstanding options options warrants under equity

Plan Category warrants and rights snd rights compensation plans

Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 200

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

Total 9200

To date no awards have been granted under the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan or the Amended and Restated 2010 Independent Director Stock

Plan
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ITEM SELECTED FINAIC1AL DATA

PHILLIPS EDISON-ARC SHOPPING CENTER RE1T INC

For the year ended December 312012 2011 and 2010 and the period from December 2009

formation to December 312009

In thousands except per share amounts

Balance Sheet Data

Investment in real estate assets net

Acquired intangible lease asSets net

Cash and cash equivalents

Other assets

2012

283858

20957

7654

12941

2011 2010 2009

69492 19061

6799 2341

6969 707 200

1932 604 943

325410 85192 22713 1143

Total liabilities 173139 58007 21556

Equity

Total liabilities and equity

Operating Data

Total revenues

Property operating expenses

Real estate tax expenses

General and administrative expenses

Acquisition expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Operating loss

Interest expense

Other income

Net loss

Net loss attributable to noncontrofling interests

4273
927

2516
152

747

Net loss attributable to Company stockholders

Cash Flow Data

Cash flows provided by operatrag activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows provided by financing activities

Per Share Data

Net loss
per

sharebasic and diluted

Weighted average
distributions

per share declared

Weighted average shares outstandingbasic and diluted

0.51

0.65

6509470

1.57

0.65

1503477

Total assets

Mortgage loans payable

Notes payableaffiliates

Accounts payableaffiliates

Other liabilities

159007 46788 14695

600

152271

3634 8395 5542 943

10498 2824 719

943

27185 1157 200

325410 85192 22713 1143

17550 3529 98

2957 631 14
2055 507 18
1717 845 228

3981 1751 467

8094 1500 81

1254 1705 710

3020 811 38

3346 2364 747

4033 593 201

198478 56149 21249
195130 61818 21555 200

The selected financial data should be read in
conjunction

with the consolidated financial statements and notes appearing
in this nnuaI

4.44 N/A

0.22

168419 20000

report
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL cONDrnON AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data in Item above and our accompanying consolidated financial statements and

notes thereto See also Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements preceding Part

Overview

Phillips EdisonARC Shopping Center REIT Inc was formed as Maryland corporation on October 13 2009 and has elected to be taxed as real estate investment trust

REIT commencing with the taxable
year

ended December 31 2010 We are offering pursuant toa registration statement $1 785 billion in shares of common stock in our

initial psblic offering on best efforts basis Our offering consists of primary offering of $1.5 billion in shares-offered to investors at price of $10.00 pet share with

discounts available for certain
categories of purchasers and $285 million in shares offered to stockholders pursuant to dividend reinvestment plait the DRP at price of

$9.50 per share We have the
right to reallocate the shares of common stock offered between the primary offering and the DRP

During the year ended December 31 2012 we issued 11143092 shareg of commop stock net of 3749 shares repurchased and including 139293 shares through the DRP

generating gross cash proceeds of $110.8 million As of December 312012 we had issued 13801251 shares of common stock including 155940 shares issued through the

DRP generating gross cash proceeds of $136.1 million since the commencement of our initial public offering

During the
year

ended December 31 2012 we acquired 19
properties including13 properties acquired throughthe Joint Venture for combined purchase price of $230.1

million The weighted average capitalization rate for our 2012 acquisitions was 8.0% The capitalization rate is calculatedby dividing the annualized net operating income of

property as of the date of acquisition by the purchase price
of the property As of December 31 2012 we owned fee simple interests in 26 properties in 15 states across the

Uinted States that collectively total 2490177 square feet with combined purchase price of $307.0 million Included in-these-totals are 20 properties owned through the Joint

Venture that total 1878177 square feetwith a-combined purchase price of $21 1.1 million Our portfolio was purchased at weightedaverage-capitalizationrate of 8.1% and

was 95.0% leased as of December 31 2012

Market OutlookReal Estate and Real Estate Finance Markets

Management reviews number of economic forecasts and market commentaries in order to evaluate general economic conditions and to formulate view of the current

environments effect on the real estate markets in which we operate

As measured by the U.S real
gross

domestic product GDP the U.S economys growth increased 2.2% in 2012 as compared to 2011 according to
preliminary

estimates

For 2011 real GDP increased 1.8% compared with an increase of 3.0% for 2010 According to the Commerce Department the real GDP acceletation in 2012
primarily reflected

deceleration in imports upturns in residential fixed investment and smaller decreases in state local and federal
spending

The increase in real GDP in 2012 reflected positive

contributions from personal consumption expenditures nonresidential fixed investment exports residential fixed investment and private inventory investment that were partly

offset by negative contributions from federal government spending and from suite and locel government spending Although theU.S-GDP has- increased for twelve consecutive

quarters and the increases have been far below the historical average annual growth rate

U.S GDP is expected to grow 2.5% in 2013 In general the economic outlook is mixed as there has beensigniflcantgrowth in the creation ôfjobs otdr thepast three years yet

the number of people who are unemployed remains high There is also much uncertainty with the direction of U.S economic policy as the President and Congress have

draissatically different approaches to the stabilization ofthe economy This uncertainty arid the ongoing weakness the U.S atonomyhO led-the Fedesal Reservb to commit to

maintain an ultra low interest rate policy until mid 2015

The
lending

environment for commercial real estatO continued to improve during 2012 and that improvement appears likely to continue iii 2013 According to the latest

information available the retail real estate industry showed the largest increase in new mortgages with an incratseof 56%inthe secondquarter of 2012 as compaed to the

second quarter of 2011

The U.S retail real estate market continued to display mixed signals in its ongoing rebounding effort during 2012 with vacancyratescontinuing top but with
average per

square foot leasing rates also continuing to decline Vacancy rates dropped to 6.9% at December 312012 as compared to 7.1% at the end pf 2011 Net absorption defined as

the net change in occupied space
over

given period of time also continued to increase in 2012 It
appears

the
positive absorption and decreased vacancy rate are continuing

to

come at the expense of rents Average rents on per square foot basis continued their four year trend of decreasmg by dropping to $14 99 at the end of 2012 from $15 12 at

theendof20ll
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The dollar sales total of retajirealestate transactions increasedslightly in 2012as comparedin 2011 As thevolume of transactions increased sales prices increased and price per

square
foot of transactions increased which resulted in decrease in capitalization rates in 2012

Overall retail real estate displayed improving fundamentals in 2012 The improving fundamentals along with the improving job creation and personal consumption expenditure

data suggest an increasingly positive market situation in 2013 however this optimism is tempered with the ongoing uncertainty related to the political environment

The Joint Venture

On September 202011 we entered into the Joint Venture with xgroup of institutional international investorsadvised by CBRE Global Multi Manager each CBRE
Investos We through an indirectly wholly owned subsidiasy serve as the general paitnerof and own 54% interest in the Joint Venture Each CBRE Investor is limited

partner and they collectively own a46% interest in the Joint Venture Below is asuminary of the major terms of the Joint Venture

Investment Strategy The Joint Venture has invested in necessity-based neighborhood and community shopping centers with acquisition costs of no more than $20 million
per

property Each acquired property has an occupancy rate of at least 80% with no vacant primary anchor tenant at the time of acquisition The aggregate
level of debt

financing
is

generally not tnexceed 50 ol the
gross

asset value of the
properties

owned by the Jomt Venture

Capital Contributions We have contributed approximately $59 million to the Joint Venture and the CBRE Investors have contributed $50 million in cash We funded our

capital commitment through the contribution of six properties with purchase price of approximately $63.0 million to acquire those properties and cash

Management As general partner we control the management of the Joint Veniure We have engaged the Advisor to advise the Joint Venture The Advisor has delegated its

duties with respect to the Joint Venture to the Sub-advisor We have also engaged the Property Manager to provide property management services to the Joint Venture The

agreements generally mirror the similar agreements in
place among and between us and the Advisor the Sub-advisor and the

Property Manager

Certain mor decisions require the approval of an executive committee which consists of four members two appointed by us and two appointed by the CBRE Investors The

major decisions that require executive committee approval include but are not ted to

certain
related-party transactions

acquisitions not consistent with the Joint Ventures investment strategy

the incurrence of debt or guarantees not consistent with the Joint Ventures investment strategy

litigation with a-primary anchor tenant

the decision to rebuild property that has suffered casualty except as required by any lease or loan document

disposingof substantially all of the assets of the Joint Venture beforeAugust 132013

the dissolution or liquidation of the Joint Venture or any subsidiary and

any amendment to the limited pailpership agreement of the Joint Venture

Distributions The Jomt Venture makes periodic distributions of net cash flow to us and the CBRE Investors pro rate based on our respective percentage mterests The CBRE

Investors
pro

rate share of distributions are first distributed to the CBRE Investors until they have received an inflation-adjusted real rate of return of 5% The remaining net

cash flow allocated to the CBRE Investors is then distributed 85% to the CERE Investors and 15% to the Sub-advisor which is also limited partner for purposes of earning

the promote but which is not mestmg any capital in the Jomt Venture No carried mterest is paid to the Sub-advisor with respect to the distributions allocated to us because we

pay an incentive fee to the Advisor and Sub-advior pursuant
to our existing advisory agreement

Transfer Restrictions The limited partnership agreement contains restrictions on each partners ability to transfer their interests in the Joint Venture including certain indirect

transfert Notwithstanding then restrictions none of the following transfers would constitute breach of the limited partnesslup agreement

transfers of CI3RE Investor interest the Joint Venture provided that we are first given an opportunity to purchase the interest at the proposed transfer pnce

transfers of our interest in the Jomt Venture to qualified property manager for cash afler the
expiration

of the lock-out period which is defined as the earlier

ofi August 312013 or ii the first date on which we have raised aggregate equity of $1.5 billion subject to the CERE Investors tag-along rights described

below
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indirect transfers of our interests such as through changes in the ownership of us or the Operating Partnership if no single person would directly or indirectly own

20% of our subsidiasy that acts as the general partner to the Joint Venture

any transfer of our shares issued in our current public offering or other public offerings
and

certain transfers to affiliates

Tag-Along Rights If we sell our interests to qualified property manager we must use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the purchaser to also purchase all of the

interests of those individual CBREinvestors who desire to sell If th purchaser does not agree to purchaae all of these interests then each CBRE Investor who desires to sell will

sell proportionate part of the mterest it desires to sell and we will sell proportionate part of our interest

If we conduct registered offering of shares listed on national securities exchange each CBRE Investor has the right to convert its interest in the Joint Venture into privately

issued shares in our company The number of shares to be received will be based on the appraised value of the assets of the Joint Venture divided by the price paid in the
offering

Go-Along Obligation After the expirationof the lock-out period if tve enter into an agreement to sell all of our interests in the Joint Venture for cash purchase price the

CBRE Investors must also sell all of their interests to the purchaser on the same terms

Buy/Sell Procedures We or theCBRE Investors acting asa group may initiate buy/sell procedures with respect to our respective ownership interests in the event that

majority of the executive committee members are not able to reach-au agreement on certain major decisions Under the
buy/sell procedures one partner must deliver to the other

partner
notice of its intention to exercise the buy/sell option Such notice shall state the value of the real and tangible personal property

owned by the Joint Venture The partner

receiving Cuch notice must either sell its interests based on the value provided in the notice or ii buy the Other partners
interests based upon that value The buy/sell rights

are not applicable at any time in which our interest in the Joint Venture is worth more than half of our total assets

Results of Operations

Overview

Prior to September 17 2010 our operations hadnot yet commenced.-The accompanyingdiscussion of the results of operations
for the period ended December31 2010

pertain only to the period
that our operations commenced September 17 2010 and the property-level information covers only

the brief
period beginning with our first

acquisition Lakeside Plaza on December 10 2010 We acquired five properties during 2011 bringing total properties owned as of December 31 2011 to seven and we

acquired 19 properties during 2012 bringing
total properties owned as of December 31 2012 to 26 As such year-to-year comparative differences for the

years
ended

December31 2010 2011 and 2012 are almostentirely attributable toihe slumber of properties owned the length of ownership oftheseproperties and the abbreviated period

of operations during 2010 As result the following
discussion of our results of operation is not neceasanly indicative of those expected future periods

Summary of Operating Activities for the Years Ended December31 2012 2011 and 2010

Total revenues for the year ended December 31 20l2were-$17550000 with rental income of $13828000 Other revenues largely comprised of tenant reimbursements

were $3722000 Total revenues for the year ended December31 2011 were $3529000 with rental income of $2762000 and other revenues largely comprised of tenant

reimbursements of $767000 Total revenues-for year-endedDecernber 31 2010 were $98000 with rental incomeof $85000 Other-revenue-largely comprised of tenant

reimbursements was $13 000

During the year
ended December 31 2012 we entered into 18 new leases comprising total of 32584 square feet These leases will

generate
first

year
base rental revenues of

$358000 representing average rent peusquare foot of $10.99 In addition we executed renewals on 38 leases comprising -a total of 82724 square
feet These leases will

generate first year base rental revenues of $1338000 representing average rent per square
foot of $16.18 Thecost of executing

the leases and renewals including leasing

commissions tenant improvement costs and tenant concessions was $4.32 per square
foot During the

year
ended December 31 2011 we entered into two new leases

comprising total of 3050 square feet These leases generated first year base rental revenues of $51000 representing average rent per square
foot of $16.72 In addition we

executed renewals on two leases comprising total of 2900 square
feet These leases generated first year

base rental revenues of 47000 representing average rent per square

footof$16.23 The cost of executing the leases-and renewals including leasing commissions tenant improvementcosts and tenant-concessions was $17.47 per square foot

There was no
leasing activity durihg theyear ended December 312010 as we didnot acquire our first propesty untilDecember 2010

Property operating costs were $2957000 for the
year

ended December31 2012 The significant items comprising this expense were common area maintenance expense of

$1653000 property management fees paid to an affiliate of the Sub-advisor of $756000 and
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insurance expense of $368000 Property operating costs were $631000 for the year ended December 312011 The significant ilems attributable to this total were common

area maintenance expense of $305000 property management fees related to services provided by affiliates of the Sub-advisor of $157000 and insurance expense of $64000

Property operating expenses
fur

year
ended December 31 2010 were approximstely $14000 The items comprising this expense included common area maintenance expense

and insurance

Real estate taxes were $2055000 $507000 and $18000 respectively for the
years

endedDecember 31 20122011 and 2010

General and administrative expenses were $1717000 $845000 and $228000 respectively for the years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 These amounts were

comprised largely of audit and tax fees ssset management fees 2011 and 20l2oniy legal fees board-related expenses and insuranceexpense In addition to the acquisition of 19

properties since December31 2011 the primaiy reason for the increase in general and administrative
expenses

is $634000 increase in asset management fees which were paid

solely by the CBRE Investors Our
sponsors

also provided $88000 and $140000 for certain of our general and administrative expenses as capital
contributions

during the

years
ended December 31 20 and 2010 respectively Our

sponsors
have not received and will not receive any re nibursement for these contributions Our sponsors do not

intend to contribute monies to fund future expenses There was no such capital contribution for the
year

ended December31 2012 For the years ended December31 2012
2011 and 2010 the Advisor Sub-advisor and their affiliates did not allocate any portion

of their employees salaries to general and administrative expenses

Under the terms of our advisory agreement waiver of all or portion of the asset management fee occurred for any applicable period through September 30 2012 to the

extent that as of the date of the payment our modified funds from operations as defined in accordance with the then-current practice guidelines issued by the Investment

Program Association with an additional adjustment to add back capital contribution amounts received from the Sub-advisor or an affiliate thereof without any corresponding

issuance of
equity to the Sub-4dvssor or affiliate dunng the

quarter were not at least equal to our declared distributions during the
quarter provided that the distribution rate

during such quarter was no more than $0.65 per share on an annualized basis

Asset management fees were $1243000 for the year ended December31 2012 but $546000 of these fees were waived by the Advisor did Sub-advisor pursuant to the

advisory agreement provision detailed in the
previous paragraph For the year ended December 31 2012 the net asset management fees of $697000 were paid solely by the

CBRE Investors as the amouiit of asset management fees for which we were responsible was waived or reimbursed to us by the Advisor and Sub-advisor
pursuant to the

advisory agreement between the Joint Venture and the Advisor Asset management fees were $347000 for the
year ended December 31 2011 but $284000 of these fees were

waived by the Advisor and Sub-advisor pursuant to the advisory agreement provision detailed in the
previous paragraph For the year ended December31 2011 the net asset

management fees of $63000 were paid solely by the CBRE Investors Asset management fees were $18000 for year endçd December 31 2010 but were waived by the

Advisor and Sub-advisor

On Februasy 2013 we and the Operatmg Partnership
entered mto an Amen4ed and Restated Advisory Agreement the AR Advisory Agreement with the Advisor The

AR Advisory Agreement prevides that the asset management compensation structure contemplated in the prey ous advisory agreement between us and theAdvisor as
discussed above is eliminated effective October 2012 Instead we expect to issue to the Advisor on.a quarterlybasis performance-based restricted partnership units of the

Operating Partnership designated as Class units The Class units will vest and will no longer be subject to forfeiture at such time as all of the following events occur

the value of the Operating Partaerships assets plus all distributions made
equals or exceeds the total amount of capital contributed by investors plus -6%- cumulative pre-tax

non-compounded annual return thereon the economic hurdie any one of the following occurs the termination of the AR Advisory Agreement by an affinnative vote

of majority of our independent directors without cause 2a hating event or another liquidity event and the Advisor is still
providing advisory services to us the

service condition Such Class umts will be forfeited immediately if the AR Advisory Agreement is terminated for cause or the AR Advisory Agreement is

terminated by an affirmative vote of majonty of our independent directors without cause before the economic hurdle has been met The Class umts are participating

securities that will receive distributions at the same rates and dates as the distributions paid to our common stockholders These disuibutionswill be calculat by the
product

of

the number of unvested units issued to date and the stated distribution rate at the time the
applicable distributions are authorized

On February 13 2013 the Operating Partnership issued 5245 Class units to the Advisor under the AR Advisory Agreement for the asset management services

performed by the Advisor during the period from October 12012 to December31 2012. These Class units will not vest until the conditions referenced above have been

met

Acquisition expenses were $3 981 000 for the
year

ended December 31 2012 Included in these
acquisition fees and expenses were $1 705 000 of

acquisition
fees due to the

Advisor and Sub-advisor sod $390000 of expense incurred for
acquisitions

that did not close during the period Acquisition expenses were $1751000 for the year ended

December31 2011 Included in these
acquisition expenses were acquisition fees due to the Advisor and Sub advisor of $356 000 for the five

acquisitions that closed during

2011 $288000 for the completion of the Joint Venture agreement and $68000 of expense was incurred for prospective acquisitions that did
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not close or had not yet closed For year ended December 31 2010 acquisition expenses inthe amount of $467000 were incurred Included in these acquisition expenses
were

acquisition fees due to the Advisor and Sub-.advisor of $215000 and $34000 of
expense

that was incurred for prospective acquisitions that did not close or had not yet closed The

remainder of the expense largely related to various professional services provided in connection with the acquisitions including accounting legal environmental and due diligence

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 respectively was $8094000 $1500000 and $81000

Interest expense was $3020000 $811000 and $38000 for the years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 respectively Of the 2010 interest expense

approximately $2000was related to loan provided to us by the Sub-advisor

As result of the contribution of properties and cash to the Joint Venture beginning in November 2011 46% of all net income or net loss subject to certain adjustments

recorded by the Joint Venture is allocable to the CBRE Investors For
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 $927000 and$152000 respectively of the net loss of the

Joint Venture was allocated to the CBRE Investors As the operations of the Joint Venture did not begin until November 2011 there was no corresponding allocation of the net

loss for the
year

ended December 31 2010 to the CBRE Investors

The net loss attrsbutable to our stockholders was $3 346 000 $2 364 000 and $747 000 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Same Center Net Operating Income

We
present

Same Center Net Operating Income as supplemental measure of our performance We define Net Operating Income NOI as total operating revenues lees

property operating expenses Same Center NOI represents the NOI for Lakeside Plaza and Snow View Plaza the
properties

that were operational for the entire
portion

of both

comparable reppetmg periods and which were not acquired or disposed of4unng the comparable reporting periods We believe that NOI and Same Center NOI provide useful

mfoimation to our investors about our financial and operating performance because it provides performance measure of the revenues and expenses directly involved in owning

and operat ng real estate assets nd provides perspective not immediately apparent fromnet income Because Same Center NOl excludes the change in NOT from properties

acquired and disposed of it highlights operathgtjends such as occupancy leiels rental rates and operating costs on properties that were operational for both comparable periods

Other REIT5 may use different methodologies for calculating Same Center NOI and accordingly our Same Center NOI may not be comparable to other REITs

Same Center NOI shouldnot be viewed as an alternative measure of our financial performance since it does not reflect theoperations of our entire portfolio nor does it reflect the

impact of general and administrative expenses acquisition expenses interest expense depreciation and amortization other income and the level of capital expenditures and leasing

coats necessary to maintain the operating performance of our properties that could materially impact our results from operations
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Below is reconciliation of net less to Sane Center NOl for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 in thousands

2012 2011 Change 0/ Change

Net loss 4273 2516
Interest expense 3020 811

Other income

Operating loss 1254 1705
Adjusted to exclude

General andadniinistrative 1717 845

Acquisition expenses 3981 1751

Depreciation and ainortizatien 8094 1500

Net smortization of above- and below-market leases 395 312

Straight-line rental income 440 79
Property net operating income 12493 2624

Less non-ssme center NOl 10632 913

Total samecenterNOl 1861 1711 150 8.8%

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

Our principal demands for funds are for real estate and real estate-related investments and the payment of
acquisition expenses operating expenses distributiOns tO stockholders

and
principal and interest on our outstanding indebtedness Generally expect cash needed for items other than acquisitions and aequisitiod expenses

tbd gefleratedfrom

operations
and our current investments The sources of our operating

cash flowsare primarily driven by the rental mcome received fron leased
properties We expect to cotitinue

to raise capital through our offering of common stock and to utilize such funds and proceeds from secuted or tinseciiretl fisiancing to complete future property acquisitions As

ofDecember3l 2012we hadraised approximately $136.1 millioningràssproceede fromouroffering including $1.5thuhionthtoughthe DRP

As of December 31 2012 we had cashand cash equivalentsof approximately $7.7 million During the
year

ended December 31 2012 se had net cash increase of

approximately $0.7 million

This cash increase was the result of

$4.0 million provided by operat ng activities largely the result of income generated from operations portion
olwhich was offset by the reimbursement of general

and administrative expenses to the Sub-advisor Also included in this total was approximately $4.0 million of real estate acquisition expenses incurred during the

period and expensed in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ASC 805 Business Combinations ASC 805 and $409000 of capitalized

leasing costs

$198.5 million used in investing activities which was primarily the result of the 19 property acquisitions along with tenant improvement costs of $130000 and

capital improvement costs of $575000 and

$195.1 million provided by financing
activities with

approximately $209.7 million from the proceeds from mortgage loans $94.8 million from the net proceeds of

the issuance of common stock and $35.6 million provided by the CBRE Investors Partially offsetting these amounts was $140.2 million of payments on the

mortgage loans payable distributions paid to the CBRE Investors of $2.4 million and distributions paid to our stockholders of $2.3 million netof DRP proceeds

Short-term Liquidity and Capital Resources

We
expect to meet our short-term liquidity requirements through net cash provided by property operations proceeds from our offering and proceeds from secured and

unsecured debt
financings along with any deferral or waiver of fees by the Advisor or Sub-advisor Operating cash flows are expected to increase as additional properties are

added to our portfolio Other than the commissions paid to the Dealer Manager the organization and offering costs associated with our offering are initially paid by our sponsors

Our sponsors will be reimbursed for such costs up to 1.5% of the
gross capital raised in our offering As of December31 2012 we owe the Advisor Sub-advisor and their

affiliates total of $3.6 million of organization and offering costs incurred on our behalf and fees charged to us for asset management property management and other services

In addition approximately $6.9 million of
offering costs incurred by the Sub-advisor on our behalf has not been charged to us or recorded in our consolidated financial

statements Whether these costs will be billed to us in the future will depend on the success of our offering and the discretion of the Sub-advisor Our sponsors provided

$88000 during
the

year ended December 31 2011 and $140000 for the
year

ended December 31 2010 for certain of our general and administrative expenses as capital

contributions Our sponsors have isot received and will not receive any
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reimbursement or additional equity for these contributions The sponsors provided no such capital contributions for the year
ended December 312012.- Our

sponsors
do not

intend to make further capital contributions to continue to fund certain of our general and administrative expenses

We have $157.1 million of contractual debt obligations representing variable-rate and fixed-rate credit facilities and mortgage loans secured by our real estate assets Of the

amount outstanding at December 31 2012 $17 nuuson is for loans which mature in 2013 and we have one year extension option on each loan maturmg in 2013 subject to

extension fees
and-compliance

with loan covenants We intend to extend if possible or refinance these loans as they mature We have access to an unsecured credit facility with

$10.0 million of available funds on which we had not drawn any funds as of December 31 2012 We also have access to secured credit facility with up to $120.0 million of

available funds on which we had drawn $36.7 million as of December 312012 --

For the
year

ended December 31 2012
gross distributions of approximately $3 673 000 were paid

to stockholders mcludmg $1 324 000 of distributions remvested through

the DRI for net cash distributions of $2349000 Our cash generated from operating activities for the year ended December 31 2012 was $4033000 On January 2013

gross distributions of approximately $717000 were paid including $298000 of distributions reinvested through the DRP for net cash distributions of $419000 These

distributions were funded by cash generated from operatmg activities

On November 2012 ourboard of directors authorized distributions to the stockholders of record at the close of bugines each clay in the period commencing Januasy 2013

through and including January 31 2013 The authorized distributions equal an amount of $0.00178082 per share of commonstock par value $0.01 per share This equates to

6.50% annualized yield when calculated on $10.00 per share purchase price portion
of each distribution is expected to constitute return of capital foitax purposes

Distributions for the month of Januasy were paid on February 12013 Our policy is not to funddistributions with proceeds from our offering

Our leverage ratios were 48.5% and 51.7% calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents as percentage of total real estate investments including acquired intangible

lease assets at cost as of December31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Long-term Liquidity and Capital Resources

On long-term basis our principal demands for funds will be for real estate and real estate-related investments and the payment of
acquisition expenses operating expenses

distributions and redemptions to stockholders interest and principal on indebtedness and payments on amounts due to our sponsors for organization and offering costs incurred

on our behalf Generally we expect to meet cash ndeds for items other than acquisitions and acquisitiosi expenses from our cash flow from operations and we expect to meet

cash needs for acquisitions and acquisition expenses from the net proceeds of our offering and from debt financings As they mature we intend to refinance our long-term debt

obligations if possible On December24 2012 we also enterecLmto $40 million secured revolvmg credit facility with the potential to increase the borrowing capacity under

such facility to $250.0 million from which we may draw funds to pay certain long-term debt obligations as they mature We expect that substantially all net cash generated from

operations
will be used to pay distributions to our stockholders after certain capital expenditures including tenant improvements and leasing commissions are funded however

we may use other sources to fund distributions as necessary including contributiotis or advances made to us by the Advisor Sub-advisor and their respective affiliates and

borrowings under future debt agreemonts

Our charter limits our borrowings to 300% of our net assets as defined in our charter however we may ceed that limit if majority of our conflicts committee approves

each borrowing in excess of our charter limitation and if we disclose such borrowing to our stockholders in our next quarterly report with an explanation from the conflicts

committee of the
justification

for the excess borrowing In all events we expect
that Our ecured and unsedured borrowings will be reasonable in rØlationto the net value of our

assets and will be reviewed by our board of directors at least quarterly

Careful use of debt will help us to achieve our diversification goals because we will have more funds available for investment However high levels of debt could cause us to incur

higher interest
charges

and higher debt service payments which would decrease the amount of cash available for distribution to our investors
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The table below summarizes ow consolidatedindebtedness at December 31 2012 dollars in thousands

Principal Weighted Weighted

Amount at Average Average Years

Debt51 December31 2012 Interest Rate to Maturity

Fixedratemortgagespayable2 43934 63% 4.1

Variable rate mortgages payable 76424 2.6% 3.5

Secured line of credit 36709 2.5% 3.0

Total 157067 3.6% 3.5

The debt maturity table does not include
any

below market debt
adjustment

of which $1 940 net of accumulated amortization was

outstanding as ofDecember3l 2012

portion of the fixed rate debtxepresents loans assumedas part of certain acquisitions These loans typically have higher interest rates than

interest rates associated with new debt

Contractual Commitments and Contingencies

Our contractual obligations as of December 312012 were as follows in thousands

Payments due by period

Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Long-term debtobiigations-principalpayments 157067 18897 18436 38861 26389 40539 13945

Long teem debt
obligations interest payments1 18 440 422 554 650 088 228 498

Operating leasç obligations 97 20 20 20 20 17

Total 175604 24339 23010 42531 28497 41784 15443

Interest payments related tt variable rate debt were calculated using the respective interest rates of each variable rate debt instrument as of

December 31 2012

Certain of our debt obligations contain certain restrictive covenants As of December 31 2012 we are incompliance with all restrictive covenants of our outstanding debt

obligations

Distributions

During the year ended December 31 2012 gross distributions paid were $3673000 with $1324000 being reinvested through the DRP for net cash distributions of

$2349000 Our cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31 2012 was $4033000 During the year ended December 31 2011 gross
distributions

paid were $873000 with $158000 being reinvested through the DRP for net cash distributions of $715000 Our cash generated by operations for the
year ended December

31 2011 was $593000 To the extent that distributions paid were greater
than our cash provided by operating

activities for the
year

ended December31 2011 we funded

such excess distributions with advances from the Sub-advisor There were gross distributions of $717000 accrued and payable as of December 31 2012

Distributions for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 accrued at daily rate of $000178082 per share of common stock Our net loss attributable to stockholders for

the year ended December 31 2012 was $3346000 and net cash provided by operating activities was $4033000 Our cumulative
gross

distributions and net loss attributable

to stockholders from inception through December 31 2012 are $4460O0 and $6457000 respectively We have funded our cumulative distributions which includes net

cash distributions and distributions reinvested by stockholders with cash provided by operating activities advances from the Sub-Advisor and borrowings

We
expect to pay distributions monthly and continue paying distributions monthly unless our results of operations our general financial condition general economic conditions or

other factors make it imprudent to do so The
timing and amount of distributions will be determined by our board and will be influenced in part by our intention to comply with

REIT requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended

We may receive income from interest or rents at various times
during our fiscal year and because we may need funds from operations during particular period to fund capital

expenditures and other expenses we expect
that at least

during the early stages of our development and from time to time during our operational stage we will declare

distributions in anticipation of funds that we expect
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to receive duriog later period We will pay these diatributiooa in advaoce of our actual receipt of these funds In these instances we expect to look to boirowings to fluid our

distributions We may also fluid such distributions from advances from our spoosora or from any deferral or waiter of fees by the Advstor or Sub advisor To the extent that

we pay distributions from sources other than our cash provided by operating activities we will have fewer funds available foiinveatmeist in properties The overall retum to our

stockholders may bereduced and subsequent investors may experience dilution

Our distribution policy is oot to use the proceeds of our offering to pay distributions However our board hal the authority under our organizational documenta to the extent

permitted by Maryland law to pay distributions from any source without limit including proceeds from our offering or the proceeds from the issuance of securities in the

future

To maintain our qualification aa REIT we must make
aggregate

annual distributions to our stockholders of at least 90.0% of our REIT taxable income which is computed

without regard to the dividends paid deduction or net capital gain
and which does not necessarily equal net income as calculated in accordance with GAAP If we meet the REIT

qualification requirements we generally will not be subject to federal mcome tax on the income that we distribute to our stockholders each year

We have not established minimum diatribution level and our charter does not require
that we make distributions to our stockholders

Funds from Operations and Modified Funds from Operations

Funds from operationa or FF0 is non-GAAP performance financial measure that is widely recognized ass measure of REIT operating performance We use FF0 as defined

by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts to be net income loss computed in accordance with GAAP
excluding extraordinary items as defined by ClAM

and gains or losses from aalesof property including deemed sales and settlements of pre-existing relationships plus depreeiation and amortization on real State assets and

impairment charges and after related adjustments foruneonsolidsted partoerships joint ventures and subsidiaries and
noncontrolling

interests We believe that FF0 is helpful to

our investors and our management as-a measure of operating performance because it excludes real estate-related depreciation and amortization gains and losses from
property

dispositions impairment charges and extraordinary items and as result when compared year
to year reflects the impact on operations from trends in occupancy rates rental

rates operating costs development activities
general

and sdmiiustrative
expenses

and interest costs which are not immediately apparent
from net income Historical coat

accounting for real estate assets in accordance with CIAAP implicitly assumes that the value of real estate and
intangibles

dimmishes
predictably over time Since real estate values

have historically risen or fallen with market conditions maity industry investors and
analysts

have considered the
preacntstion

of
operating results for real estate companies that

use historical cost accounting alone to be insufficient As result our management behevea that the use of FF0 together with the required GAAP presentations is helpful for

our investors in
understanding our performance In particular because GAAP impairment charges are not allowed to be reversed if the underlying fair values improve or

because the timing of impairment charges may lag the onset of certain operating consequences we believe FF0 provides useful supplemental information related to current

consequences benefits and sustainsbility related to rental rate occtipsncy and other core operating flmdsmentals Factors that impactFFO incinde
start-up costs fixed costs

delay in buying assets lower yields on cash held in accounts income frbm portfolio properties and other portfolio atsets interest rates on acquisition financing and operating

expenses In addition FF0 will be affected by the
types

of investments in our targeted portfolio which willcOnsiet of but is not liniitedto necessity-based neighborhood and

community shopping centers first- and second-priority mortgage loans mezzanine loans bridge and other loans mortgage-backed securities collateralized debt obligations and

debt securities of real estate companies Investors should note however that determinations of whether impairment charges
have been incurred are based partly on anticipated

operating performance because estimated undiicounted cash flqws from property including estimated-future net rental and lease revenues net proceeds on the sale of the

property
and certain other ancillary

cash flows are taken into account in detemiimng whether an impairment charge has been incurred While impairment charges are excluded

from the calculation of FF0 as desenbed above as impairments are based on estimated flitore undiscounted cash flows investors are cautioned that we may not recover any

impairment charges FF0 is not usefiil measure in evalusting net asset value because impairments are taken into account in determining net asset value but not in
determining

FF0

Since FF0 was promulgated GASP has expanded to include several new sccounting pronouncements such that mshsgement and many investors
andanalysts have considered

the presentation of FF0 alone to be insufficient Accordingly in addition to FF0 we use modified fluids from
operations or MFFO as defined by the Investment Program

Association IPA MFFO excludes from FF0 the
following

items

acquisitioo fees and expenses

straight-linerentamountsbothincomeandexpense

amortization of aboe or below market intangible lease assets and liabihtiee

amortization of discounts and premiums on debt investments

gains or losses from the
early extinguishment of debt
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gains or losses on the extinguishment or sales of hedges foreign exchange securitis and other derivatives
holdings except

where the trading of such instruments is

fundamental attribute of our operations

gains or losses related to fair value adjustments for derivatives not qualifiing for hedge accounting including interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives

gains or losses related to consolidation from or deconsolidation to equity accounting

gains or losses related to contingent purchase price adjustments and

10 adjustments related to the above items for unconsolidated entities in the application of equity accounting

We believe that MFFO is helpful in assisting management and investors with the assessment of the
sustainability of operating performance in future

periods andin particular

after our offering and acquisition stages are complete primarily because it excludes acquisition expenses that affect property operations only in the period in which the
property is

acquired Thus MFFO provkes helpful information relevant to evaluating our operating performance in periods in which thein is no acquisition activity

As explained below managements evaluation of our operatin performance excludes the items considered inihe calculation based on the following economic considerations Many

of the
adjustments in arriving at MFFO are not applicable to us Nevertheless we explain below the reasons for each of the adjustments made in arriving at our MFFO definition

Acquisition fees and expenses In evaluating investments in real estate including both business combinations and investments accounted for under the
equity

method of accounting managements investment models and analyses differentiate costs to acquire theinvestment from the operations derived from the investment

Prior to 2009 acquisition costs for both of these
types

of investments were capitalized under GAAP however beginning in 2009 acquisition costs related to

business combinations are expensed Both of these acquisition-related costs have been and will continue to be funded from the proceeds of our offering and generally

not from
operations

We believe by excluding expensed acquisition costs MFFO provides useful supplemental information that is comparable for each type of real

estate investment and is consistent with managements analysis of the investing and operating performance of our properties Acquisition fees and expenses include

those paid to the Advisor the Sub-advisor or third parties

Adjustments for straight-line rents and amortization of discourtts and premiums on debt investments In the
proper application

of GAAP rental

receipts and discounts and premiums on dbt investments are allocated to periods using various systematic methodologies This
application may result in income

recognition
that could be

significantly different than underlying contract terms By adjusting for these items MFFO provides useful supplemental information on the

realized economic impact of lease erms and debt investments and aligns results with managements analysis of operating performance

Adjusiments for amortization of above- or below-market intangible lease assets Similar.to depreciation and amortization of other real estate related assets

that are excluded from FF0 GAAP implicitly assumes that the value of intangibles diminishes ratably over time and that these charges be recognized currently in

revenue Since real estate values and market lease rates in the
aggregate

have historically risen or fallen with market conditions management believes that by

excluding these char ges.MFFO provides useful supplemental information on the perfonnance of the real estate.-

Gains or losses related to fair-value adjustments for derivatives not qualy5ing for hedge accounting and gains or losses related to contingent

purchase price adjustments Each of these items relates to fair value adjustment witich is based on the impact of cUrrent market fluctuations and underlying

assessments of general market conditions and specific performance of the holding which nniy not be directly attributable to current operating performance As these

gains or losses relate to underlying long-term assets and liabilities management believes MFFO provides useful supplemental information by focusing on the changes

in core operating fundamentals rather than thanges that may reflect
anticipated gains or losses

Adjustment for gains or losses related to early extinguishment of hedges debt consolidation or deconsolidation and contingent purchase price

Similar to extraordinary items excluded from FF0 these adjustments are not related to continuing operations By excluding these items management believes that

MFFO
provides supplemental information related to sustainabl operations that will be more comparable between other reporting periods

and to other real estate

operators

By providing MFFO we believe we are presenting useful information that also assists investors and analysts to better assess the sustainability of our operating performance after

our offering and acquisition stages are completed We also believe that MFFO is recognized measure of sustainable operating performance by the non-listed REIT industry

MFFO is useful in comparing the sustainabiity of our operating performance after our offering and acquisition stages are completed with the sustainability of the operating

performance of other real estate companies that are not as involved in acquisition activities However investors are cautioned that MFFO should only be used to assess the

sustainability of our operating performance after our offering
and acquisition
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stages are completed as it excludes acquisition costs that have negative effect on our operating performance during the periods inwhich properties are acquired Acquisition

coats also-adversely affect our book value and equity

FF0 or MFFO should not he considered as an alternative to net income loss nor as an indication of our liquidity nor ie either indicative of funds available to fund our cash

neede including our ability to fund diatributiona In particular as we are currently in the acquisition phase of our life cycle acquieition-related costa and other
adjustmente

that

are increases to MFFO are and may continue to he significant use of caah MFFO baa limitations as performance measure in an offering euch as ours where the price of

share of common stock is atated value and there is no net asset value determination during the offering stage and for period thereafter Accordingly both FF0 andMFFO

should be reviewed in connection with-other CIAAP mcaaurements Our FF0 and MFFO as preeented may not be comparable to amounts calculated -by other-EITs

The following section
presents our calculation of FF0 and MFFO and

provides
additional information related to our operations in thousands except per

share amounts As

result of the
timing of the commencement of our offering and our active real estate operations

FF0 and MEFO are not relevant to discussion comparing operations for the two

periods presented1 We expect revenues and expenses to increase in ftsture periods as we raise additional offering prticeeda and use theps-to acquire additional investments

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS AND MODIFIED FUNDSFROM OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 AND 2011

Unaudited -- ---
.-

--I- --

Amussntsinthousandsexceptslsareandperslsarearnouists -- --

-- --
--

TbrsMsotba Ended December IL Year Ended December Ii Cumulathe since

2012 2011 2012-
--

-2011 iacepden

of Funds from Operasiona

Nstlnss sttributsbleto Company stockholders
-- 1247 $- 1071-- .- 3346 -2364 6457

Add
--t

Deprscistion and apsprtizstion of real estats assets 3015
--

647 1094 1500 9675
Less

Nonrontrollmg mtsrsst 242 117 539 117 656

Funds from operatsona FF0 526 541 209 981 431

Calculation of ModifIed Funds from Operations

Fundafromoperations
--

526 541 1209 911 431
Add

Acquisition expenses 15651 1011 3981 1751 6199

Net amortization of abovs- and below-market leases 58 9-8
--

395- 312 724

Less

Straightline rental-income -- 154
--

-45 440 79 519

Amortizationofmarketdebtadjuatment 153 -- 235 --
-- 235

Nonrontrolling interest 18 124 615 124 739

ModifledfiindsfromopcrationsMFFO 1860 399 4295 879 4992

Weighted average common shares outstanding basic and diluted 11 200 440 312 047 6509 470 503 477 2663 204

Netloseperahare-basicanddiluted 0.11 0.46 0.51 1.57 2.42
FF0

per
share basic and diluted 0.05 0.23 0.19 0.65 0.16

MFFopershare-basicanddiluted 0.17
----

0.17 0.66 $- 0.58 1.87

Critical Accounting Polsctes

Below is discussion of our cntscsl accountmg policsea Our accountmg policies have been established to conform with IAAP We conssder these polirset cntscal because they

mvolve significant management judgments and assumptions require
estimates about matters that are mherently uncertam and because they are important for understandmg and

evaluating our reported financial results These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and our disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of

the fmancial statements and the reported amounts of revenus and expenses during the reporting periods With different estimates or assumptions materially different amounts

could be reported our financial statements Additionally other compames may utilize different estimates that may unpact the comparability of our results of operations to those

of companies in timilar businesses

Real Estate Assets

Depreciation and Amortization Investments in real estate are carried at cost and depreciated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives

Third-party

acquisition costs arc expensed as incurred Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expense as
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incurred and significant replacements and betterments will be capitalized Repair and maintenance costs includeall costs that do not extend the uaefisl life of the real estate asset

We consider the period of future benefit of an asset to determine its appropriate uaefiul life Coats directly associated with thedevelopment of land and those incurred during

construction will be capitalized as part
of the investment basis We anticipate the estimated usefiul lives of our saaeta by ctssa to be generally as follows

Buildings 30years

Building improvements 30
years

Landietiprovementa
15

years

Tenant improvements Shorter of lease term or expected useful life

Tenant origination and absorption costs Remaining term of related lease

Eurnsture fixtures and eqsssprnsnt years

Real Estate Acqutsition Accounting In accordance with ASC 805 we record real estate consisting of landbuildings and improvements at fair value We allocate the eott

of an acquisition to the acquired tangible assets identifiable intangibles and assumed liabilities based on their estimated acquisition-date fair values in addition ASC 805 requires

that aeqmsition costs be expensed as incurred and restructuring costs generally
be expensed in periods subsequent to the

aequisstson
date

We assess the acquisition-date fair values of all tangible assets identifiable intangibles and assumed liabilities using methods similar to those used by independent appraisers e.g

discounted cash flow analysis and replacement cost and that utilize appropriate discount and/or capitalization rates and svalltsble market information Estimates of future cash flows

are based on number of factoes including historical operating results known and
anticipated

trends and market and economic conditions The fair vsine of tangsble assets of an

acquired property considers the vslue of the property as ifit was vacant

We recOrd above-market and below-mEket in-place leiae values for acquired operties based on the present value using an inteiast rate that reflects the risks assoeistedwith the

leases acquired of the difference between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant
to the in-place leases and iimanagements estimate of market lease rates for the

corresponding in-place leases nteasured over period eqtisl to the remaining non-cancelable temi of the lease We amortize any recorded above-market hr below-market lease

values as reduction or inerease respectively to rental income over the remaining non-cancelable testis of the respective tease We also include fixed rate renewal
options in our

calculation of the fair value of ith above and below msilcet leases and the penodg over winch such leases are amortized Ifs tenant has unilateral
option to renew below

market lease we include such an option in the calculation of the fairvalue of such lease and the period over which the lease is amortized if we detemtines that the tenant has

financial incentive to exereise such option

Intangible assets include the valsie of in-place leases which
represents

the estimated value uf the net cash flows of the in-place leases to be realized as compared to the net cash

flows that would have occurred had the property been vacant at the time of
acquisition

and
subject to lease-up Acquired in-place lease value is amortized to depreciation and

amortization expense over the average remaining non-caneelabte terms of the respective in-place
leases

We will estimate the value of tenant origination and absorption costs by considering the estimated carrying costa during hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering current

market conditions in estimating carrying costa management will include reai estate taxes insurance and other operating expenses and estimates of lost rentals at market rates

during the expected lease up periods

Estimates of the fair values of the tangible assets identifiable intangibles and assumed liabilities will
require us to estimate market lease rates property-operating expenses carrying

costa during tease-up periods discount rates market absorption periods and the number of years the property will be heldfor investaeient The use of inappropriate estimates

would result in an incorrect valuation of our acquired tangible assets identifiable intangibles and assumed liabilities which would impact the amount of our net income

Impairmetit of Real Estate and Related Intangible Assets We will monitor events and changes in circumstances that could indicate that the carrying amounts of our real

estate and related intangible assets maybe impaired When indicators of
potential impairment suggest

that the carrying value of real estate and related intangible assets maybe

greater than fair value we will assess the recoverability considering recent operating results expected net operating
cash flow and

plans
for fisthre

operations If based on this

analysis of undiscounted cash flows we do not believe that we will be able to recover the carrying value of the real estate and related intangible assets we would record an

inspaiement
loss to the extent that the

carrying
value exceeds the estimated fair value of the real estate and related intangible assets as defined by ASC 360 Property Plant and

Equipment Particular example of events and changes in circumstances that could indicate potential impairments are significant decreases in occupancy rental income operating

income and market values

Revenue Recognition

We will recognize minimum rent including rental abatements and contractual fixed increeses attributable to operating leases on straight-line
basis over the term of the related

lease and we will include amounts expected tube received in later
years

in deferred
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rents Our policy for
percentage

rental income is to defer recognition of contingent rental income until the specified target i.e breakpoint that triggers the contingent rental

income is achieved We will record
property operating expense reimbursements due frOm tenants for common area maintenance real estate taxes and other recoverable costs in

the period the related expenses are incurred We will make certain assumptions and judgments in estimating the reimbursements at the end of each
reporting period We do not

expect the actual results to differ from the estimated reimbursement

We will make estimates of the collectability of our tenant receivables related to base rents expense
reimbursements and other revenue or income We will specifically analyze

accounts receivable and historical bad debts customer creditworthiness current economic trends and changes in customer payment terms when evaluating the adequacy of the

allowance foirioubtful accounts Irt addition with
respect

to tenants in bankruptcy we will make estimates of the
expected recovesyofpre-petition and post-petition claims in

assessing the estimated cotlectability of the related receivable In some cases the ultimate resolution of these claints cart exceed one year These estimates have direct impact on

our net income because
higher bad debt reserve results in less net income

Reimbursements from tenants for recoverable real estate tax and operating expenses are accrued as revenue in the period in which the applicable expenses are incurred We make

certain assumptions and judgments in estimating the reimbursements at the end of each reporting periŁd We do not expect the actual results to materially differ from the

estimated reimbursements

We record lease termination income ifthere is signed termination letter agreement all of the conditions of the agreement have been met collectability
is

reasonably
assured and

the tenant is no longer occupying the property Upon early lease termination we provide for losses related to unrecovered intangibles and other assets

We will recognize gains on sales of real estate pursuant to the provisions of ASC 605-976 Accounting for Sales of Real Estate ASC 605-976 The
specific timing of

sale will be measured against various criteria in ASC 605-976 related to the terms of the tratisaction and any continuing involvement associated with the property lithe criteria for

profit recognition under the full-accrual method are not met we will defer gain recognition and account for the continued operations of the
property by applying

the
percentage-of-

completion reduced
profit deposit

installment or cost recovery methods as appropriate
until the

appropriate
criteria are met

Class Units

Effective October 12012 the Advisor and Sub-advisor are no longer entitled to the payment of asset management fees in cash under the AR Advisory Agreement Instead

we will issue to the Advisor and Sub-advisor uruts of the OperatingPartnership designated as Class units in connection with the asset management services provided by the

Advisor and Sub-advisor

The Class units will vest and will no longer be subject to forfeiture at such time as all of the following events occur the value of the Operating Partnerships assets plus all

distributions made
equals or exceeds the total amount of

capital contributed by investors plus 6% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded annual return thereon the economic

hurdle any one of the following occurs the termination of the AR Advisory Agreement by an affirmative vote of majority of our independent directors without

cause listing event or another liquidity event and the Advisor is still providing advisory services to us the service condition Such Class units will be forfeited

immediately if the AR Advisory Agreement is terminated for cause or the AR Advisory Agreement is terminated by an affirmative vote of majority of our

independent directors without cause before the economic hurdle has been met

We have concluded that the Advisor and Sub-advisors performance under the AR Advisory Agreement and the Fourth Amended and Restated Sub-Advisory Agreement is

not complete until they have served as the Advisor and Sub-advisor through the date of Liquidity Event because prior to such date the Class units are subject to forfeiture

by the Advisor and Sub-advisor
Additionally

the Advisor and Sub-advisor have no disincentive for nonperformance other thanthe forfeiture of Class units which is not

sufficiently large disincentive for nonperformance and accordingly no performance commitment exists As result we have concluded the measurement date occurs when

Liquidity Event has occurred and at such dine the Advisor and Sub-advisor have continued
providing advisoryservices and that the Class Runits are not considered issued until

such Liquidity Event

The Class units have both market condition and service condition up to and through Liquidity Event We intend to recognize costs during periods prior to the final

measurement date in accordance withGAAP As result the vestingof Class units occurs only upon completion of both market condition and service condition The

satisfaction of the market or service condition is not probable and thus no compensation will be recognized unless the market condition or service condition becomes probable

Because the Advisor and Sub-advisor can he terminated without cause before Liquidity Event occurs and at such time the market condition and service condition may not be

met the Class units may be forfeited Additionally if the market condition and service condition had been met and Liquidity Event had not occurred the Advisor and Sub-

advisor could not control the Liquidity Event because each of the aforementioned events that represent Liquidity Event must be approved unanimously by our independent

directors As result we have concluded that the service condition is not probable
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Based on our conclusion of the market condition and service condition not being probable
the Class Umts will be treated as umssued for accounting purposes until the market

condition service condition and Liquidity Event haveben.achieved However as the Class Units are deemed to be participating securities the distributions paid to the Advisor

and Sub-advisor will be treated as compensation expense This expense will be calculated as the product of the number of unvested units issued to date and the stated distribution

rate at the time such distribution is authorized

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements ---In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S

GAAP and IFRS ASU 2011-04 clarifies
some.existing concepts eliminates wording differencesbetween U.S GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS and in some limited cases changes some principles to achieve convergence between US GAAP and IFRS ASU 201 1-04 results ma consistent definition of fair

value and common requirements for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between U.S GAAP and IFRS ASU 2011-04 also expands the disclosures for fair value

measurements that
axe estimated using significant unobservable Level inputs ASU 201.1-04 was effective for us as of Januasy 2012 The adoption of this pronouncement

did not materially impact our consolidated fmancial statements

hi June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income which requires an entity to
present

the total of comprehensive income the

components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but

consecutive statements ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to present components of other.comprehensive income as part of the statement of equity ASU 2011-05 was effective

for us as of
January 2012 The adoption of this pronouncement did not materially impact our consolidated financial statements

In August 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-03 Technical Amendments and Corrections to SEC Sections Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC
StaffAccounting Bulletin SAB No 114 Technical Amendments Pursuant to SEC Release No.33-9250 and Corrections Related to FASB Accounting

Standards Update 2010-22 SEC Update This update amends number of SEC sections in the FASB Accounting Staxidards Cotliflcationas result ofl the issuance

of SAB 114 the issuance of SEC Final Rule 33-9250 and coerections related to ASU 2010-22 ASU 2012-03 was effective upon issuance The adoption of this

pronouncement did not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In October 2012 the FASB issued ASU 20l204 Technical Corrections and Improvements The amendments in this update cover wide range of topics in the

Accounting Standards Codification These amendments include technical corrections and improvements to the Accounting Standards Codification and conforming amendments

related to fair value measurements ASU 20 12-04 will be effective for us as of Januaiy 2013 The adoption of this pronouncement is not expected to have material impact on

our consolidated financial statements

Subsequent Events ..

Distributions

On January 2013 we paid distribution
equal to daily amount of $000178082 per share of common stock outstanding for stockholders record for the

period
from

December 2012 through December 31 2012 The total gross amount of the distribution was approximately $717000 with $298000 being reinvested in the DRP for net

cashdistributionof$4l9000

On January23 2013 our board of directors authorized distributions to the stockholders of record at the close of business each day the period commencing March 2013

through and including March 31 2013 The authorizeddistributions equal an amount of $000183562 per.share of common stock par value $0.01
per

share This
equates toa

6.70/u annualized yield when calculated on $10.00 per share purchase price portion of each distribution is expected to constitute return of
capital

for tax purposes We

expect
to pay these distributious on April

2013 Our
policy

is not to fund distributions with proceeds from our offering

On February 201 we paid distribution equal to daily amount of $0.00l78082
per

share of common stock outstanding for stockholders of record for the period from

January 2013 through January 31 2013 The total
gross

amount of the distribution was approximately $817000 with $344000 being reinvested inthe DRP for net cash

distribution of $473000

On March 12013 we paid distribution
equal to daily amount of $0.00 183562 per share of common stock outstanding for stockholders ofrecord for.the

period
from

February 12013 through February 28 2013.jhe total gross arnountof the distribution was approximately $882000 with $374000being reinvested inthe DRP for anet

cash distribution of $508000

Acquisition of Atlanta Portfolio
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Between Jamlasy 15 2013 and February 13 2013 we acquired 100% interest in àportfolio consisting of seven shoppingcenters in the Atlanta Georgia area the Atlanta

Portfolio for approximately $d9.6 million exclusive of closing costs The individual properties lathe Atlanta POitfolio are located in Acworth Georgia Ellenwood Georgia

Aiphatetta Georgia Buford Georgia Mableton Georgia Marietta Georgia and McDonough Georgia The acquisition of the Atlanta Portfolio was partially
financed with

proceeds from syndicated revolving credit facility led by KeyBank National Association and proceeds from Our ongoing public offering The portfolio is approximately 587367

square
feet and is 90.8% leased

Acquisition of Fairlawn Town Centre

On January 302013 we acquired 100% interest in Giant Eagle-anchored shopping center Fairlawn Town Centre located in Fairlawn Ohio for purchase price of

approximately $42.2 million The acquisition was partially financed with proceeds from syndicated revolving credit facility led by KeyBank National Association and proceeds

from our ongoing public offering The 347255 square foot property is 95.0% leased

Sale of Shares of Common Stock

From Januasy 12013 through February 28 2013 we raised approximately $46.7 million through the issuance of 4697487 shares of common stock under our offering As

of February 28 2013 approximately 131.4 million shares remained available for sale to the public
under our offering exclusive of shares available under the DRP

Amendment of our Advisory Agreement

On February 42013 we and the Operating Partnership entered into the AR Advisory Agreement with the Advisor The AR Advisory Agreement provides that the asset

management compensation structure contemplated in the previous advisory agreement between the us and the Advisor is eliminated effective October 2012 instead we

expect to issue to the Advisor on quarterly basis performance-based restricted partnership units of the Operating Partnership designated as Class units The Class units

will vest and will no longer be subject to forfeiture at such time as all of the following events occur the value of the Operating Partnerships assets plus all distributions made

equals or exceeds the total amount of capital contributed by investors plus 6% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded annual return thereon the economic hurdle any

one of the following occurs the termination of the AR Advisory Agreement by an affirmative vote of majority of our independent directors without cause listing

event or another liquidity event and the Advisor is still providing advisory services to us the service condition Such Class units will be forfeited immediately if

the AR Advisory Agreement is terminated for cause or the AR Advisory Agreement is terminated by an affirmative vote of majority of our independent directors

without cause before the economic hurdle has been met

Additionally the AR Advisory Agreement eliminates the subordinated share of cash flows and the subordinated incentive fee
contemplated

under the previous advisory

agreement between us and the Advisor Instead similar concepts are now set forth in the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership for the Operating Partnership

as follows

The Operating Partnership will pay subordinated participation in the net sales proceeds of the sale of real estate assets equal to 15.0% of remaining net sale proceeds

after return of capital contributions to investors plus payment to investors of 7.0% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded return on the capital contributed by

investors

The Operating Partnership will pay subordinated incentive listing distribution of 15.0% of the amount by which the market value of all of our issued and
outstanding

common stock plus distributions exceeds the aggregate capital contributed by investors plus an amount equal to 7.0% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded annual

return to investors

Neither the Advisor nor any of its affiliates can earn both the subordination participation in the net sales proceeds
and the subordinated incentive

listing distribution

Upon termination or non-renewal of the AR Advisory Agreement an affiliate of the Advisor shall be entitled to subordinated termination fee in the form of non-

interest bearing promissory note equal to 15.0% of the amount by which the cost of our assets plus distributions exceeds the aggregate capital contributed by investors

plus an amount equal to 7.0% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded annual return to investors hi addition the affiliate of the Advisor may elect to defer its right to

receive subordinated distribution upon termination until either listing on national securities exchange or other liquidity event occurs

The Class units are participating securities that will receive distributions at the same rates and dates as the distributions
paid to our common stockholders These distributions

will be calculated by the
product

of the number of unvested units issued to date and the stated distribution rate at the time the applicable distributions are authorized

Lines of Credit
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On January 18 2013 we increased the borrowing capacity of our syndicated senior secured revolving credit facility led by KeyBank National Association from $40 million to

$88 million On January30 2013 we
again

mcreased the borrowing capacity under this facility to $120 nuihon This facility has an accordion feature that allows us to further

mcrease the
capacity up to $250 million subject to the terms and conditions of the facility Subsequent to December 31 2012 we drew $63 milhon from this facility As of

March 72013 the balance under this facility was $109.6 million

We have an unsecured credit facility with KeyBank National Association with capacity of $10.0 million Subsequent to December 31 2012 we drew $8.4 million from this

facility As of March 2013 the balance under this facility was $8.4 million
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AM QUALITATIVE IISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As of December 31 2012 we had approximately $113.1 million of variable rate debt outstanding In the future we may hedge our exposure to interest rate fluctuations

through the utilization of derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps in order to mitigate the risk of tlus exposure We do not intend to enter into derivative or

interest rate transactions for speculative purposes Our hedging decisions will be determined based upon the facts and circumstances existing at the time of the hedge and may

differ from our currently anticipated hedging strategy If we use derivative financial instruments to hedge against interest rate fluctuations we will be exposed to both credit risk

and market risk Credit risk is the failure of the counterpirty top unde the terms of the derivative contract If the fair value of derivative contract is positive the

counterparty will owe us which creates credit risk for us If the fair value of derivative contract is ne$atsve we will owe the counterparty and therefore do not have credit

risk We wsll seek to minimize the credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-quality counterparties Market risk is the adverse effect on the value

of financial instrument that results frosn change in interest rates The market risk associated with interest rate contracts is managed by estabhshing and momtormg parameters

that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken

As ofDecember3l 2012 we have not fixed the interest rates for our debt through derivative financial instruments and as result we are subject to the potential impact of

rising interest rates which could negatively impact our profitability and cashflows

Below is listing of the mortgage loans payable with their respective principal payment obligations in thousands and weighted-average mterest rates

2013 2014 .2015 2016 ... 2017 Thereafter Total

Maturingdebt .....
Fixed rate mortgages payable 1216 17331 1047 10296 6899 7145 43934

Variablerate mortgages payable 17681 1105 1105 16093 33640 6800 76424

Securedlineofcredit 36709 36709

Totalmaturing debt 18897 18436 .$ 38861 26389 40539 13945 157067

Weighted-average interest rate on debt

Fixedratemortgagespayable2 7.0% 7.5% 6.5% 6.0% 3.7% 6.1% 6.3%

Variable rate mortgages payable 8% 5% 5% 7% 24% 3% 6%

Securedlineofcredit .00% 0.0% 2.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.5%

Total 3.1% 7.2% .2.6% 4.0% 2.6% .4.2% 3.6%

The debt maturity sable does not include any below-market debt adjustment of which $1940 net of accumulated amortization was

outstandingasofDecember3l2012. ...-

.-.

portion
of the fixed rate debt

represents loans assumed as part of certain ac4ulsitions These loans typically have higher interest rates than

interest rates associated with new debt

The
analysis

below
presents

the
sensitivity of the fair market value of our financial instruments to selected changes in market interest rates

The impact on our annual results of operations of one-percentage-point change in interest rates on the outstanding balance of variable-rate debt at Deember 312012 would

result in approximately $1.1 million of additional interest expense We had no other outstanding interest rate contracts as of December31 2012

The above amounts were determined based on the impact of hypothetical interest rates on our borrowing cost and assume no changes in our capital structure As the information

presented above includes only those
exposures

that exist as of December 312012 it does not consider those
exposures or positions that could arise that date Hence the

mformation represented herein has hnuted
predictive

value As result the ultimate realized gain or Ices with
respect

to interest rate fluctuations will depend on the
exposures

that

arise during the period the hedging strategies at the time and the related interest rates

We do not have any foreign operations and thus we are not exposed to foreign currency fluctuations

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AN SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See the Index to Financial Statements at page F-i of this report
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACcOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Managements Conclusions Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation under tjip supervision and with the participation of management including
the

Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer of the

effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedurespursuant to Rule 13a-15e under the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by

this report Based upon that evaluation the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer concjuded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of

the end of the period covered by this annual
report

in providing reasonable level of assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under

the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and
reported

within the time
periods

in SEC rules and forms including prviding
reasonable level of assurance that

information
required to be disclosed by us in such

reports
is accumulated and communicated to our management including our Principal Executive Officer and our Principal

Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is
responsible fur establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules l3a-lSf and l5-l5 under the Exchange

Act as process designed by or under the supervision of the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer and effected by our management and other personnel to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IAAP and includes

those policies and proceduresthat

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and Ibirly reflect the transactions and disposition of qur assets

provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with GAAP and that our

receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and/or members of the board of directors and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthosized acquisition use or disposition of our assets that could have material effect

on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including
the

possibility
otisuman error and the circumvention or overriding

of controls material

misstatements may not be prevented or detected on timely basis In addition projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls

may become inadequate because of changes and conditions or that the degree of complianre with policies may deteriorate ccordingly even interns contrtils determined to be

effective can provide only reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed in
reports

filed under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and

represented within the time periods required

Our management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal Øontrol over financial
reportingat

December 312012 To make this assessment we used the criteria for effective

internal control over financial reporting described in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission Based on this assessment our management believes that our system of internal control over financial reporting met those criteria and therefore our management

has concluded that we maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter
ended December 312012 that have materisily affected or are reasonably likely to

materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFOIIMATION

For the
quarter

ended December 31 2012 all items required to be disclosed under Form 8-K were reported under Form 8-K

On December31 2012 we filed Current Report on Form 8-K to disclose our acquisition
of

Village
One Plaza We included in that Form 8-K an undertaking to provide

financial stetements for Village One Plaza in an amendment to the Form 8-K on or before March
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12 2013 Subsequent to the
filing of this Form 8-K we determined that we are not required to provide such financial statements for

Village
One Plaza As result we will not

provide such financial statements for
Village One Plaza in an amendment to the Form 8-K
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PART ifi

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have adopted Code of Ethics that applies to all of our executive officers and directors including but not limited to our principal executive officer and principal financial

officer Our Code of Ethics may be found at http//www.phillipsedison-arc.com

The other information required by this Item is
incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information
required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The mformation required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is mcorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBiTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statement Schedules

See the Index to Financial Statements at page F-i of this rqiort

Exhibits

Ri Description

3.1 Third Articles of Amendment and Restatement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Post-Effective Amendment No ito the

Companys Registration
Statement on Form S-li No 333-164313 filed September 17 2010

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 toPre-Effective Amendment No.3 to the Companys Registration

Statement onForm S-il No 333-164313 filedJuly 2010

4.1 Form of Subscription Areemenl incorporated by reference toAppendix to the prospectus dated October 26 2012 included in Post-

Effective Amendment No 12 tothe Companys Registration Statementon Form S-Il No 333-164313 filed January 28 2013

4.2 Statement regarding restrictions on transferability of shares of conimon stock to appear on stock certificate or to be sent upon request
and

.without charge to stockholders issued shares without certificates incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Pre-Effective Amendment

No I-to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-li No 333-164313 flied March 12010

4.3 Dividend Reinvestment Plan incorporated by reference to Appendiir to the
prospectus d$ed OctOber 262012 included in Post-Effective

Amendment No 12 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-il No 333-1643 13 ified January 28 2013
4.4

Subscription Escrow Agreement by and between the Company and Wells Fargo ankN.A dated July 28 2010 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 4.5 to Post-Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-il No 333-164313 filed

September 172010
4.5 First Amendment to Subsciiption -Escrow Agreement by and between the Company and Wells Fargo Banlç N.A dated September 17 2010

incorporated by reference toExhibit 4.6 to the Companys Qtiarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed September 242010

46 Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Phillips EdisOn -ARC Shopping Center Operating Partnership L.P dated

February4 2013

10.1 Advisory Agreement by and between the Company and American Realty Capital -II Advisors LLC dated July 12011 incorporated by

referepce to Exhibit.10.l to Post-Effective Amendment No.5 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-Il No 333-1643 13

filedJuly29 2011

10.2 Firtt Amendment to Advisory Agreement by and between the Company and American Realty Capital II Advisors LLC dated September 20

2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Post-Effective Amendment No 6.to the Companys Registration
Statement on Form

S-li No.333-164313 filed October 31 2011

10.3 Second Amendment to Advisory Agreement by and between the Company and American
Realty Capital II Advisors LLC dated October 27

2011 incorporatedjy reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Post-Effective Amendment No.6 to the Companys Registration
Statement on Form

S-ll No.333-164313 fiiedoctober3l 2011

10.4 Amended and Restated Advisory Agreenjeutby and between the-Company Phillips Edison -ARC Shopping Center Operating Partnership

LP and American Realty Capital II Advisors LLC dated February 42013

10.5 Master Property Management Leasing and Construction Management Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Pre-Effective

Amendment No.4 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-il No 333-1643 13 filed July 28 2010

10.6 Amended and Restated 2010 Independent Director Stock Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Pre-Effective Amendment No.5

to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 5-11 No.333-164313 filed August 112010
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10.7 Second Amended and Restated Sub-Advisory Agreement by and between Asneiican Realty Capital
II Advisors LLC and Phillips Edison

NTR LLC dated September 172010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Post-Effective AniendnientNo ito the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-il No 333-164313 filed September 17 2010

10.8 Fourth Amended and Restated Sub-Advisory Agreement by and between Ainerscan Realty Capital II Advisors LLC and Phillips Edison

NTRLLC dated February 2013

10.9 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to PreEffective Amendment No.5 to the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-li No 333-164313 flIed August 112010
10.10 Shopping Center Purchase Agreement by and between Tramway Crossing LLC and

Phillips
Edison Group LLC dated January 27 2012
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RIPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCO1J1lTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Phillips EdisonARC Shopping Center REIT Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Phillips EdisonARC Shopping CenterRErr Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of December 312012

and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss equity and cash flows for each of the three
years

in the period ended December 31

2012 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index These financial statements and financial statementschedule are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we

engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audits included consideration of internal control over-financial reporting as basis for designing

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company internal control over financial

reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence supporting
the amounts .nd disclosures in the financial

statements assessing
the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide reasonable basis for otir opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Phillips Edison ARC Shopping Center REF Inc and

subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations and theircash flows for each of the three
years

in the period ended December 31 2012 in

couformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion such financial statement schedule when considered in relation to

the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

/s/ Deloitte Touche LU

Cincinnati Ohio

Marchl 2013
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PHILLIPS EDISON -ARC SHOPPING CENTER BElT INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OP DECEMBER31 2012 AND DECEMBER31 2011

In thousands except share and per share amounts

ASSETS

Investment in real estate

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Mortgagc loans payable

Acquired below market lease intangibles net of accumula damorlization of$811 andSIOl respectively

Accounts payable

Accounts payable affiliates

Accmed and other liabilitiril

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies 4ote

Equity

Preferred stock $0.01 par value per share 10000000 shares authorized zero shares issued and outstanding at December 31

2012 sod 2011

Common stock $0.01 par value per share 180000000 shares authorized 13101251 and 2658159 shares issued and

outstanding at December 312012 and 2011 respectively

Additional paid-is capital

Accsunulaled deficit

Total stockholders equity

Noncostrolling isteseuls

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

1261

69492

6799

6969

214

786

599

333

85.192

159007

4892

46788

1203

533 47

3634 8395

5.073 1.574

173139 58007

Land

Building and improvements

Total investment is real estate assets

Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total inveslitsent in real estale assets set

Acquired intangible lease assets net of accumululed amortization of $3844 antI $807 respectively

Cash and cash equivalents

Resbicted cash

Accounts receivable net of bad debt reserve of $69 and $33 respectively

Deferred financing expense pet of accumulated ansoetization of $596 and $203 respectively

Prepaid expenses and other

Total assets

December 312012 December 312011

82127 21331

209.048 49415

291175 70753

7.317

283858

20957

7654

1053

2707

2827

6.334

325.410

138 27

118238 17980

11.720 4.126

106656 13881

45615 13304

152271 27185

325410 85.192
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PHILLIPS EDISON ARC SHOPPING CENTER BElT INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVELOSS

FOR THE TEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011 AND 2010

In thosaanndn except share and per share sanornita

Revenues

Rental income

Tenant
recovety

income

Other pr perty income

Total revenues

Espesrsm

Property operating

Real estate taxes

General and admissistaative

Acqaisition expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Total
expenses

Operating loss

Other expense

lsterest espesnn net

Other income

Net loss

Net loss attnibutalsle to ssoncontrolling interests

Net lass attributable to Company ttockhalders

Per share information basic and dihstesk

Loss per share basic and dilated

Weighted-average common shares outaearding basic and diluted

Comprehensive loss

Comprehessive Iota attributable to noncoctrolling interests

Comprehensive loss attributable to Company stockholders

13821 2762

3635 750 13

87 17

17.550 3.529 98

2957 631 14

2055 507 18

1717 845 228

3911 1751 467

8.094 5.500 11

18.804 5234 801

1254 1705 715

3020 811 38

4273 2516 747

927 152

3.346 2364 747

0.51 1.57 4.44

6.509470 1.503477 168419

4273 2516 747

927 152

3.346 2364 747

2012 2011 20.30

See notes to coast idoted financial statements
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PHILLIPS EDISON-ARC SHOPPING CENTER BElT INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER31 2012 2011 AND 2010

to thoanands eacept share and per share amounts

Balance at December31 2009

Issuance of common stock

Contributions toni Sponsors

Common distributions declared $0.22 per
share

Om90
Nctloss

BalanceatDecembui3t20t0 730570

Issuance of common stock 1916572

Istuance of psefewed stock

Share sepurchases 5630

Conoibulioos trade-Sponsors .--
Dividend reinvestment plan DRP --- 16647

Contributions from soncontsofling interests

Reallocation of equity from contribution of

properties to Joint Venture

Common distributions declared $0.65 per
share

Distrsluioostononcrintsollisiginieresta

Offnringcosts

Offering costs issuance of stock hr

noncootrotting interest

Netloss

BslanceatDrcesnber3l2011 2658159

Issuance of common stock 11007548

Share repurchoscs 3749

Dividend reinvestment plan DEP 139293

Connbutiost from noncontrolling interests

Common distributions declared $0.65 per share

Distributiom to notseontrolliog interests

Offering costs

Netloss _______
flalance at December 312012

See notes to consolidatedfinanclalststemenIs

11

17980

109372

-35

1323

4248

10402

0J4et

---- 138 118.238 11.720

rotal

200

6391

540

37

4790

1157

18616

33 35

1324 1324

35560 35560

4248 4248

2322 2322

10402
--

50402

32463 921 4.273

186.636 -4.615 52275

Common Stock

Shares Amount

20000

710570

Total

Additional Accwnuiated Stockholders Nsncontsvlling

PaidIn Cavital DeiIcit Eauily Inrerest

200 s-- 200-s

6384 6391

540 140

37 37

4790 4790

__________________ 747 747

1934 784 1157

18596 50616

125

56 56

88 88

158 158

1444

1003 1003 1003

978 970

97

3726 3726

____ 23663 ___ ____
4120

20

27

110

125

36

88

158

14441

978

92

3726

17 15 32
2.364 552

--

2510

13881 13304 27105

109482 109482

13.001.251
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PhILLIPS EDISON-ARC ShOPPING CENTER REST INC

CONSOLiDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3120122011 AND 2010

In thoutands except Share and per share amounts

CASH FLOWS FROM O1ERATINO ACTIVITiES

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net csb provided by operating aetivitina

Depreciation and amortization

Net amortization of above- and helgw-market leases

Amortization of deferred flnancmg aostc

Straight-tine rental income

Changes in operating assets and liabilities-

Acconnts receivable

Prepaid expenses
and other

Accounts payable

Accounts payable- affiliates

Accrued and other liabilities

Net cash provided by opeeatingaIivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Red estate acquisitions

Copied expertdiures

Change in restricted cash

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Proceeds frnsnissumtco of uoncontrollingNtock net

Redemptions of common stock

Payment of offeeirsg costs

Payments on mortgage loans payable

Proceeds from mortgage loom payable

Payments for notes payable affiliates

Proceeds from noses payable affiliates

Distributions paid net of DRP

Contributions from noncanteolling ineestrsls

Distributions in nanconlrollnigirtleeenlo

Payments of loan financing-costs -----
Net cash provided by financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH IQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of preiod

End of ported

2012 2011 2010

2516

1500

32

648
----

193

440 79

518

163

--

701

196934

705

839

98478

-- 35
--

14643

140150

212503

1212 118

593- 201

55051 21238

95

aoss ID

56.1491 21249

93

--

I364

25430

57523

609

8901 131

61.010 21.55$

685 6262 507

84

40101

363

2346

1324

19

1707 200

___________________
707

140

4790

110

140

-oc-
4273

7850

393

747

81

17

10

173

113

782

1481

1258

35$

539

2716

4033

109402 1066 -- 6391

14695

900

1500

2349 715

35560 1444

2406

2.832 _______________

195.130
_____________________

6069 _______________________

7.654 6069

4241 -2362

575 42

92

SUPPLEMENTAL CASHFLOW DISCLOSURE INCLUDING NON-CASh INVESTING AND FINANCING ACIIVITIES

Change in offering costs payable to mb-advisor

Distributions payable

Distributions payable noncontrolling interests

Assumes debt

Accessed capital expenditures ansi deferred financing costs

Cash paid for interest

Distributions rcinvrsted

Reclassification of drfered offerne costs to additional paid-in capital

Financing costs payable to odvssor and sub-advisor net

Contributions from sponsors

3847

37

557

138

19

88

See Cores to eontolidaledfinasciol sratensesstr
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Phillips EdisonARC Shopping Center REIT Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ORGANIZATION

Phillips EdisonARC Shopping Center REIT Inc was formed as Maryland corporation on October 13 2009 and has elected to be taxed as real estate investment trust

REIT commencing with the tgxable year
ended December 31 200 Substantially all of our business is expected to be conducted through Phillips EdisonARC Shopping

Center Operating Partnership the Operating Partnership Delaware limited partnership formed on December 2009 We are the sole limited partner
of the Operating

Partnership and our wholly owned subsidiary Phillips Edison Shopping Center OP GP LLC is the sole
general partner

of the
Operating Partnership

We axe offering to the public pursuant tos registration statement $1 785 billion in shares of common stock on best efforts basis in our initial public offering our

offering Our offering consists of primary offering of $1 billion in shares offered to investors at pnce of $10 00 per share with discounts available for certain categories of

purchasers and $285 million bares offered to stockholdeiv pursuant to dividend reinvestment plan the LRP at pnce of $9 50
per

share We have the nght to

reallocate the shares of common stock offered between the primary offering and the DRP We are selling the shares registered in our primary offering over three-year period

which ends August 12 2013 Under rules promulgated by the SEC in some instances we may extend the primary offering beyond that date We may sell shares under the DRP

beyond the termination of the primary offering until we have sold all the shares under the plan

As of December31 2012 we had issued 13801251 shares of common stock since inception including 155940 shares issued through the DRP generating gross cash

proceedsof$136.imillion

Otir advisor is American
Realty Capital II Advisors LLC the Advisor limited liability company that was organized in the State of Delaware on Decgmber 28 2009 and that

is
indirectly wholly owned by AR Capital LLCformerlyAmerican Realty Capital II LLC the AR.Capital sponsor Under the terms of the advisory agreement between the

Advisor and us the Advisor is responsible
for the management of our day to day activities and the implementation of our investment

strategy
The Advisor has

delegated
most of

its duties under the advisory agreement ineludmg the management of our day to day operations
and our portfoiso

of real estate assets to Phillips
Edison NTR LLC the Sub

advisor which is indirectly wholly owned by Phillips Edisosi Limited Partnership the Phillips
Edison sponsor Notwithstanding such delegation to the Sub advisor the

Advisor retains ultimate responsibility for the performance of all the matters entrusted to it under the advisory agreement

We invest primarily in well occupied grocery anchored neighbothood and community shopping centers having mix of creditworthy national and
regional

retailers selling necessity

based goods and services in strong demographic markets throughout
the Umted States In addition we may invest in other retail

properties mcluding power and
lifestyle shopping

centers multi-tenant shopping centers free-standing single-tenant retail properties and other real estate and real estate-related loans and securities depending on real estate market

conditions and investment opportunities that we determine are in the best interests of our stockholders We expect
that retail

properties primarily
would underlie or secure the real

estate-related loans and securities in which we may invest We owned fee simple interests 26 real estate properties 20 of which we owned through the Joint Venture as defined

below acquired from third parties unaffiliated with us the Advisor or the Sub-advisor as of December 31 2012

On September20 2011 we entered into ajoint venture with group of institutional mtemational mvestos advised by CBRE Investors Global Multi Manager each CBRE

Investor The joint venture is in the fosin of PECO-ARC Institutional Joint Venture L.P Delaware limited
partnership the Joint Venture We through an indirectly

wholly owned subsidiary hold an approximate54% interest in the Joint Venture We serve as the general partner and manage the operations of the Joint Venture Thç CBRE

Investors hold the remaining approximate 46% interest We contributed approximately $58 million the form of equity interests in six wholly owned real estate properties

and cash to the Joint Venture and the CBRE Investors contributed $50 million in cash As of December31 2012 the Joint Venture holds 20 grocery-anchored neighborhood

and community shopping centers

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOIJNTIJJG POLICIES

Prmclples of ConsolidationThe accompanying consohdated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of the Operating Partnership over which we exercise

financial and operating control The financial statements of the Operating Partnership are prepared using accounting policies consistent with our accounting policies
All

significant

intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation

Partially Owned EntitiesIf we determine that we arc an ownerin variable-interest entity VIE and we hold controlling financial interest then we will consolidate the entity

as the primary beneficiary For partially-owned entities determined not to be VIE we analyze rights held.by each partner to determine which would be the consolidating party We

will generally consolidate entities in the absence of other factors when determining control when we have over a50% ownershipinterest in the entity We will

F-7



assess our interests in \IEs on an ongoing basis to determine whether or not we are the primary beneficiary However we will also evaluate who controls the entity even in

circumstances in which we have greater than 50% ownership interest If we do nOt control the entity due to the lack of decision-making abilities we will not consolidate the entity

We performed an analysis of the assets held through the Joint Venture in accordance with Accounts Standards Codification ASC 810 Consolidation Based upon this

analysis we have determined the Joint Venture should be consolidated into our consolidated financial statements As result of the contribution of the assets to the Joint Venture

there was difference of $1.0 million in the net book value of the contributed assets and the agreed upon contributionvalue of the assets In accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP the difference
arising

from the contribution to the JOint VeitturOwas nOt recognized as gain on sale in the

consolidated statements of operations rather it was treatOd as reallocation of equity to Our stockholders from the CBRE Investors

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of coistingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting periods For example significant estimates and assumptions have been made with respect to the useful lives of assets recoverable

amounts of receivables and initial valuations of tangible and intangible assets and liabilities and related athortization periods of deferred costsand intangibles particularly with

respect to property acquisitions Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash EquivalentsWe consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents Cash equivalents may
include cash and short term investments Short term investments are stated at cost which approximates fair value and may consist of investments in money market accounts

Organizational and Offering CostsThe Sub-advisor has
paid offering expenses on our behalf We will reimburse on monthly basis the Sub-advisor for these costs and

future offering costs it the Advisor or any of their
respective affiliates may incur on our behalf but only to the extent that the reimbursement would not exceed 1.5% of

gross

offering proceeds over the life of the
offering or cause the selling commissions the dealer manager fee and thO other organization and offering expenses home by us to exceed

15.0% of
gross offering proceeds as of the date of the reimbursement These offering expimses include allexpensea otherthan selling commissions and the dealer manager fee to

be paid by us in connection with the offering including legal accounting printing mailing and filing fees chagesOfthe escrow holder and transfer agent reimbursement to the

Advisor and Sub-advisor for our portion of the salaries and related employment costs of the Advisors and Sub-advisors employees who provide services to us excluding Costs

related to employees whO provide services for which the Advisor or Sub-advisor as applicable receive acquisition or disposition fees reimbursement to Realty Capital

Securities LLC the dealer manager the Dealer Manager for amounts it may pay to reimburse the bona fide due diligence expenses of broker-dealers cotta in cOnnection

with preparing supplemental sales materials our costs of conducting bona fide training and education meetings primsrilythe travel meal and lodging costs of our non-registered

officers and the
non-registered officers of the Advisor and Sub-advisor to attend such meetings arid cost reimbursement for non-registered employeesof our affiliates to attend

retail seminars conducted by brokerdealers These offering costs include travel services provided tO the Adviior orSub-advisor bya related party of one or more of the

sponsors Costs associated with the offering are charged against the
gross proceeds of the offermg Organizational costs are expensed as incurred

Investment Property and Lease IntangiblesReal estate assetswe have
acquired are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation Depreciation is computed using the straight-line

method The estimated useful lives for computing depreciation are generall 5-7
years

for flirnitur fixtures and equipment 15 years for land imprOvements and 30 years for

buildings
and

building improvements Tenant improvements are amortized over the shorter of the respective lease term or the expected useful life of the asset Major replacements

that extend the useful lives of the assets are capitalized and maintenance and repair costs are expeOsed as incurred

Real estate assets are reviewed for impairment wheneverevents or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the individual

property may not be recoverable

In such an event comparison will be made of the
projected operating

cash flows of each propertyon an undiscounted basis to the carrying amount of such property Such

carrying amount would be
adjusted

if necessary to estimated fair values to reflect impairment in the value of the asset We recorded no impaimsents for the years ended

December 3120122011 and 2010

The results of operations of acquired properties are included in our results of operations from their respective dates of accilsisition Estimates of future cash flows estimates of

replacement cost and other valuation techniques that we believe are similar to those used by independent appraisers are used to allocate the
purchase price

of each identifiable asset

acquired and liabilities assumed such as landi buildings and improvemetits equipment and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities such as amounts related to in-place leases

acquired above- and below-market leases tenant relationships asset retirement obligations mortgage notes payable and any goodwill or gain on purchase Acquisition-related costs

are expensed as incurred

The fairvalue of buildings and improvements is determined on an as-if-vacant basis The estimated fairvalue of acquired in-placeleases is the costs we would have incurred to

lease the properties to the occupancy level of the properties at the date of
acquisition
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Such estimates include leasing commissions legal costs and other direct costs that would be incurred to lease the properties to such occupancy levels Additionally we evaluate

the time period over which such occupancy levels would be achieved Such evaluation includes an estimate of the net market-based rental revenues and -net operating costs

primarily consisting
of real estate taxes insurance and utilities that would be incurred during the lease-up period Acquired in-place leases as of the date of acquisition are

amortized over the remaining lease terms

Acquired above- and below-market lease values are recorded based on the present value using interest rates that reflect the risks associated with the leases acquired of the

difference between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place leases and managements estimate of the market lease rates for the corresponding in-place leases

The capitalized above- and below-market lease values sre amortized as adjustments to rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases We also-include fixed rate

renewal options in our calculation of the fair value of both above- and below-market leases and the periods over which such leases are amortized If tenant has unilateral option

to renew below-market lease we include such an option in the calculation of the fair value of such lease and the period over which the lease is amortized ifwe determines that the

tenant has financial incentive to exercise such
option

Management estimates the fair value of assumed mortgage notes payable
based upon indications of then-current marketpricing for similar

types
of debt with similar maturities

Assumed mortgage notes payable are initially recorded at their estimated fair value as of the assumption date andihe difference between such estimated fair value and the notes

outstanding principal balance is amortized over the life of the mortgage note payable as an adjustment to interest expense

Deferred Financing CostsDeferred financing costs are capitalized and amortized on straight-line basis over the.tenn of the related financing arrangement which approximates

the effective interest method Deferred financing costs incurred during the years ended December 31 20122011 and 201-0 respectively -were approximately $2875000

$561000 and $241000 Of this amount for the years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 respectively $816000 $180000 and $110000 was incurred as

result of the financing fee due to the Advisor Sub-advisor and their affiliates Amortization of deferred financing costs for the years ended December31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively was $648000 $193000 and $10000 and was recorded in interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss

Revenue RecognitionWe commence revenue recognition on our leases based on number of factors Its most cases revenue recognition under lease begins when the lessee

takes possession of or controls the physical use of the leased asset Gendrally this-occurs on the lease commencement date The determination of who is the owner for accounting

purposes of the tenant improvements determines the nature of the leased asset and when revehue recognition under lease begins If-we are the owner for accounting purposes

of the tenant improvements then the leased asset is the finished space and revenue recognition begins
when the lessee takes possession of the finished space typically when the

improvements are substantially complete

If we conclude that we are not the owner for accounting purposes of the tenant improvements the lessee is the owner then the leased asset is the unimproved space and any

tenant improvement allowances funded under the lease are treated as lease incentives which reduce revenue recognized over the term of the lease In these circumstances we

begin revenue recognition when the lessee takes
possession

of the unimproved space
to construct their own improvements We consider number of different factors in evaluating

whether we or the lessee is the owner of the tenant improvements for accounting purposes These factors include

whether the lease stipulates how and on what tenant improvement allowance may be spent

whether the tenant or landlord retains legal titie to the improvements

the uniqueness of the improvements

the expected economic life of the tenant improvements relative to the length of the lease and

who constructs or directs the construction of the improvements

We recognize rental income on straight-line basis over the term of each lease The difference between rental income earned on straight-line basis and the cash rent due under the

provisions of the lease agreements is recorded as deferred rent receivable and is included as component of accounts receivable Due to the impact of the straight-line basis rental

income generally will be
greater

than the cash collected in the early years
and will be lesser than the each collected the lateryears of lease Our policy for percentage rental

income is to defer recognition of contingent rental income until the specified target i.e breakpoint that triggers the contingent rental income is achieved We periodically review the

collectability of outstanding receivables Allowances will be taken for those balances that we deem tobe uncOllectible including any amounts relating to straight-line rent receivables

Reimbursements from tenants for recoverable real estate tax and operating expensef are ancnied as revenue in the periodin which the
applicable expenses are incurred We make

certain assumptions and judgments in estimating the reimbursements at the end of each reporting period We do not expect
the actual resulti to materially

differ from the

estimated reimbursements
--
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We record lease termination income if there is signed termination letter agreemenç all of the conditions of the agreement have been met collectability is reasonably assured and

the tenant is no longer occupying the property Upon early lease termination weprovide tbr losses related to unrecovered intangibles and other assets

Income TaxesWe bave elected to be taxed as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code Our qualification and taxation as RE1T depends

on our ability on continuing basis to meet certain organizational and operational qualification requirements imposed upon REITs by the Code If we fail to qualify as REIT for

any reason in taxable year we will be.subjeot totaxon ourtsxable income at regular corporate rates Wewould not be able to deduct distributions paid to stockholders in any

year in which we fail to qualify as aREIT We will slso.be disqualified for the four taxable years following the yesr.during whicb qualification was lost unless we are entitled to

relief under specific statutory provisions Additionally GAAP prescribes recognition thresbold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition of tax

position taken or expected to he taken .in tax return tax position may only be reeognized.in the consolidated financial statements if it is more likely than not that the tax

position will be sustained upon examination We believe it isinore
likely

than not that our tax positions
will be sustained in any tax examinations

Reparchase of Common Stock-We offer share repurchase program which may allow certain stockholders to have theft shares repurchased subject to approval and certain

limitations and restrictions see Note We account for those financial instruments that represent our mandatory obligation to repurchase shares 55 liabilities to be reported at

settlement value At such time we will reclassify such Obligations froth equity to lisbility based upon their respective settlement values As of December 31 2012 and 2011 no

such obligations existed

Restricted CashRestricted cssh
primarily consisted of escrowed insurance premiums real estste taxes and investor proceeds for which shares of common stock had not been

issueciof $1053000 and$214000 as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Class UnitsEffective October 2012the Advisor andiSub-advisor are no longer
entitied to the payment of asset management fees in cash under the AR Advisory

Agreement Instead we will issue to the Advisor and Sub-sdvisor units of the Operating Partnership designated as Class units in connection with the asset management

services provided by the Advisor and Sub-advisor

The Class units will vest and will no longer be subject to forfeiture at such time as all of.thŁ following events occur the value of the Operating Partnerships assets plus all

distributions made equals or exceeds the total amountof capital contributedby investorsplus
6% cumulstive pre-tax non-compounded annual retum thereon the economic

hurdls any one of the following occursl the termination oftheA8cR Advisory Agreement by an affirmative vote of msjotity of our independentdirectors without

csuse listing event or another liquidity event and the Advisor is still
providing advisory services to us the service condition Such Class units will be forfeited

isnmedistely if the AR Advisory Agreement is terminated for cause or the AR Advisory Agreement is tenninated by an affirmative vote of majority of our

independent directors without cause beforethe economic hurdie has been met.

We have concluded that the Advisor and.Sub.sdvisors peiormance under the AR Advisory Agreement and the Fourth Amended and Restated Sub-Advisory Agrqement is

not complete until they have served as the Advisor and Sub-advisor through thedate of Liquidity Event because prior to such date the Class units are subject to forfeiture

by the Advisor and Sub advisor Additionally the Advisor and Sub advisor have no disincentive for
nonperlorrnance

other than the forfesture of Class umts which is not

sufficiently large disincentive for nonperforinsnce and accordingly no performance commitment existi Ass result we have concluded the thessurement date occurs when

Liquidity Event has occurred and at such time the Advisor and Sub-advisor have continued providingsdvisory services and that the Class units are not considered issued until

such Liquidity Event

The Class units have both market condition and service condition up to and through Liquidity Evetit We intend to recognize costs during periods prior to the final

measurement date in accordance with GAAP As result the vesting of Class units occurs only upon completion of both market condition and service condition The

satisfaction of the market or service condition is not probable
and thus no compensation will be recognized unless the market condition or service condition becomes probsblr

Because the Advisor and Sub advisor can be terminated without cause before Liquidity Event occurs and at such time the market condition and service condition may not be

met the Class units may be forfeited Additionally if the market condition and service condition had been met and Liquidity Event had not occurred the Advisor and Sub

advisor could not control the Liqmdity Event because each of the aforementioned events that
represent Liquidity Event must be spproved unanimously by our independent

directors As result we have concluded that the service condition is not probable

Based on our conclusion of the market condition and service pondition.isot beingprobable the Class Units will be treated as unissued for accounting purposes until the market

condition service condition and Liquidity Eyent have been achieved However as the Class Umts are deemed to be psrticipstmg securities the distributions paid to the Advisor

and Sub-advisor will be treated as compensation expense This expense will be calculated as the product of the number of unvested units issued to date and the stated distribution

rate at the time such distribution is authorized
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Earnings Per SliareEarnings per share are calculated based on the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during each period Diluted income per share

considers the effect of any potentially dilutive-share equivalents
of which we had none for the

years
ended December 312012 2011 sn 2010

Segment ReportingWe assess and measure operating results of our properties based on net property operations We intemally evaluate the operating performance of our

portfolio of properties and do not differentiate properties by geography size or type Each of our inveatment properties ia considered separate operating segment and as each

property esros revenue and incurs expenses
individual

operating
results are reviewed and discrete finsncssl information is available However our properties are aggregated into

one reportable segment as we evaluate the
aggregate performance of the properties

--

Noncontrolling InterestsNoncontrolling interests in the consolidated balance sheets
represent

the economic
equity

interests of the Joint Venture that sre not owned by us

Noncosstrolling interests in the consolidated statements of
equity represent contributions distributions and allocated esmings to the CBRE investors Noncontrolling interests in

earnings of the Joint Venture in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss represents
losses allocated to noncontrolling interests based on the economic

ownership percentage of the copsolidated Joint Venture held by these investors

Impact of Recently Issned Accounting Prononncements in May 2011 the Financial Accounting Stsndsrds Board the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to Achieve common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirçments in US
GAA.P and IFRS 4SU 2011-04 clarifies some existing-concepts

eliminates wordipg differences betwgenU.S GAAP and international Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS and in some limited eases changes some principles to achieve convergence between GAAP and IFRS ASU 2011-04 results in consistent definition of fair value and

common requirements for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between JAAP and IFRS ASU 2011-04 also expands the disclosures for fair value measurements

that are estimated using significant unobservable Level inputs ASU 2011-04 was effective for us as of January 2012 The adoption of this pronouncement did not

materially impact our consolidated financial statements

in June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011 05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income which requires an entity to present
the total of comprehensive income the

components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous- statemspt-of eomprebçnsive income or in two separate but

consecutive statements ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to
present components of other cpmprehensive income as part of the statement of equity ASU 2011-05 was effective

for us as of Janussy 2012 The adoption of this pronouncement did not materially impact our consolidated fisianeial-siatensei4ts

in August 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012 03 Technical Amendments and Corrections to SEC Sectsons Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC

SthffAccountink Bulletin SAB No 114 Technical Amendments POrsuant to SEC Release No 33-9250 Sd Corrections Related to FASB Accounting

Standards Update 2010-22 SEC Update This update amends number of SEC sections in tht FASBAceounting Standards Codification ass result of1 the issuance

ofSABl 14 the issuance of SEC Final Rule 33-9250 and corrections related to ASU 2010-22 ASU 2012-03 wss effective upon issusnee The
adoption of this

pronouncement did not have material impact an our consolidated-financial statements

in October 2012 the FASB issued ASU 20 12-04 Technical Corrections and Improvements The amendments in this update covers wide range of topics in the

Accounting Standards Codification These amendments include technical corrections and improvements to the Accounting Standards Codification and conforming amendments

related to fair value measurements ASU 2012-04 will be effective for us as of January 2013 The adoption of this pronouoeeiisent is not expected to have material impart on

our consolidated financial statements

3EQUITY

GeneralWe have the authonty to issue total of 180 000 000 shares of common stock with spar value of $0 01 per share and 10 000 000 shares of preferred stock $0 01

par value per share As ofDecember3l 2012 we had issued 13 801 251 shares of common stock generating gross cash proceeds of $136 million and we had issued no

shares of preferred stock The holders of shares of the common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters voted oo by stockholders including election of the board of

directors Our charter does not provide for cumulative voting in the election of direetors

Dividend Reinvestment PlanWe have adopted the DRY that allows stockholders to have distrsbutsore invested in additional shares of our common stock st pnee equal to

$9 50 per share Stockholders who elect to participate in the DRY and who are subject to federal income taxation laws will incurs tax liability on an amount equal to the

fair value on the relevant distribution date of the shares of our common stock purchased with reinvested distributions even though such stockholders have elected not to receive

the distributions used to purchase those shares of eoininon stdek in cash Distributions reinvested through the DRY for theyears ended December31 2012 and 2011 were

$1324000 and $158000 respectively There were no distributions reinvested through the DRY during the year ended December 31 2010
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Share Repurchase ProgramOur share repurchase program may provide limited opportunity for stockholders to have shares of common stock repurchased subject to

certain restrictions and limitations at price equal to or at discount from the purchase price paid for the shares being repurchased Repurchase of shares of common stock will

be made monthly upon written notice received by us at least five days prior to the end of the applicable month Stockholders may withdraw their repurchase request at any time

up to five business days prior to the
repurchase

date

The board of directors may in its sole discrOtion amend suspend or terminate the share repurchase program at any time If the board of directors decides to amend suspend

or terminate the share repurchase program stockholders will be provided with no less than 30 days written notice During the
year

ended December 31 2012 there were 3749

shares repurchased for $35089 under the share repurchase program for an average repurchase price of $9.36 per share During the year ended December 31 2011 there

were 5630 shares repurchased fur $56244 under the share repurchase program for an average repurchase price of $999 per share There were no shares repurchased during

the
year

ended December 31 2010

2010 Long-Term Incentive PlanWe have adopted 2010 Long-Term incentive Plan which may be used to attract and retain officers advisors and consultants We have not

issued any shares under this plait at of December 31 2012

2010 Independent Director Stock PIanWe have also adopted an Amended and Restated 2010 Independent Director Stock Plan which may be used to offer independent

directors an opportunity to participate
in our growth through awards of shares of restricted common stock subject to time-based vesting We have not issued any shares under

this plan as of December 31 2012

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC 820 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in accordance with 3AAP and

expands disclosures about fair value measurements ASC 820 emphasizes that fair value is intended to be market-based measurement as opposedto transaction-specific

measurement Fair value is defined by ASC 820 as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date Depending on the nature of the asset or liability various techniques and assumptions can be usedto estimate the fair value Assets and

liabilities are measured using inputs from three levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows

Level 1Inputs are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilitiçs that we have the ability to access at the measurement date An active market

is defined as market which transactions for the assets or habilities occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis

Level 2Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active

markets with few transactions inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability i.e interest rates yield curves etc and inputs that are

derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data correlation or other means market corroborated inputs

Level 3Unobservable inputs only used to the extent that observable
inputs are riot available reflect our assumptions about the

pricing
of an asset or liability

The following describes the meihods we use to estimate the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents restricted cash accounts receivable prepaid expenses accounts payable and accrued expenses We consider the
carrying

values

of these financial instruments to approximate fair value because of the short period of time between
origination

of the instruments and their
expected realization

Real estate investmentsThe purchase prices of the investment properties including related lease intangible assets and liabilities were allocated at estimated fair value based on

Level inputs such as discount rates capitalization rates comparable sales replacement costs income and expense growth rates and current market rents and allowances as

determined by management

Mortgage loans payable -We estimate the fair value of our debt by discounting the future cash flows of each instrument at rates currently offered for similar debt

instruments of comparable maturities by our lenders using
Level

inputs
The discount rates used approximate current lending rates for loans or groups of loans with similar

maturities and credit quality approximately 70% for variable rate debt and 25 for fixed rate debt as of December 31 2012 assuming the debt is outstanding through

maturity and considering the debt collateral if applicable We have utilized market information as available or present value techniques to estimate the amounts required lobe

disclosed The fair values and recorded values of our borrowings as of December 31 2012 were $158 million and $159 million respectively The carrying amount of our

borrowings approximates their fair value as of December 31 2011
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Acquired in-place leases net of accumulated

amortization of $2310 and $318

respectively

Acquired above-market leases net of accumulated

amortization of $1534 and $489

respectively

Total 232235

Considerable judgment is necessary
to develop estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities Accordingly the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the

amounts we could realize on disposition of the financial assets and liabilities

REAL ESTATE ACQUISITIONS

For the year ended December 31 2012 we acquired 19 grocery-anchored retail centers including 13 through the Joint Venture for combined purchase price of approximately

$232.2 million including $37.9 million of assumed debt with fair value of $40.1 million We allocated the purchase price of these properties to the fair value of the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed as follows in thousands

Category Allocation

Land 60600

Building and improvements 158828

Acquired in-place leases 14428

Acquired above-market leases 2718

Acquired below-market leases 4.339

The following information summarizes selected financial information from our combined results of operations as if all of our acquisitions for 2011 and 20-12 had been acquired on

Januaryl2011 -- --

We estimated that revenues on pro forms basis for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 would have been approximately $36 million and $35 million

respectively and our net loss attributable to our stockholders on pro forms basis excluding acquisition expenses of $8.7 million would have been approximately $0.7-million

and $1.8 million respectively The pro forma net loss per share excluding acquisition expenses would have been $0.05 and $0.14 respectively for the years ended December

31 2012 and 201

This
pro

forma informationis presented for informational purposes only and may not be indicative of what actual results of
operatioos

would have been had the transactions

occurred at the beginning of the period nor does it purport to represent the results of future operations

ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired intangible lease assets consisted of the following in thousands

--

2012 2011

15655- -3169-

5302 3630

20957 6799

Amortization expense recorded on the intangible assets for the years ended December31 2012 2011 and 2010 was $3037000 $764000 and $43000 respectively

Total
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2013 1448

2014 1418

2015 1198

2016 662

2017 404

2018 and thereafter
_______________________

172

Total
______________________

5302

The weighted-average amortization periods for acquired in-place lease and above-market lease intangibles are six
years

and five years

respectively

MORTGAGE LOANS PAYABLE

As of December 31 2012 we had approximately $159.0 million of outstanding mortgage notes payable outstanding inclusive of below-market assumed debt adjustment of

$1.9 million As of December 31 2011 we had approximately $46.8 niillion of outstanding mortgage notes payable outstanding Each of the mortgage notes payable is secured

by the respective property on which the debt was placed Certain of the mortgage notes allow us to getierally make additional principal payments on the loan and draw those

amounts back not to exceed the initial loan amount as needed As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the weighted-average interest rate for the loans was 3.58% and 2.91%

respectively

Excluding the below-market debt adjustment we hold $104.6 million of our debt obligations through the Joint Venture in which we have 54% interest and we hold $52.5

million of our debt obligations directly We also have an unsecured credit facility with $10.0 million of available finds on which we have not drawn any finds as of December31

2012 On December 24 2012 we also entered into $40.0 million secured revolving credit facility with the potential to increase the borrowing capacity wider such facility to

$250.0 million from which we may draw funds to pay certain long-term debt obligations as they mature Of the amount outstanding on our mortgage notes payable at

December 31 2012 $17.3 million is for loans which mature in 2013 We have one-year extension option on each loan maturing in 2013 subject to extension fees and

compliance with loan covenants As of December 31 2012 and 2011 our leverage ratios or the ratio of total debt less cash and cash equivalents to total real estate investments

at cost were approximately 48.5% and 51.7% respectively

In conjunction with our acquisition of five real estate properties we assumed debt of $37.9 million with fair value of $40.1 million The assumed debt market adjustment will

be amortized over the remaining life of the loans The amortization recorded on the assumed below-market debt adjustment was $235000 for the year ended December 31

2012

The following is summary of our debt obligations as of December 31 2012 and 2011 in thousands

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Outstanding Maximum Outstanding Maximum

Principal

Balance Capacity Balance Capacity

10000

1940 N/A N/A

Total 159007 183409 46788 53400

The assets and liabilitier of the following properties are neither available to pay the debts of the consolidated entity nor constitute obligations of

Estimated amortization
expense

of the respective acquired intangible lease assets as of fecember 31 2012 for each of the five succeeding calendar years and thereafttr is as follows

in thousands

Year Above-Market Leasestn-Place Leases

3771

3632

2795

2125

1230

2102

15655

Fixed rate mortgages payable

Variable rate mortgages payable

Secured credit facility

Unsecured credit facility

Assumed below-market debt adjustment

Loan Principal

43934

76424

36709

Loan

43934

89475

40000

46788 53400

the consolidated entity Baker Hill Center Broadway Plaza and Publix at Northridge
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Below is listing of the mortgage loans payable with their respective principal payment obligations in thousands and weighted-aierage interest rates

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total

Mftsring debt

Fixedratemortgagespayable 1216 17331 1047 0296 6899 7145 43934

Variable rate mortgages payable 17681 1105 1105 16093 33640 6800 76424

Secured line of credit 36709 36709

Totalmatisringdebt
18897 18436 .$ 38861 26389 40539 13945 157067

Weighted-average interest rate on debt

Fixed rate mortgages payable 7.0% 7.5% 6.5% 6.0% 3.7% 6.1% 6.3%

Variable rate mortgages payable 2.8% 2.5% 2.5% 2.7% 2.4% 2.3% 2.6%

Secured line of credit 0.0% 0.0% 2.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.5%

Total 3.1% 7.2% 2.6% 4.0% 2.6% 4.2% 3.6%

The debt maturity table does not include any below-market debt adjustment of which $1940 net of accpmulated amortization was

outstanding as of December 31 2012

portion of the fixed rate debt represents loans assumed as part of certain acquisitions These loans typically have higher
interest rates than

interest rates associated with new debt

As of December 31 2012 we were in compliance with all debt covenants

ACQUIRED BELOW-MARKET LEASE INTANGIBLES

Acquired below-market lease intangibles consisted of the following in thousands

2012 2011

Acquired below-market leases net of accumulated

amortization of $811 and $161

respectively 4892 .1203

Amortization recorded on the intangible liabilities for the years ended December 3120122011 and 2010 was $650000 $151000 and $10000 respectively

Estimated amortization income of the intanib1e lease liabilities as of December 31 2012 for each of the five succeeding calendar years
and thereafter is as follows in thousands

Year Below-Market Leases

2013 1075

2014 1011

2015 795

2016 664

2017 517

2018 and thereafter 830

Total 4892

The weighted-average amortization period for below market lease intangibles is six years
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COMMITMENTS ANt CONTINGENCliS

Sponsor Organization and
O.ffirring

Costs

In addition to the accounts payable to affiliates there are approximately $6.9 million of
offering costs incurred by the Sub-advisor on our behalf that have not been charged to us

Orgasuzation and offering cost reimbursements may not exceed 1.5% of the gross proceeds raised through our offering Whether these costs incurred by the Sub-advisor will be

billed is dependent upon the success of our offering and the discretion of the Sub-advisor

Litigation

In the ordinary course of business we may become subject to litigation or claims Thereare no material legal proceedings pending or known to be contemplated against us

Environmental Matters

In connection with the ownership and operation of real estate we may be potentially liable for costs arid damages related to environmental matters We have not been notified by

any governmental authority of any non-compliance liability or other claim and we are not aware of any other environmental condition thatwe believe will have material
impact

on our corisolidated financial statements

Operating Lease

We lease land under long-tern lease at oneproperty which was acquired in 2011 Total rental expense for the lease was $18300 and $4500 for the years ended December

31 2012 and 2011 respectively
Minimum rental commitsnents under the noncancelable term of the lease as of December 31 2012 are as follows 2013 $20000 ii 2014

$20000 iii 2015 $20000 iv 2016 $20000 and 2017 $17000

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Advisory AgreementPursuant to our advisory agreement the Advisor is entitled to specified fees fbr certain services including managing our day-to-day activities and

implementing our investment strategy The Advisor has entered into
sub-advisory agreement with the Sub-advisor which manages our day-to-day affairs and our portfolio of

real estate investments subject to the boards supervision and certain major decisions
requiring

the consent of both the AdvisOr and Sub-advisor The expenses to be reimbursed

to the Advisor and Sub-advisor will be reimbursed in proportion to the amount of expenses incurred on our behalf by the Advisor and Sub-advisor respectively

Organization and Offering CostsUnder the terms of the advisory agreement we are to reimburse on monthly basis the Advisor the Sub-advisor or their respective

affiliates for cumulatsve organization and offering costs and future organization and offering costs they may incur on our behalf but only to the extent that the reimbursement

would not exceed 1.5% of gross offering proceeds over the life of our offering As of December 31 2012 the Advisor Sub-advisor and their affiliates have billed tia for

approximately $7 million of organization and offering costs and we have reimbursed $4 million of such costs resulting in net payable of $3 million In addition

approximately $6.9 million of offering Costs incurred by the Sub-advisor on our behalf has not been charged to us or beenrecorded in our consolidated financial statements

Whether these costs incurred the Sub advisor will be billed is dependent upon the success of our offering and the discretion of the Sub-advisor As of December 31 2011

the Advisor Sub-advisor or their affihiateshad incurred $7.1 million of organization and offering costs which we had yet to reimburse

Acquisition FeeWe pay the Advisor an acquisition fee related to services provided in connection with the selection and
purchase or origination of real estate and real estate-

related investments The acquisition fee is equal to 0% of the cost of investments we acquire or ongmate including acquisition or origination expenses and any debt attributable

to such investments We incurred acquisition fees payable to the Advisor Sub-advisor and their affiliates of$ 1705000 $356000 and $210000 respectively for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 in connection with our property acquisitions The amount of these acquisition fees outstanding and payable receivable by us as of

December 31 2012 and 2011 was $191000 and $44000 respectively
The receivable at December31 2011 was due to an overpayment of acquisition fees related to the

Cureton Town Center acquisition

Asset Management FeeWe
paid

the Advisor an asset management fee for the asset management services it
provides pursuant to the

advisory agreement The asset

management fee payable monthly in arrears based on assets we held during the previous month was equal to 0.08333% of the sum of the cost of all real estate and real estate-

related investments we owned and of our investments in joint ventures including certain expenses and any debt attributable to such investments However the Advisor

reimbursed all or portion of the asset management fee for any applicable period to the extent that as of the date of the payment our modified funds from operations as defined

in accordance with the then-current practice guidelines issued by the Investment Program Association with an
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additional adjustment to add back capital contribution amounts received from the Sub-advisor or an affiliate thereof without Sny corresponding issuance of equity to the Sub-

advisor or its affiliate during the quarterwere ndt at least equal toour declared distributions during
the

quarter
We cannot avoid payment of an asset management fee by raising

our distribution rate beyond $0.65 persisare on an annualized basis Total asset management fees incurred for the
years

ended December31 2012 2011 and 2010 were

1243000 $347000 and $18000 respectively with $546000 $284000 and $18000 of these fees being waived orreimbursed by the Advisor and Sub-advisor For

the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 the net asset management fees of $97000 and $63000 respectively were paid solely by the CBRE Investors to the Advisor

and Sub-advisOr as the amount of asset managementfees for which we were rtsponsible were waived or reimbursed to Os by the Advisor and Sub-advisor pursuant to the

advisory agreement between the Joint Venture and the Advisor The amount of these asset management fees outstanding and payable by us as of December 31 2012 and 2011

was $248000 and $63000 respective1y

On February 42013 we and the Operating Partnership entered into an Amended and Restated Advisory Agreemesit the AR Advisory Agreement with the Advisor The

AR Advisory Agreement provides that the asset management compensation structure contemplated in the previous advisory agreement between us and the Advisor as

discussed above is eliminated effective October 12012 Instead we expect to issue to the Advisor on quarterly basis perfonnance-based restrictedpartnership units of the

Operating Partnership designated as Class units The Class units will vest and will no longer be subject to forfeiture at such time as all of the following events occur

the value of the Operating Partnerships assets plus all distributions made equals or exceeds the total amount of capital contributed by investors plus 6% cumulative pre-tax

non-compounded annual return thereon the economic hurdle any one of the following occurs the tennination of the AR AdvisoryAgreement by an affisinative vote

of majority of our independent directors without cause listing event or another liquidity event and the Advisor is still providing advisory services to us the

service condition Such Class units will be forfeited immediately if the AR Advisory Agreement is terminated for cause or the AR Advisory Agreement is

terminated by an affirmative vote of majority of our independent directors without cause befOre the economic hurdle has been met The Class units are participating

securities that will receive distributions at the same rates and dates as the distributions paid to our cOmmon stockholders These distributions will be calculated as the product of

the number of unvested units issued to dateand the stated distribution rate at the time such distribution is authorized

On February l3 2013 the Operating Partnership issued 59245 Class units to the Advisor under the AR Advisory Agreement for the asset management services

performed by the Advisor during theperiod from October 2012 to December 31 2012 These Class units will not vest until the conditions referenced above have been

met

Financing FeeWe pay the Advisor or Sub-advisor financing fee equal to 0.75% of all amOunts taSde available under any loan or line of credit We incurred financing fees

payable to the Advisor Sub-advisor and their affiliates of $816000 $180000 and $110000 for the years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 respectively The

amount of these financing fees outstanding and receivsble by us as of December 31 2011 was $19000 whichwas due to an inerpayment of financing fees relatedto the

CuretonTown Centeracquisition

Disposition FeeFor substantial assistance by the Advisor Sub-advisoror any of their affiliates in connection with the sale ofpropertiesor other investments we will pay the

Advisor or its
assignee

2.0% of the contract sales price of each
property

or other investment sold The conflicts committee will determine whether the Advisor Sub-advisor or

their respective affiliates have provided substantial assistance to us in connection with the sale of an asset Substantial assistance in connection with the sale of property includes

the Advisors or Sub-advisors preparation
of an investment package for the

property including an investment analytis rent rolls tenant information regarding credit property

title report an environmental report structural report and exhibsts or such other substantial services performed by the Advisor or Sub advisor connection with sale

llowever if we sell an asset to an affiliate our organizational documents will
prohibit us from paying the Advisor disposition fee There were no disposition fees incurred during

the years ended December 31 2012 201 and2010

General andAdministrative ExpensesThe sponsors provided $0 $88000 and $140000 respectively during the years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010

for certain of our general
and administrative

expenses as capital contributions The
sponsors

have not received and will not receive any reimbursement for these contributions

The sponsors
do not intend to make further capital contributions to continue to fund our general and administrative expenses As ofDecember3l 2012 we owed the Advisor

Sub advisor and their affiliates $2 000 for general and administrative expenses paid on our behalf The amount payable to the Advisor Sub-advisor and their affiliates as of

December31 2011 for general and administrative expenses was $1 140 000 As ofDecember3l 2012 the Advisor Sub-advisor and their affiliates have not allocated any

portion
of their employees salaries to general

and administrative expenses

Subordinated Participation in Net Sales ProceedsThe Oerating Partnership will pay to PECO-AkC Special Limited Partiler LLC the Special Limited Partner

subordinated participation inthe net sales proceeds of the sale of real estate assets equal to 15.0% of remaining net sale proceeds after return of capital contributions to

stockholders plus payment to investors of 7.0% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded return on the capital contributed by stockholders Advisor has 15.0% interest and the

Sub-advisor has an 85.0% interest in the Special Limited Partner
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Subordinated Incentive Listing FeeThe Operating Partnership wilipay to the
Special LiinitedPartner subordinated incentive listing distributipn 0115.0% of the amount

by which the market value of all of our issued and outstanding common stock p1u distributions exceeds the aggregate capital
contributed by stockholders plus an amount equal

to 7.0% cumulative pre-tax non-compottpdcd annual return to stpckholders

Neither the Special Limited Partner nor any of its affiliates can cam both the subordination participation -in the netses proceeds and the subordinated incentive listing distribution

Subordinated Distribution Upon Termination of the Advisor AgreementUpon termination or non-renewal of the AR Advisory Agreement the Special Limited

Partner shall be entitled to subordinated termination fee in the form of non-interest bearing promissory note equal to 15.0% of the amount by which the cost of our assets plus

distributions exceeds the aggregate capital contributed by stockholders plus an asnousequal to 7.0% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded annual return to stockholders In

addition the Special Limited Partner may elect to defer its right to receivç subordinated distribution upon termination until either listing on national securities exchange or

other liquidity event dccurs

Property ManagerAll ofur real properties see managed and leased by Phillips Edison Company Ltd the Property Manager an affiliated property manager The

Property Manager is wholly ownedby our Phillips Edison sponsor and was organized on September 15 1999 The Property Manager-also manages real properties acquired by

the Phillips Edison affiliates or other-third parties

We pay to the Property Manager monthly property management fees
equal

to 4.5% of the
gross

cash receipts of the
properties managed by the Property Manager In the event

that we contract directly with ncn-aflliated third-psrty property manager with respectto property we will pay the Property Manager monthly oversight fee equal to 1.0% of

the
gross revenues of the

property managed In addition to .the property management fee or oversight fee if the Property Manager provides leasing services with respect to

property we will pay the Property Manager leasing fees in an amount equal to the leasing fees charged by unaftiliated persons rendering comparable services in the same

geographic location of the applicable property We will reimburse the costs and expenses incurred by the Property Manager-on our bebalf including legal travel and other put-of

pocket.expenses that are directly related to the management of specific properties as well as fees and
expenses

of
third-party accountants

If we engage the
Property Manager to provide construction management services with respect to particular property we will pay construction management fee in an amount

that is usual and customary for comparable services rendered to similar projects in the geograpbic.market of the property

The Property Manager hires directs and establishes policies for employees who have direct responsibility for the operations of each real
property

it manages which may include

but is not limited to on-site managers and building and maintenance personnel Certain employees of the Property Manager may be employed op part-time basis and may also be

employed by the Sub-advisor or certain of its affiliates The
Property Manager also directs the purchase

of equipment and
supplies

and will supervise all maintenance
activity

Transactions involving the Property Manager consisted of the following in thousands

Unpaid Amount as of

For the Year Endedpecember 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011

Property management fees 756 157 112 21

Leasing commissions 302 34 96

Construction management fees 41 18

Other fees and reimbursements 19.1 46 20

Total 1290 .240 20 27

Dealer ManagerOur dealer raanager
is

Realty Capital Securities LLC the Dealer Manager The Dealer Manager is member firm of the Financial
Industry Regulatory

Authority Inc FINRA and was organized on August 29 2007 The Dealer Manager is indirectly wholly owned by our AR Capital sponsor and provides certain sales

promotional and marketisg seriices in connection with the distribution of the shares of common stock offered under our offering Excluding shares sold pursuant to the friends

and dssnily program the Dealer Manager is generally paid sales commission equal to 7.0% of the gross proceeds from the sale of shares of the common stock sold in the

primary offering and dealer manager fee equal to 3.0% of the
gross proceeds from the sale of shares of the common stock sold in the primary offering The Dealer Manager

typically reallowa 100% of the selling commissions and portion of the dealer manager fee to participating broker-dealers

F-iS



Selling commissions incurred during the year ended December 31 2012 were $7880000 all of which were reallowedto participating broker-dealers Dealer manager fees

incurred during the
year

ended December 31 2012 were $2522000 of which $767000 was reallowed to psrticipating
broker-dealers Selling commissions incurred during

the
year

ended December 31 2011 were $1014000 all of which were reallowed to participating broker-dealers Dealer manager fees incurred
during

the
year

ended December

31 2011 were $350000 $76000 of which was reallowed to participating broker-dealers There were no selling commissions or dealer manager fees incurred or paid in the

year
ended December 31 2010 as all shares were sold in conjunction with our friends and fismily program under which no fees or commissions are paid

Share Purchases by Sub-advisorThe Sub-advisor has agreed to purchase on monthly basis sufficient shares sold in our public offering
such that the total shares owned by

the Sub-advisor is equal to at least 0.10% of our outstanding shares excluding shares issued after the commencement of and outside of the initial
public offering at the end of

each immediately preceding month The Sub-advisor will purchase shares at purchase price of $9.00 per share reflecting no dealer manager fee or selling commissions being

paid on such shares The Sub-advisor may not sell any of these shares while serving as the Sub-advisor

As of December31 2012 the Sub-advisor owned 23061 shares of our common stock or approximately 0.17% of our outstanding common stuck As of December31

2011 the Sub-advisor owned 21412 shares of our common stock or approximately 0.8 1% of our outstanding common stock

11 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

We are dependent on the Advisor Sub-advisor the Property Mansgel the Dealer Manager and their
respective

affiliates for certain services that are essential to us including the

sale of our shares of common stock asset acquisition and disposition decisions advances or contributions for distributions bridge financing and other general and administrative

responsibilities In the event that the Advisor the Sub-advisor the Property Manager and/or the Dealer Manager are unable to provide such services we would be required to

find alternative service providers or sources of capital

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we owed the Advisor the Sub-advisor and their respective affiliates approximately $3.6 million and $8.4 million respectively for offering

and
organization expenses

and asset management property management and other fees payable as shown below in thousands

2012 2011

Offering and organization expenses payable 2987 7149

General and administrative expenses of the company paid by Sponsor 1149

Asset management property management and other fees payable
645 97

Total due 3634 8395

In addition as of December 31 2012 approximately $6.9 million of offering costs incurred by the Sub-advisor on our behalf has not been charged to us or recorded in our

consolidated financial statements Whether these costs will be billed to us in the future will depend on the success of our offering and the discretion of the Sub-advisor The

sponsors provided $88000 during the year ended December31 2011 and $228000 since inception
for certain of our general

and administrative expenses as capital

contributions The sponsors have not received and will not receive any reimbursement for these contributions There was no sponsor contribution for the
year ended December

31 2012 Our sponsors do not intend to make further capital contributions to continue to fund certain of our general and administrative expenses

12 FUTURE MINIMUM RENTS

Our operating leases terms and expirations vasy The leases frequently have provisions to extend the lease agreement and other terms and conditions as negotiated We retain

substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the real estate assets leased to tenants
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Approximate future rentals to be received under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December31 2012 assuming no new or renegotiated
leases or option

extensions on

lease agreements are as follows in thousands

Year Amount

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018 and thereafter

26296

24435

21970

19776

17368

83.371

Total 193.216

One tenant Publix comprised approximately 12% of the
aggregate

annualized effective rent of our 26 shopping centers as of December 31 2012 No othertenant comprised

10% or more of our aggregate annualized effective rent as of December31 2012

13 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAIJIITED

The following is summary of tIe unaudited quarterly financial information for the
years

ended December 31 2012 arid 2011 We believe that all
necessary adjustments

consisting only
of normal

recurrrng adjustments
have been mcluded in the amounts stated below to present fairly and in accordance with GAAP the selected quarterly

information

14 SuBSEQUENT EVENTS

Distributions

On January 2013 we paid distribution equal to daily amount of $000178082 per
share of common stock outstanding for stockholders of record for the period from

December 2012 through December 31 2012 The total
gross amount of the distribution was approximately $717000 with $298000 being reinvested in the DRP for net

cash distribution of $419000

On January 23 2013 our board of directors authorized distributions to the stockholders of record at the close of business each day in the period commencing March 2013

through and including March 31 2013 The authorized distributions equal an amount of $0.00 183562 per share of common stock par value $0.01 per share This equates to

an approximate 6.70% annualized yield when calculated on $10.00 per
share purchase price portion of each distribution is expected to constitute return of capital for tax

purposes We expect to pay these distributions on April
2013 Our policy

is not to fund distributions with proceeds from our offering

On February 2013 we paid distribution equal to daily amount of $000178082 per share of common stock outstanding
for stockholders of record for the

period
from

January 12013 through Januasy 312013 The total gross amount of the distribution was approximately $817000 with $344000 being reinvested in the DRP for net cash

distribution of $473000

in thousands except per share amounts

Total revenue

Operating
loss

Net loss attributable to Company stockholders

Loss per share basic and diluted

in thousands except per share amounts

Total revenue

Operating loss

Net loss attributable to Coeppany stockholders

Loss
per

share basic and diluted

2012

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2215 3105 5148 7082

52 725 424 53
258 805 1036 1247

0.08 0.17 0.15 0.11

2011

First

Quarter

603

99
248

0.28

Second

Quarter

620

467

605

0.49

Third

Quarter

839

241

440

0.29

Fourth

Quarter

1467

898

1071

0.46
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On March 2013 we paid distribution equal to daily amount of $000183562 per
share of common stock outstanding for stockholders of record for the period from

February 12013 through February 282013 The total grosa amount of the diatribution waa approximately $882000 with $374000 being reinvested in the DRP for net

cash distribution of $508000

Acquisition of Atlanta Portfolio

Between January 15 2013 and February 13 2013 we acquired 100% interest in
portfolio consisting

of seven shopping centers in the Atlanta Georgia area the Atlanta

Portfolio for approximately $69 millson exclusive of elosmg costs The mdsvidual properties the Atlanta Portfolio are located Aeworth Georgia Ellenwood Georgia

Alpharetta Georgia Buford Georgia Msbleton Georgia Manetta Georgia and McDonough Georgia The
acquisition of the Atlanta Portfolio was partially financed with

proceeds from syndicated revolving credit facility led by Keyflank National Aasociation and proceeds from our ongoing public offering The portfolio is approximately 587367

square feet and is 90.8% leased

Acquisition ofFairlawn Town Centre

On
January 30 2013 we acquired 100% interest in Giant Eagle-anchored shopping center Fairlawn Town Centre located in Fairlawn Ohio for

purchase price of

approximately $42.2 million The scquitition was partially financed with proceeds from syndicated revolving credit facility led by KeyBank National Association and proceeds

from our ongoing public offering The 347255 square foot property is 95.0% leased

Sale of Shares of Common Stock

From January 12013 through Febnsasy 28 2013 we raised approximately $46.7 million through the issuance of 4697487 shares of common stock under our offering As

of February 28 2013 approximately 131.4 million shares remained available for sale to the
public under our offering exclusive of shares available under the DRP

Amendment of our Advisory Agreement

On February 2013 we and the Operating Partnership entered into the AR Advisory Agreement with the Advisor The AR Advisory Agreement provides that the asset

management compensation structure contemplated in the previous advisory agreement between us and the Advisor as discussed above is eliminated effective October 2012

instead we expect
to issue to the Advisor on quarterly

basis performance-based restricted
partnership

units of the
Operating Partnership designated as Class units The

Class units will vest and will no longer be subject to forfeiture at such time as all of the following events occur the value of the Operating Partnerships assets plus all

disinbutions made equals or exceeds the total amount of capital contributed by investors plus 6% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded annual return thereon the economic

hurdle any one of the following occurs the termination of the AR Advisory Agreement by an affirmative vote of majority of our independent directors without

cause listing event or another liquidity event and the Advisor is still providing advisory services to us the service condition Such Class units will be forfeited

immediately if the AR Advisory Agreement is tenninated for cause or the AtcR Advisory Agreement is terminated by an affirmative vote of majority of our

independent directors without cause before the economic hurdle has been met

Additionally the AR Advisory Agreement eliminates the subordinated share of casb flows and the subordinated incentive fee contemplated under the previous advisory

agreement between us and the Advisor Instead similar concepts are now set forth in the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership for the Operating Partnership

as follows

The Operating Partnersbip will pay to the Special Limited Partner subordinated participation in the net sales proceeds of the sale of real estate assets equal to 15.0% of

remaining net sale proceeds after return of capital contributions to investors plus payment to investors of 7.0% cumulative pre-tsx non-compounded return on the

capital contributed by investors

The Operating Partnership will pay to the Special Limited Partner subordinated incentive listing distribution of 15.0% of the amount by which the market value of all

of our issued and outstanding common stock plus disinbutions exceeds the aggregate capital coninbuted by investors plus an amount equal to 7.0% cumulative pre

tax non-compounded annual return to investors

Neither the Sperial Limited Partner nor any of its affiliates can cam both the subordination participation in the net sales proceeds and the subordinated incentive listing

distribution

Upon termination or non-renewal of the AR Advisory Agreement the Special
Limited Partner shall be entitled to subordinated termination fee in the form of non-interest

bearing promissory note equal to 15.0% of the amount by which the cost of our assets plus distributions exceeds the aggregate eapimi contributed by investors plus an amount

equal to 7.0% cumulative pre-tax non-compounded annual return to investors in addition the Special Limited Partner may elect to defer its right to receive subordinated

disinbution upon termination until either listing on national securities exchange or other liquidity event occurs
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The Class units are participating securities that will receive distribOtions at the same rates and dates as the distributions paid to our common stockholders These distributions

will be calculated by the
product

of the number of unvested units issued to date and the stated distribution rate at the time the
applicable

distributions are authorized

Lines of Credit

On January 18 2013 we increased the bounwing capacity of oursyndicated senior securedrevolving credit fadility led by KeyBankNational Association from $40 million to

$88 million On January 30 2013 we again increased the borrowing capacity under this facility to $120 million This facility has an accordion feature that allows us to further

increase the capacity up to $250 million subject to the terms and conditions of the facility Subsequent to December 31 2012 we drew $63 .9 million from this facility As of

March 72013 the balance under this facility was $100.6 million

We have an unsecured credit facility with KeyBank National Association with capacity of $10.0 million Subsequent to December31 2012 we drew $8.4 million from this

facility As of March 2013 the balance under this facility was $8.4 million
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SCHEDULE ifiREAL ESTATE ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

December31 2012

Gross amount carried at end of

In thousands Initial Cost period

Buildings and Accumulated Date

Buildings and Adjustments Improvements Total Depreciation Constructed/ Date

ProDerty Name City State Morteoce Loud Imorovements to Basis IB Load Cl Dl El Renovated Acquired

Lakeside llaza Salem VA 2614 5977 159$ 2614$ 6084$ 8698$ 748 1988 12/10/2010

SnowViewPlaza Parma OH 3386 7150 3386 7333 10719 959 1981/2008 12/15/2010

St.CharlesPlaza HainesCity FL 6008 2780 5709 1611 2780 5724 8504 549 2007 6/10/2011

Centespoint Easiey SC 4940 2132 4633 85 2132 4663 6795 299 2002 10/14/2011

SouthamptonVillage Tyrone GA 6020 2133 5713 504 2133 5759 7892 387 2003 10/14/2011

ButweodVillageCenter GlenBumie MD 300 3828 11786 986 3828 11829 15657 731 1971 11/9/2011

Cureton Town Center Waxhaw NC 8875 4653 8113 1184 4653 8132 12785 460 2006 12/29/2011

TtamwayCrossing Sanford NC 3400 1230 3856 414 1230 3883 5113 243 1996/2000 2/23/2012

Westin Centre Fayettevilte NC 3738 1463 4226 361 1463 4240 5.703 300 1996/1999 2/23/2012

TheViltageatGlynnPlaoe Brunswick GA 6500 3671 7626 53 3671 7690 11361 364 1996 4/27/2012

Meadowthotpe Shopping Center Lexington KY 4891 3193 5085 441 3193 5154 8347 272 1989/2008 5/9/2012

NewWindsorMarketplace Windsor CO 3044 2152 354 3044 2176 5220 88 2003 5/9/2012

VineStreetSquare Kissimmee FL 7931 5438 7229 983 5438 7294 12732 286 1996/2011 6/4/2012

Northtowne Square Gibsonia PA 6370 1305 8749 521 130f 8813 10118 302 1993 6/19/2012

BrentwootlCommons Bnssenvitte IL 8913 5141 8990 719 5141 9012 14153 303 1981/2001 7/5/2012

SidneyTowneCenter Sidney OH 850 4382 931 850 4499 5349 122 1981/2007 8/2/2012

Broadway Plaza Tucson AZ 6971 3704 8444 926 3704 8542 12246 190 1982-1995 8/13/2012

Richmond Plaza Augusta GA 13000 4647 13754 1099 4647 13776 18423 238 1980/2009 8/30/2012

PublixatNorthridge Sarasota FL 9985 4155 7148 569 4155 7211 11366 103 2003 8/30/2012

BakerHiliCenler GlenBllyn IL 11969 5585 15220 1524 5585 15241 20826 236 1998 9/6/2012

New Prague Commons New Prague MM 6800 2027 7826 297 2027 7826 9853 87 2008 10/12/2012

Brook ParkPlaza BrookPark OH 3747 1702 8437 506 -l702_ 8463 10.165 50 2001 10/23/2012

HeronCreekTowneCcsster NorthPort FL 2848 5296 506 2848 5296 8144 2001 12/17/2012

Quartz Hill Towne Centre Lancaster CA 4977 14904 1089 4977 14904 19881 1991/2012 12/26/2012

Hilfl.lcerSquare Salem OR 2063 5142 795 2063 5142 7205 1984/2011 12/28/2012

Village One Plaza Modesle CA 3.558 20.360 2.582 3.558 20.362 23.920 2007 12/28/2012

Totals 120358$ 82.127 207.907 19.101 82.127 209.048 291.175 7317

The initial cost to us represents the original purchase price of the property including nmounls incurred subsequent to acquisition which were contemplated at the time theroperty was acquired
The amounts reflected in the columa labeled Adjustments to Basis include above- andbelow-markcl Ieaaes andin-placevalues thatarerecordedatthe time of acquisition Such amounts are notincluded in our

determination of the total gross amount carried at the end of the petind

The aggregate cost of real estate owned at December 31 2012

Reconcitiatisn of real estate owned

2012 2011

Balance atjanuasy 70753$ 19126

Real estate acquisitions 219.377 51532

Additions to/improvements of real estate 1.045 95

Balance at December31 291.175 70.753

Reconciliation of accumulated depreciation

2012 2011

Balance atJatssary 1261$ 65

Depreciation espouse 6.056 1.196

Balance at December31 7317$ 1.261

The loan secured by these properties isa revolving credit facility on which we have borrowed $36709 as of December 312012 The amount of loan is not allocated to the individual properties
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this
report

to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto

duly authorized this 8th day of March 2013

PHILLIPS EDISON-ARC SHOPPING CENTER

REITINC

By Is JEFFREY EDISON

Jaltrey Edlee

Co-Chawmrn of She Board m.d Chief Executhe Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report

has been
signed by the following persons

in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Title Date

Is JEFFREY EDISON Co-Chairman of the Hoard and Chief Executive Officer Principal Executive March 2013

Miehnl Phiflip
Officer

Is MICHAEL PHILLIPS Co-Chairmanof the Board of Directors March 2013

Jeffrey Edison

Is RIcHAItO Sssim Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting March 2013

Rlehard Smith Officer

Is Wriiuas KAHANE Director March 2013

Wiltia atscise

Is LEss.tE lAO Director March 2013

LssiaT.Chaa

Is ETHAN HERSHMAN Director March 2013

Etha Itershmnn

Is RoNu Kntj Director March 2013

Ronald Kirk

Is PAul MASSEY Director Mach7 2013

Pool Massey
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